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Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®acl5(d) of the Act. YeEl No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Serti8 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4.88ring the precedii
12 months (or for such shorter period that thestegit was required to file such reports), anch@ been subject to such filing requirements ferpghst 90 days. Yé& No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant hdsrstted electronically and posted on its corpok&leb site, if any, every Interactive Data File riggd to be submitted a
posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulatiofi §232.405 of this chapter) during the precedi@igrionths (or for such shorter period that the temi$ was required to submit ¢
post such files). YeRl No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiers pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiorkK§229.405 of this chapter) is not contained herand will not be contained,
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant iarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting compaBge the definitions
“large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” atginaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of thecBange Act:

Large accelerated filed Accelerated fileO
Non-accelerated filed (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting comparlXl]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Adtpsd  No
State the aggregate market value of the votingnamdvoting common equity held by neiffiliates computed by reference to the price aicwlthe common equity was last sold
the average bid and asked price of such commonye@s of the last business day of the registrantist recently completed second fiscal quarter. adgregate market value
the common equity held by non-affiliates as of J88e2009 was $11,059,334.10, assuming a closiieg pf $0.90 and outstanding shares held by nathiaaéfs of 12,288,149.

APPLICABLE ONLY TO REGISTRANTS INVOLVED IN BANKRUPTY
PROCEEDINGS DURING THE PRECEDING FIVE YEARS:

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lilasl fall documents and reports required to be fibgdSection 12, 13, or 15(d) of the Securities Exae Act of 193
subsequent to the distribution of securities uredplan confirmed by a court. Y& No O
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT WARNING

Certain statements included by reference in tHiadficontaining the words “could,” “may,” “believgs“anticipates,” “intends,”
“expects,” and similar such words constitute fordvknoking statements within the meaning of the Pav&ecurities Litigation Reform Ac
Any forwardiooking statements involve known and unknown riskagcertainties, and other factors that may causeastual result
performance, or achievements to be materially diffe from any future results, performance, or aghigents expressed or implied by <
forwarddooking statements. Such factors include, amotgrst our ability to maintain liquidity, our mainnce of patent protection,
impact of current litigation (as it affects our toss well as market access), our ability to mainfavorable supplier arrangements
relationships, our ability to receive royaltiesrfr®aiyin Tonsun Medical Device Co., Ltd. (“BTMD"pur ability to quickly increase capacity
response to an increase in demand, our abilitetess the market, our ability to maintain or lowssduction costs, our ability to continue
finance research and development as well as opesaéind expansion of production, the increasedast®f larger market players, specific
Becton Dickinson and Company (“BD"), in providingwces to the safety market, and other factorseafeed inltem 1A. Risk Factors.
Given these uncertainties, undue reliance shoulth@@laced on forward-looking statements.

Iltem 1. Business.
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

General Development of Business

On May 9, 1994, our company was incorporated inabeto design, develop, manufacture, and marketvative patented safe
medical products for the healthcare industry.

Our VanishPoin® safety products (consisting of ltaherculin, insulin, and allergy antigen VanishR& syringes; 0.5mL, 3m|
5mL, and 10mL VanishPoirft  syringes; the VanishP®ilood collection tube holder; autodisable syeingnd the VanishPoift IV safety
catheter) utilize a unique friction ring mechanigatented by Thomas J. Shaw, our Founder, Presideuat, Chief Executive Office
VanishPoin® safety needle products are designed specificalprégent needlestick injuries and to prevent retdee friction ring mechanis
permits the automated retraction of the needle thto barrel of the syringe, directly from the patjeafter delivery of the medication
completed. The VanishPoifitblood collection tube holder utilizes the same na@i$m to retract the needle after blood has beawrdfron
the patient. Closure of an attached end cap oblbed collection tube holder causes the needleetiact directly from the patient into
closed blood collection tube holder. The IV cathetlso operates with a friction ring mechanism nghg the needle is retracted after insel
of the catheter into the patient. We also havetieRt Safe® syringe which is uniquely designed to reduce tik df bloodstream infectio
resulting from catheter hub contamination. Pat®afie® s unique luer guard reduces the risk of luer tiptact contamination and the risk
contamination of intravenous fluid.

Advantages of our VanishPoifft safety products include protection from needlestitjaries, prevention of cross contamina
through reuse, and reduction of disposal and a@bsociated costs. Federal regulation now reqthiresse of safe needle devices.

We and Thomas J. Shaw, our Founder and CEO, enitgieed Technology License Agreement dated effectis of the 23rd day
June 1995, whereby Mr. Shaw granted us a worldwiddusive license to manufacture, market, sell, distribute ‘Licensed Productsinc
‘Improvements’ until the expiration of the last dansed Patentsinless sooner terminated under certain conditiatisowt right to sublicenst
‘Licensed Products’, ‘Improvements’, and ‘Licendedtents’are all terms that are extensively defined in tleehihology License Agreemel
In exchange, we paid a $500,000 initial licensieg &nd a 5% royalty on gross sales after returfiSaznsed Products’Mr. Shaw entered in
an agreement whereby Ms. Suzanne August, his fospmuse, is entitled to $100,000 per quarter payabt of any royalties. SeePatent:
Trademarks, Licenses, and Proprietary Right®r a more detailed discussion. We and Mr. Shatered into the First Amendment
Technology Agreement July 3, 2008, whereby we amértide Technology License Agreement in order ttuites
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certain additional patent applications (addressiog-syringe patents) owned by Mr. Shaw in the ddim of “Patent Propertiesds set forth i
the Technology License Agreement so that such iadditpatent applications would be covered by ibenlse granted by Mr. Shaw to us.

Our goal is to become a leading provider of safie¢ylical products.

Our products have been and continue to be dis&tiboationally through numerous distributors. Hogrewe have been blocked fr
access to the market by exclusive marketing prestengaged in by BD which dominates our market. iMiated a lawsuit in 2007 agail
BD. The suit was for patent infringement, antitrpsactices, and false advertising. The court sel/¢he patent claims from the other cle
pending resolution of the patent dispute. On Ndwen®, 2009, the jury returned a verdict findingttlall three patents were valid i
infringed.

We continue to attempt to gain access to the maketigh our sales efforts, our innovative techgglantroduction of new produc
and, when necessary, litigation. We are focusimgnethods of upgrading our manufacturing capabdityg efficiency in order to enable u:
offer our technology at a reduced price. We belieur current capitalization provides the resourszsessary to implement these change:
improve our manufacturing capacity and efficierttygreby reducing our unit cost.

We have developed and are developing new safetycalgatoducts, some of which do not utilize ourguaéd retraction technolog
The Patient Safé syringe is one such product. This product is ualiguesigned to reduce the risk of bloodstreamciidas resulting fror
catheter hub contamination. Patient Safe unique luer guard reduces the risk of luer tiptaot contamination and the risk of contamine
of intravenous fluid.

Financial Information

Please see the financial statement#tém 8 Financial Statements and Supplementary Datdor information about our revenu
profits and losses for the last three years, atad &3sets for the last two years.

Principal Products

Our products with Notice of Substantial Equivaletzé¢he U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA&ihd which are currently sc
include the 1mL tuberculin; insulin; allergy antig¥anishPoin® syringes; 3mL, 5mL, and 10mL VanisinP® syringes; the VanishPoifit
blood collection tube holder; the VanishPoft d¥fety catheter; small diameter tube adapter aadPdtient Safé syringe, which i
uniquely designed to reduce the risk of bloodstrémfiections resulting from catheter hub contamiorati Patient Safé s’ unique luer gua
reduces the risk of luer tip contact contaminatiod the risk of contamination of intravenous flull/e are also selling autodisable syringe
the international market.

In the August 2007 issue bfealth Devices ECRI listed two syringes with the highest possitating: our VanishPoirit syringe an
BD’s Integra™ syringe. A jury returned a verdict in November 2009 finditigat all three patents asserted by us against BDvalid an
infringed by BD (with regard to its Integra™ produc

Syringe sales comprised 98.0%; 98.6%; and 98.98évahues in 2007, 2008, and 2009.

Principal Markets

Our products are sold to and used by healthcanadis primarily in the U.S. (with 11.6% of revesua 2009 generated from se
outside the U.S.) which include, but are not lidite, acute care hospitals, alternate care falitiloctorsbffices, clinics, emergency cente
surgical centers, convalescent hospitals, Vetetansinistration facilities, military organizationpublic health facilities, and prisons.

The syringe and needle device market continueseta Imarket in transition. The nature of the préslwomprising the market
slowly changing from standard to safety devices. The fogp#or the change to safety devices is the risit ith carried with each needles
injury which includes the transmission of over 28dulborne
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pathogens, including the human immunodeficiencys/{tHIV,” which causes AIDS), hepatitis B, and hepatitisBecause of the occupatio
and public health hazards posed by conventionglodable syringes, public health policy makers, dgmeorganizations, and governm
agencies have been involved in the effort to getenedfective safety needle products to healthcamkers. Federal legislation was signed
law on November 6, 2000, by former President Willidefferson Clinton. This legislation, which beeaaifective for most states on April
2001, now requires safety needle products be umetthé vast majority of procedures. However, ewéh this requirement, many hospitals
neglecting to follow the law intended to protecaliecare workers.

Methods of Marketing and Distribution

Under the current supply chain system in the UcBteacare market, the vast majority of decisiotatireg to the contracting for a
purchasing of medical supplies are made by theessmtatives of group purchasing organizations (“€¥®@ather than the endsers of th
product (nurses, doctors, and testing personrigle GPOs and large manufacturers often enter artgterm exclusive contracts which ¢
prohibit or limit entry in the marketplace by contipe's.

We distribute our products throughout the U.S. #rdterritories through general line and specialtgtributors. We also utili:
international distributors. We have developed @onal direct marketing network in order to market products to health care customers
their purchaser representatives. Our marketersencakitact with all of the departments that affért tecisiormaking process for safe
products, including the purchasing agents. Thdlyatate care and alternate care sites and speaktlgi with the decisiomakers of thes
facilities. We employ trained clinicians, includirregistered nurses and/or medical technologist$ ¢ulucate healthcare providers
healthcare workers on the use of safety devicemithr exhibits at related tradeshows and publicat@frrelevant articles in trade journals
magazines. These nurses provide clinical suppartistomers. In addition to marketing our produttts network demonstrates the safety
cost effectiveness of the VanishPdint automatadceton products to customers.

In the needle and syringe market, the market sleacder, BD, has utilized, among other things, Iterga exclusive contracts whi
have restricted our entry into the market. Otheedbe related products manufactured by us thabeireg denied market access as a resi
BD’s anti-competitive actions include the Patieafe?® , catheters, and blood tube holders.

We have numerous agreements with organizationshiordistribution of our products in foreign markefShe total population
Western Europe is almost 400 million, and the redomn for the urgency of safe needle devices ingaf Europe has followed the U
model. The European Hospital and Healthcare Engptdyissociation (HOSPEEM) and the European FederatfoRublic Services Unic
(EPSU) have entered into an agreement to help preveedlestick injuries among hospital staff. THeropean Commission has issue
proposal for a council directive to implement tlggeiement. Regions within Asia, South America, Afrita are also recognizing the need
our products. Beginning in 2004, we were giveraasard (from PATH) to supply syringes to variousiédin countries under the President’
Emergency Plan for AIDS relief (PEPFAR). Awardsrgased significantly from 2004 to 2007. The cummdition of PEPFAR has be
reauthorized by Congress through 2013. Howevedifig for the procurement of safety syringes is fiiogram has not occurred to date.

As a result of the introduction of VanishPofhtsyringes through the PEPFAR initiative, African nties have begun to proci
products outside of the U.S.-funded program. 1872Qhe Director General of NigergaNational Agency for Food and Drug Administra
and Control (NAFDAC), endorsed automated retracigringes for use throughout Nigeria. We are aulyeselling syringes to a Nigeri
distributor for use in that country. At the end2ff08, the Deputy Prime Minister of Namibia alsdlpzally endorsed automated retrac
syringes as a public intervention that would “pobteealth workers and save their patient’s lives.”

Key components of our strategy to increase our gtagkare are to: (a) defeat monopolistic practihesugh litigation; (b) focus ¢
methods of upgrading our manufacturing capabilitg afficiency in order to enable us to reduce castsimprove profit margins; (c) contir
marketing emphasis in the U.S.; (d) continue to ddterans Administration facilities, health depagtits, emergency medical services, fec
prisons, longerm care, and home healthcare facilities as custeinte) educate healthcare providers, insuregdthuare workers, governmi
agencies, government officials, and the generalipob the reduction of risk and the cost effectiess
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afforded by our products; (f) supply product throu@POs and Integrated Delivery Networks where jbess{g) consider possibilities for futt
licensing agreements and joint venture agreementthé& manufacture and distribution of safety paidin the U.S. and abroad; (h) introd
new products; and (i) increase international sales.

Status of Publicly Announced New Products

We have patented and are in the process of demgl@uiditional safety medical products which havetgde announced.

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

We purchase most of our product components fromleiauppliers, including needle adhesives and prngamaterials. There
multiple sources of these materials. We own thédmthat are used to manufacture the plastic coensnof our products in the U.S.
suppliers include Magor Mold, Inc., Helix Medicdbfmerly APEC), Channel Prime Alliance, Exacto 8pgriCorporation, Sterigenics,
ISPG.

M o~

Patents, Trademarks, Licenses, and Proprietarytfigh

We and Mr. Shaw entered into a Technology Licengeefment dated effective as of the 23rd day of Ju@85 (the Technolog
License Agreement”), whereby Mr. Shaw granted us a..worldwide exclusive license and right under th&censed Patents’anc
‘Information’, to manufacture, market, sell andtdisute ‘Licensed Products’ and ‘Improvementgthout right to sublicense and subjec
such nonexclusive rights as may be possessed bifatieral Government...”. ‘Licensed Patents’, ‘Infation’, ‘Licensed Products’anc
‘Improvements’ are all defined extensively in the Technology LeenAgreement. We may enter into sublicensing gemrents wit
Mr. Shaw’s written approval of the terms and coiod of the licensing agreement. The ‘LicenseddBets’ include all retractable syring
and retractable fluid sampling devices and comptntirereof, assembled or unassembled, which coenprisnvention described ihitensel
Patents’, and improvements thereto including any @h‘Products’ which employ the inventive concelgclosed or claimed in th&itenset
Patents’. We and Mr. Shaw entered into the First Amendmenitdohnology Agreement July 3, 2008, whereby we atedrthe Technolog
License Agreement in order to include certain add#l patent applications (addressing rsyminge patents) owned by Mr. Shaw to
definition of “Patent Propertiesds set forth in the Technology License Agreementhabsuch additional patent applications wouldbeeret
by the license granted by Mr. Shaw to us.

In exchange for the Technology License Agreememthegotiated a licensing fee and agreed to pay aoy#dty on gross sales af
returns. The license terminates upon expiratiotheflast licensed patents unless sooner terminatder certain circumstances. The licen
fees have been paid in accordance with this agneewith the exception of $1,500,000 in fees whickrevwaived in 2002 and $1,000,00
fees which were waived in 2009.

We have the right and obligation to obtain protattof the inventions, including prosecution of pateroperties. The licen
unilaterally changes to a nonexclusive licensehandvent of a hostile takeover. Also, if Mr. Shiawoluntarily loses control of the Compa
the license becomes a nonexclusive license arghatd information.

We seek foreign patent protection through the Ral@wmperation Treaty and have filed applicationsrégional and national pat:
protection in selected countries where we beliawepooducts can be utilized most.

We hold numerous U.S. patents related to our aueneetraction technology, including patents fordafety catheters, winged
sets, syringes, dental syringes, and blood cofiedtibe holders. In addition, we have multiplelaagions for patents currently pending. -
principal syringe patent in the U.S., as well asfitreign counterpart, will expire in May 2015. Wave also registered the following tr
names and trademarks: VanishPoint, VanishPointdpoBd with a circle mark, the Spiral Logo used &tkaging our products, and the ci
coded spots on the ends of our syringes. We asge trademark protection for the phrase “The Nean@ard for Safety."We have applied fi
a trademark for the Port Prep.
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We are involved in patent litigation detailedliam 3. Legal Proceedings We have decided, on the advice of patent counseélt
purchase patent insurance because it would reiaippropriate disclosure of information that isremtly proprietary and confidential.

In 2009 we obtained roughly 67.5% of our finishedducts through Double Dove, a Chinese manufactuvée believe we cou
make up any longerm disruption in these supplies by utilizing maoffethe capacity at the Little EIm facility, excefor 0.5mL, autodisabl
5mL, and 10mL syringes which comprised about 3.8%uo 2009 revenues.

We previously entered into a License Agreement BittMD as of May 13, 2005. That license expired\éay 13, 2008 (prior to tt
manufacture and delivery of any products). Newetss, BTMD continued to work toward completing faeility and gaining the necess
approvals in order to manufacture and sell produdtse facility has been completed and BTMD has @lghese government requiremel
BTMD received a Registration Certificate for Medi€evice on August 24, 2009. Production efforte aurrently underway and are be
tested. We entered into a new agreement (effeesvef July 1, 2009) with BTMD along similar ternstae prior agreement. This agreer
expires on July 1, 2010 which may automaticallyeert under certain conditions. Such terms includetgng to BTMD a limited exclusiy
license to manufacture and a limited exclusivetrighsell syringes in the People’s Republic of Gh{fPRC") having retractable needles t
incorporate our technology. This License Agreeniesubject to the Technology License Agreemergdidtine 23, 1995 between Mr. Tho
J. Shaw, our founder and CEO, as licensor, an@tmepany, as licensee (as amended). Accordingly Siaw will receive 5% of the licensi
proceeds we receive. BTMD has agreed to manufaetod sell these products in the PRC and to payqusrterly royalty of two and orfealf
cents per unit on 3mL and 5mL syringes and a rgydithree and ondalf cents per unit on 0.5mL, 1mL, and 10mL syrgg&he obligatio
to pay the royalties continues even if any anefdur patent rights in the PRC are found to bealiovor unenforceable for any reason. We
continue to expect royalty payments although weuaable to predict the date we will begin to reeeduch royalties.

Flu and Swine Flu Impact

Historically, unit sales have increased in theelaftart of the year due, in part, to the demandsjoinges during the flu season.
expect the HIN1 virus (“Swine Flutd have a longer worldwide immunization duratioartithe seasonal flu. In the third quarter of 2Q0€
were awarded a contract by the Department of HeasdthHuman Services (“DHHSt) supply a portion of the safety engineered sy#np b
used in the U.S. efforts to vaccinate the U.S. paimn against the Swine Flu. The impact on us maserial. Sales to the DHHS compri
52.0% and 24.4% of our revenues for the three nsoatfd twelve months ended December 31, 2009, rigglgc This program, which w.
estimated to run from August 2009 through March@®0&nded in December 2009. Our revenue incread@dl% in the fourth quart
principally due to the DHHS contract. We do nobwnif there will be a similar program in 2010.

Working Capital Practices

Cash and cash equivalents include unrestricted aregnvestments with original maturities of threenths or less.

We record trade receivables when revenue is rezedniNo product has been consigned to custom@us. allowance for doubtf
accounts is primarily determined by review of sfiedrade receivables. Those accounts that ardtfiduof collection are included in t
allowance. An additional allowance has been eistaddl based on a percentage of receivables outstan@hese provisions are reviewet
determine the adequacy of the allowance for doulstfeounts. Trade receivables are charged off where is certainty as to their be
uncollectible. Trade receivables are considerdidgieent when payment has not been made withinraohterms.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or ragrith cost being determined using actual avecagt. A reserve is established
any excess or obsolete inventories.

Receivables are established for federal and stedestwhere we have determined we are entitled refuand for overpayments
estimated taxes or loss carrybacks.
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Accounts payable and other shtetm liabilities include amounts that we believe mave an obligation for at the end of year. T
included charges for goods or services received0i@O but not billed to us at the end of the yeldralso included estimates of poten
liabilities such as rebates and other fees.

Our domestic return policy is set forth in our stard Distribution Agreement, a copy of which wataetted as Exhibit no. 6.3 to
Form 10SB filed on June 23, 2000. This policy providestta customer may return incorrect shipments witlfirdays following arrival at tl
distributor’s facility. In all such cases the distributor maktain an authorization code from us and affix¢bde to the returned product.
will not accept returned goods without a returnedds authorization number. We may refund the ecnsts money or replace the prod
minus a restocking fee of 10% and all applicabéggit charges.

Our international contracts do not provide for agtyrns.

Our return policy also provides that a customer medyrn product that is overstocked. Overstocketgrns are limited to two times
each 12 month period up to 1% of distribusotbtal purchase of products for the prior 12 mopéhiod upon the following terms: i)
“overstocked” product is that portion of distribtitoinventory of the product which exceeds disttdsis sales volume for the product dui
the preceding four months; ii) distributor must have taken delivery of the product which is overkéed during the preceding four months
overstocked product held by distributor in excest2months from the date of original invoice wilbt be eligible for return; iv) the prod
must have an expiration date of at least 24 mdintims the date of return; v) the overstocked produouast be returned to us in our saleable
cartons which are unopened and untampered, withraken or retaped seals; vi) distributor will be granted a @radich may be used only
purchase other products from us, the credit taltbé amount of the invoice price of the returnestipct less a 10% restocking fee which
be assessed against distribidosubsequent purchase of product; vii) distributarst obtain an authorization code from our distidn
department and affix the code to the returned prihdund viii) distributor shall bear the cost ofgling the returned products to us. All proc
overstocks and returns are subject to inspectidraaneptance by manufacturer.

Dependence on Major Customers

Two customers, DHHS and McKesson, accounted foaggregate of 38.4% of our revenue in 2009. We hawmerous oth
customers and distributors that sell our produntghie U.S. and internationally. The DHHS programmich was estimated to run fre
August 2009 through March 2010, ended in Decemb@82 We do not know if there will be a similar gram in 2010.

Two customers, DHHS and Cardinal Health, compr&&d% of our accounts receivable at December 319.20
Backlog Orders

Order backlog is not material to our business inasmas orders for our products generally are receand filled on a current ba:
except for items temporarily out of stock.

Government Funding of Research and Right to License

Thomas J. Shaw developed his initial version offety syringe with the aid of grants by the Natiohestitute of Drug Abuse,
subsidiary of the National Institutes of Healths Aresult, the federal government has the righgére/the public interest justifies it, to dispt
the technology to multiple manufacturers so thé &arly version of a safety syringe could be maitkely available to the public. Howev
the earlier design of 1991 was a bulkier, lessctiffe, and more expensive version of the curremisfgPoint® syringe product. According!
Management believes that the risk of the governmdenmanding manufacture of this alternative prodsiotinimal. The VanishPoirft syringe
design was only partly funded with grant money #mel product, as sold, incorporates technology fbictv the government has no rigt
Therefore the government has no right to allow ke manufacture the VanishPofht  syringe.
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Government Approval and Government Regulations

For all products manufactured for sale in the ddinesarket we have given notice of intent to markethe FDA and the devices w
shown to be substantially equivalent to the pradidevices for the stated intended use.

For all products manufactured for sale in the fgmeinarket, we hold a certificate of Quality Systeempliance with ISO 13485. V
also have approval to label products for sale Euoopean Union countries with a CE Mark. We wilhaply with the regulatory regulations
all countries in which our products are registdmdsale.

Competitive Conditions

Our products are sold to and used by healthcanades primarily in the U.S. (with 11.6% of revesua 2009 generated from se
outside the U.S.) which include, but are not lidite, acute care hospitals, alternate care faslitdoctorsboffices, clinics, emergency cente
surgical centers, convalescent hospitals, Vetedansinistration facilities, military organizationpublic health facilities, and prisons.

We compete primarily on the basis of product penfance and quality. We believe our competitive atlvges include, but are |
limited to, our leadership in quality and innovati®e believe our products continue to be the mafisttive safety devices in todaymarket
Our syringe products include passive safety agtimatrequire less disposal space, and are actiwatgle in the patient. Our price per uni
competitive or even lower than the competition oaltehe costs incurred during the life cycle ofyainge are considered. Such life cycle ¢
include disposal costs, testing and treatment dostseedlestick injuries, and treatment for coctied illnesses through needlestick injur
We sued Occupational and Medical Innovations Lichi(€OMI”) in April 2008 and separately sued BD in June 2087 cfaims of patel
infringement (Sedtem 3. Legal Proceedings), and in December 2009 and November 2009, resgdgtisuch companies were founc
infringe our patents. These judgments could irsgedemand for our product. However, there is murasnce when or if such increase
occur.

We have three major competitors: BD, Covidien Iifdrmerly known as Tyco Healthcare which was spfirfirom Tyco Internationa
(“Covidien”), and Terumo Medical Corp. (“Terumo”).

Founded in 1897, BD is headquartered in New Jer8dy's safety-engineered device sales accountedgdproximately 23% of BI¥’
total 2009 sales. BD currently manufactures thfetghok™, a syringe that utilizes a tubular plagtieath that must be manually slid ovel
needle after an injection, and the SafetyGlide™Meadle which utilizes a hinged lever to cover teedie tip. BD also manufactures a se
blood collection and hypodermic needle that utflizhe Eclipse™ needle cover. BD also manufactaré@inL and 1mL retracting nee
product based on a license agreement with Spemiblitealth Products International, Inc. (formerle tMedDesign Corporation). TI
Integra™, a retractable syringe offered by BD, wWessubject product in a patent infringement casshich a jury found in our favor. A fir
judgment has not been entered. Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings The introduction of this syringe had little ingbaon our sales due to B§’
historic market dominance. BD’s “Vacutairfer bfbod collection products are commonly used asstrgiyargon to refer to blood collecti
products in general.

Sherwood Medical Co. (“Sherwoodijas acquired by Tyco International. Sherwood i& part of Covidien. Covidien manufactu
various safety syringes and needles.

Terumo was the first company to sell disposablénggs in Japan. Today, Terumo manufactures stdrgjainges, blood collectis
tube holders, safety syringes, and blood colledtievices. It operates internationally and hasssalenore than 150 countries.

Both BD’s SafetyLok™ and Covidien’s Monojettsafety syringes require the use of two hands anerakextra steps to activate
tubular plastic shield which must be slid and latkato place to protect the needle. These producist be removed from the patient in o
for the safety mechanism to be activated. In @mttruse of the VanishPoifitsyringe is identical to that of a standard syringél the end ¢
an injection, when the automated retraction medmnietracts the needle directly from the patiefelganto the barrel of the syringe. T
allows
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both hands to remain safely out of harm’s wayth# Integra™ is removed from the market, VanishP®imwill be the only fully passiv
retractable syringe being manufactured in commkeggiantities in the U.S.

BD and Covidien have controlling U.S. market shape=ater financial resources; larger and more bBskedal sales, marketing,
distribution organizations; and greater marketuefice, including the lontgrm and/or exclusive contracts. The current diovd haw
restricted competition in the needle and syringeketa BD may be able to use its resources to ingrits products through researct
acquisitions or develop new products, which may peta more effectively with our products.

We continue to attempt to gain access to the maketigh our sales efforts, our innovative techgglantroduction of new produc
and, when necessary, litigation. We are focusimgnethods of upgrading our manufacturing capabdityg efficiency in order to enable u:
compete by offering our technology at a reducedepriWe believe our current capitalization provitles resources necessary to impler
these changes and improve our manufacturing cgpai efficiency, thereby reducing our unit cost.

Our products have consistently received high quaditings. In the August 2007 issuetddalth Devices ECRI listed two syringe
with the highest possible rating: our VanishP&irgyringe and BD’s Integra™ syringe. BDIntegra™ syringe has been found to infring
our patents. Seléem 3. Legal Proceedings

Our safety needle products have an advantage averatracting safety needles because minimal trigiand changes to practitioners’
normal routines are required. Use of our prodwdto prohibits unfortunate and improper reuse. eBdvfactors could materially a
beneficially affect the marketability of our prodsic Demand could be increased by existing ledgisieand other legislative and investiga
efforts. Licensing agreements could provide eintty new markets and generate additional reveffugther, outsourcing arrangements suc
our purchases from Double Dove have increased amufacturing capacity with little or no capital mytand provide a competitive cost.

Our competitive weaknesses include our current &dakarket share because two wedtablished companies control most of the
market. Our competitive position is also weakebgdhe method that providers use for making puricigadecisions and the fact that our in
price per unit for our safety needle products mayhigher. Demand for our products could decreasetd the sale of the Integra™
retractable syringe manufactured by BD, which datés the market and has a wider range of proddetings and more capital resourc
However, a jury has returned a verdict that thegra™ infringes our patents.

Research and Development

We spent $1,071,143; $1,066,068; and $1,030,6228dal 2007, 2008, and 2009, respectively, on meteand development. Costs
2009 were primarily for compensation and validatioBur ongoing research and development activitieparéormed by an internal reses
and development staff. This team of engineerseigelbping process improvements for current andréuautomated machines. Our limi
access to the market has slowed the introductigeraducts. Possible future products include neetddical devices to which the autom:
retraction mechanism can be applied as well ag stifety medical devices.

Environmental Compliance

We believe that we do not incur material costs éamrection with compliance with environmental lawg/e are considered
Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generator bessawe generate less than 100 kilograms (220 Idshapardous waste per mon
Therefore, we are exempt from the reporting requoénets set forth by the Texas Commission on Enviemal Quality. The waste that
generated at our facility is primarily made up lainimable liquids and paimelated waste and is sent for fuel blending by tgaféeen. Thi:
fuel blending process completely destroys our wastksatisfies our “cradle-to-grave” responsibility

Other nonhazardous production waste includes q@e&ypropylene regrind that is recycled. All ottremhazardous waste produce
considered municipal solid waste and sent to aagriandfill by Waste Management.

8




Table of Contents

We also produce small amounts of regulated bioldazesr waste from contaminated sharps and laboratasyes. This waste is s
for incineration by Stericycle.

Employees

As of March 1, 2010, we had 159 full-time employeeparttime employees, and 3 independently contractedultaimds. Of the 1t
full-time employees, 4 persons were engaged in researdhdevelopment activities, 86 persons were engagechanufacturing ar
engineering, 16 persons were engaged in qualityrasse and regulatory affairs, 22 persons weregadyin sales and marketing, 29 per:
were engaged in general and administrative funsfi@nd 2 persons in facilities. No employees areered by collective bargaini
agreements. We are dependent upon a number ofgeraeat and technical personnel, and the loss @icgsr of one or more of su
employees could have a material adverse effecsorOur President and Chief Executive Officer, Therd. Shaw, has an employment con
that will end on December 31, 2010 which contamswatomatic and continuous renewal provision forsezutive two-year periods.

Financial Information About Geographic Areas

We have no longdived assets in foreign countries. Shipments terimational customers generally require a prepaymigmer by wir
transfer or an irrevocable confirmed letter of dre@Ve do extend credit to international custom@nssome occasions depending upon ce
criteria, including, but not limited to, the credibrthiness of the customer, the stability of tle@mry, banking restrictions, and the size of
order. All transactions are in U.S. currency. &tteibute sales to countries based on the destimafi shipment.

2009 2008 2007
Domestic sale $ 34,466,79 $ 23,244,371 $ 21,461,71
International sale 4,515,041 4,654,94: 4,828,00:
Total sales $ 38,981,83 $ 27,899,31 $ 26,289,72
Long-lived asset:
Domestic $ 13,961,44 % 14,435,66 $ 11,483,42
Foreign $ 272,73t $ — 3 —

We have no sales in any foreign country that exsé®d of revenue. Most international sales aredilby production from Douk
Dove. In the event that we become unable to pselsach product from Double Dove, we would neefin an alternate supplier for 1
0.5mL insulin syringe, the 0.5mL autodisable syeingnd the 5mL and 10mL syringes. We would in@edsmestic production for the 1i
and 3mL syringes to avoid a disruption in supply.

Available Information

We make available, free of charge on our websit@wwanishpoint.com), our Form 10-K Annual Reportidform 10Q Quarterl
reports and current reports on Form 8-K (and angratments to such reports) as soon as reasonakljcptafter such reports are filed.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

You should carefully consider the following matériaks facing us. If any of these risks occurf business, results of operations
financial condition could be materially affected.

We Compete in a Monopolistic Marketplace

We operate in an environment that is dominated By tRe major syringe manufacturer in the U.S. Veeve that its monopolist
business practices continue despite: (i) its paih@0 million in 2004 to settle a prior lawsuit itis for anticompetitive practices, busir
disparagement, and tortious interference andh@)fact that a jury returned a verdict in Novem2@09 finding that all three patents asserte
us against BD are valid and infringed by BD (widgard to its Integr&  product).
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Although we have made limited progress in somesargach as the alternate care and internationgtetgrour volumes are not
high as they should be given the nature and quaflibur products and the federal and state legislaequiring the use of safe needle devices.

Our Cash Position Is Decreasing and Legal Expefisefncreasing

Due to our operating losses and increased lega) tae cash position declined $15.2 million as et&mber 31, 2009 as compare
December 31, 2008. Our litigation efforts will ¢imue to require a significant amount of cash uhil issues are resolved.

In the event we continue to have only limited makecess, the cash provided by the prior litigasettlements and generated fi
operations becomes insufficient, and royalties fB®BRMMD are not forthcoming, we would take additiowalt cutting measures to reduce
requirements. Such measures could result in reguct units being produced, reduction of workfgreeduction of salaries of officers ¢
other nonhourly employees, and deferral of roypityments.

We Have Generally Been Unable to Gain SufficientidaAccess to Achieve Profitable Operations

We have a history of incurring net operating loss#ée may experience operating losses in the futlfeve are unable to ge
sufficient market access and market share, we raynhble to continue to finance research and dpwedat as well as support operations
expansion of production.

We Are Dependent On Our Aging Patent Protection

Our main competitive strength is our technologye Wfe dependent on our patent rights, and if otenpaights are invalidated
circumvented, our business would be adversely eftecPatent protection is considered, in the agges to be of material importance in
marketing of products in the U.S. and in most mégweign markets. Patents covering products thathave introduced normally prov
market exclusivity, which is important for the sassful marketing and sale of our products.

As our technology ages (and the associated pafergXpires), our competitive position in the magtace will weaken. The initi
patents protecting our revolutionary spring actsyminge will expire beginning in May 2015. Patdifée may be extended, not through
original patents, but through related improveme@sir ability to improve these patents is uncertatventually, however, our patent protec
may decrease and we will be vulnerable to otherpaiitors utilizing our technology.

Our Patents Are Subject to Litigation

We were involved in two patent disputes both of akhihe jury found in our favor. Further, we haveemeued by BD for pate
infringement. Sedtem 3. Legal Proceedingsfor more information. Patent litigation and challenges involving our péteare costly ar
unpredictable and may deprive us of market exclysior a patented product or, in some cases, tpady patents may prevent us fi
marketing and selling a product in a particulargraphic area.

We Are Vulnerable to New Technologies

Because we have a narrow focus on particular ptdihes and technology (currently predominantlyaetable needle products),
are vulnerable to the development of superior cdinggroducts and to changes in technology whiakicceliminate or reduce the need for
products. If a superior technology is created,dimand for our products could greatly diminish.

Our Competitors Have Greater Resources

The three leading manufacturers of hypodermic ggsnand blood collection products are BD, Covidi@mgd Terumo. All thre
companies offer both standard syringes and at tesstafety syringe alternative.
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BD also offers a retractable syringe which was tbbg a jury to infringe on our patents. Stsm 3. Legal Proceedings These competito
have greater financial resources, larger and mstaEbkshed sales and marketing and distributiommizgtions, and greater market influe
including longterm contracts. These competitors may be abledéahese resources to improve their products throegearch and acquisitic
or develop new products, which may compete morecéffely with our products. If our competitors dse to use their resources to cr
products superior to ours, we may be unable toosglproducts and our ability to continue operaiarould be weakened.

The Majority of Our International Sales Are Fillelding One Supplier

Most international sales are filled by productioonfi Double Dove. In the event that we become wntbpurchase such product fr
Double Dove, we would need to find an alternatepfigpfor the 0.5mL insulin syringe, the 0.5mL adisable syringe, and the 5mL and 1(
syringes. We would increase domestic productiartie 1mL and 3mL syringes to avoid a disruptiorsiupply. As of December 31, 20
approximately 67.5% of our production was provitlgdDouble Dove. 11.6% of our sales in 2009 weterirational.

Fluctuations in Supplies of Inventory Could Tempilydncrease Costs

Fluctuations in the cost and availability of rawterals and inventory and the ability to mainta@wdrable supplier arrangements
relationships could result in the need to manufactll (as opposed to 32.0%) of the products indt® This could temporarily increase |
costs as we ramp up domestic production.

We Are Controlled by One Shareholder

Thomas J. Shaw, our President and Chairman of teed® and Ms. Suzanne August own 36.5% and 11.8%pectively, of th
outstanding Common Stock as of March 1, 2010. Sttees held by Ms. August are controlled by Mr.vBparsuant to a Voting Agreeme
which terminates upon sale of all the shares ftuevar if terminated by both parties in writing. rMshaw will, therefore, have the ability
direct our operations and financial affairs andubstantially influence the election of memberswf Board of Directors. His interests may
always coincide with our interests or the interedtsther stockholders. This concentration of omsh®, for example, may have the effec
delaying, deferring, or preventing a change in mintmpeding a merger, consolidation, takeoverotiter business combination involving
or discouraging a potential acquirer from makinggder offer or otherwise attempting to obtain colndf us, which in turn could materia
adversely affect the market price of our CommorcistdOf the 23,825,149 shares of Common Stock andshg as of March 1, 2010, execu
officers, affiliates, and Directors own or contddl,537,000 (48.4%) of the shares of outstanding i@omsStock, not including Common St
equivalents such as preferred shares and options.

We Have Limited Access to the Capital Markets

The volume of trading in our Common Stock on theSEYAmex LLC (“NYSE Amex”) formerly the American Stock Exchange
low. Accordingly, it is unclear if there is anygsificant market for our shares. This may reduae ability to raise cash through public
private offerings in the future.

Our Stock Price Is Low

Our stock price may be deemed to have been séfiim@g substantial period of time at a low price phare”which may result in o1
receipt of a notification from the NYSE Amex thateverse split is necessary. We have receiveduch sotification. When a compe
receives such a notification, failure to effectemarse stock split may result in suspension or v&infsom trading on the NYSE Amex. T
NYSE Amex may initiate delisting procedures indiscretion. Delisting of our shares would greatffiect the liquidity of our shares and wa
reduce our ability to raise funds from the saleeqbiity in the future. However, we believe suchigliely application to be unlikeh
Furthermore, in the event that we receive a defayjeetter from the NYSE Amex, we will have thehigo appeal such determination.
addition, entities that were given such noticeseuritie American Stock Exchange standards were giyngiven up to 18 months to execu
plan to bring themselves into compliance with tieéig standards.
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Current Economic Conditions May Decrease Colletitglnf Accounts

Although we believe that we have granted creditreditworthy firms, current economic conditions may afféee timing and/c
collectability of some accounts. The Provisiondoubtful accounts increased by $182,000 for 200 kvbrings the balance to $681,966.

We Face Inherent Product Liability Risks

As a manufacturer and provider of safety needl@yxts, we face an inherent business risk of exgosuproduct liability claims
the event of product failure or claim of harm calibg product operation. Product failure could Hesuinjury to the patient and could exp:
healthcare workers to the risk of blood borne pgéms. If any of our products prove to be defegtive may be required to recall th
products. We do not have recall insurance.

If a product liability claim is made and damages ar excess of our product liability coverage, competitive position could |
weakened by the amount of money we could be redjtirpay to compensate those injured by our predudte have product liability covere
with St. Paul Insurance Company covering up to &1@,000 per occurrence, with coverage up to $1100@0in the aggregate. Each clair
subject to a $25,000 deductible. We have not hgdeoduct liability claims.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
Not applicable and none.
Item 2. Properties.

Our 22,500 square foot headquarters is located BtL®bo Lane, on 35 acres, which we own, overlogkiake Lewisville in Little
Elm, Texas. The headquarters are in good conditimhhouse our administrative offices and manufawfacility. The manufacturing facili
produced approximately 32.0% of the units that wsalel in 2009. We placed a 47,250 square foot narse in service in March 2005
expanded it (by an additional 47,250 feet) in 2009the event of a disruption in service of outside supplier, Double Dove, we believe
could produce quantities sufficient to meet demander current circumstances except for demand.&mD, 5mL, and 10mL syringes whi
are sold principally in the international markéh that event, we would attempt to engage anoth&mnufacturer. We are currently utilizi
approximately 51% of our current U.S. productivpazity.

We obtained a loan from 1st International Bank {‘'lh¢ernational”)for $2,500,000, secured by the land and existinfgimgs, whict
provided funding for the construction of the 47,Zs{uare foot warehouse placed in service in 200% proceeds from the loan were use
pay off the remaining $475,000 of the revolvingditeagreement with 1st International in additionftmding the warehouse and rele
infrastructure. The payments for the permanentifugn are based on a twenty-year amortization wiffveryear maturity. Interest rates
based on the amount of funds kept on deposit vighttank. Accordingly, interest will vary from thgall Street Journal Prime Rate (
“WSJPR”)to the WSJPR plus 1%, with floors that may rangenfi4.25% to 6.50%. Compensating balances at festnitional affecting tt
interest rate will range from $0 to $500,000. Tben had a maturity date in late March 2010. \Wecgpate refinancing this loan.

On August 29, 2008, we obtained a $4,210,000 mtexnstruction loan from Lewisville State Bank, igiglon of 1st Internation
Bank. The purpose of the loan was to expand theheaise, including additional office space, andstmict a new Controlled Environme
The interest rate was WSJPR plus 0.25%. The lasrenewed on December 10, 2009 with a 20 yearteation and 10 year maturity. T
interest rate is 5.968%. The construction projast hkeen completed.

In the opinion of Management, the property and apeint are suitable for their intended use and dexjaately covered by
insurance policy.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

On August 12, 2005, we filed a lawsuit against Abl@boratories (“Abbott”)in the U.S. District Court in the Eastern Distraf
Texas, Texarkana Division. We are alleging frand breach of contract in connection with the Natidviarketing and Distribution Agreem:«
dated as of May 4, 2000, which was terminated otol@r 15, 2003. We are seeking damages which tiraate to be in millions of dollars
lost profits, out of pocket expenses, and otheratgs. In addition, we are seeking punitive damages and posjadgment interest, al
attorneys’ fees. Following Abbo#t’unsuccessful attempt to get the case dismisseécrtered to arbitration, Abbott filed an answed
counterclaim on July 15, 2008, alleging severabbhes of contract, breach of implied warranty ofrghantability, and breach of expr
warranty, seeking in excess of $6,000,000 in corspimy damages as well as seeking attorneys’ féés.deny the validity of Abboft’
counterclaims. Discovery has already taken plawk ia substantially completed. The District Coligis issued a revised scheduling ¢
calling for trial in May 2010.

In April 2008, we sued OMI in the U.S. District Gofor the Eastern District of Texas, Tyler Divisicalleging that OMI had infringt
two U.S. patents (6,572,584 and 7,351,224). We alkeged theft of confidential information, intemtal interference with contracts, ¢
engaging in false advertising that wrongfully disgged and mischaracterized our syringe products. fther alleged that OMI made fe
allegations regarding the source of origin of #$esy syringe products being offered in the U.Sh @ecember 18, 2009, the jury delivere
verdict in our favor on our patent infringement anidappropriation of trade secrets claims agaifdt. GOn March 4, 2010, the Court entere
final judgment and ordered that we recover damagesprejudgment interest from OMI based on GMitisappropriation of trade secrets in
amount of $3,153,575. In addition, the Court esden permanent injunction enjoining OMI, its mamtdigers, distributors and serv
providers from infringing our patent no. 6,572,58¢,making, importing, selling, or using any of OBIkyringes in the U.S. and its territori
OMI has entered into an administrative proceedmdustralia which is the equivalent of bankruptoydadas filed a similar proceeding in
Eastern District of Texas, which make the actuebvery of the damages unlikely.

In June 2007, we sued BD in the U.S. District Cdartthe Eastern District of Texas, Marshall Divisj alleging infringement of thr
patents (5,578,011; 5,632,733; and 6,090,077) aoldtions by BD of the federal and state antitrlasts, and of the Lanham Act. \
subsequently dropped the 5,578,011 patent allegafiom the lawsuit. In January 2008, the Couvesed the patent claims from the o
claims pending resolution of the patent dispute.April 2008, we and Thomas J. Shaw sued BD inUt®. District Court for the Easte
District of Texas, Marshall Division, alleging iiMigement of another recently issued patent (7,220,2BD counterclaimed for non-
infringement and invalidity of the asserted patefihe Court consolidated this case with the alsiaged case filed in June 2007.
November 9, 2009, the jury returned a verdict firgdihat the patents asserted by us were validréridded by BD and awarded $5,000,00
damages. No final judgment has been enteredsrctiie. We are seeking injunctive relief.

In September 2007, BD and MDC Investment Holditgs, (“MDC”) sued us in the United States District Court for Baester
District of Texas, Texarkana Division, initiallylagjing that we are infringing two U.S. patents ob® (6,179,812 and 7,090,656) that
licensed to BD. BD and MDC seek injunctive religfdaunspecified damages. We counterclaimed foradatibns of nonnfringement
invalidity, and unenforceability of the assertedepés. The plaintiffs subsequently dropped alliegat with regard to patent no. 7,090,656
we subsequently dropped our counterclaims for woregébility of the asserted patents. The Courtlooted a claims construction hearing
September 25, 2008 and issued its claims congtruotider on November 14, 2008. No trial date rentset.

In September 2008, we and Thomas J. Shaw suedy3déstical International (“SMI”)in the United States District Court for
Eastern District of Texas, Tyler Division, allegimgfringement of U.S. patent nos. 6,572,584 andX,&4, and seeking injunctive rel
unspecified monetary damages, and reimbursemerdttofneys’ fees. SMI has counterclaimed, seekiagladatory judgments of non-
infringement and invalidity of the asserted paten®MI is not seeking monetary damages. SMI hiasl fior bankruptcy, and this lawsi
including all claims and counterclaims, was dismisas a result of those proceedings, which haveladad.
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PART I
Iltem 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases ofdtiity Securities.
MARKET INFORMATION
Our Common Stock has been listed on the NYSE Ammdenithe symbol “RVP%Since May 4, 2001. Our closing price on Marc

2010, was $1.48 per share. Shown below are the dmgl low sales prices of our Common Stock as tegdry the NYSE Amex for ea
quarter of the last two fiscal years:

2009 High Low
Fourth Quarte $2.13 $1.35
Third Quartel $2.95 $0.68
Second Quarte $0.98 $0.60
First Quarte $0.90 $0.43

2008 High Low
Fourth Quarte $1.46 $0.45
Third Quartel $1.60 $1.20
Second Quarte $1.68 $1.22
First Quarte $2.00 $1.30

SHAREHOLDERS

As of March 1, 2010, there were 23,825,149 shafgdommmon Stock held by 262 shareholders of recatdincluding shareholde
who beneficially own Common Stock held in nomineéstreet name.”

DIVIDENDS
We have not ever declared or paid any dividendthenCommon Stock. We have no current plans togugycash dividends on |
Common Stock. We intend to retain all earninggegk those required to be paid to the holders efRtfeferred Stock as resources alloy

support operations and future growth. Dividends @smmon Stock cannot be paid so long as preferiedleshds are unpaid. As
December 31, 2009, there was an aggregate of $iili@n in preferred dividends in arrears.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Seeltem 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Omers and Management and Related Stockholder Matterfor a char
describing compensation plans under which equityisies are authorized.

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH
The following graph compares the cumulative togalim for our Common Stock from December 31, 2@0Bé¢cember 31, 2009, to -
total returns for the Russell Microc&p and Becitkinson and Company (or “BDX"g peer issuer. The graph assumes an investrr
$100 in the aforementioned equities as of Decer@beR004, and that all dividends are reinvested.
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COMPARISON OF FIVE YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
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RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

None
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSUER AND REIATED PURCHASERS

No repurchases were made in the fourth quarte009€2
Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected financial data is qualifiegt reference to, and should be read in conjunctiith, our audited financi
statements and the notes to those statementslandgement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operation:
appearing elsewhere herein. The selected Statero&@perations data presented below for the yeded December 31, 2006 and 2005
the Balance Sheet data as of December 31, 2008, 200 2005 have been derived from our auditechéii@ statements, which are
included herein.

(In thousands except for earnings per share, shamdspercentages)*

As of and for the Years Ended December 3:

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Sales, ne $ 38,98: $ 27,89¢ % 26,29C $ 20,897 $ 21,157
Reimbursed discoun — — — 4,42 3,07¢
Total sales 38,98: 27,89¢ 26,29( 25,32« 24,23t
Cost of sale: 25,46¢ 19,67 18,30( 17,77¢ 15,42¢
Gross profi 13,51¢ 8,22¢ 7,99( 7,54¢ 8,80¢
Total operating expens 26,817 18,67 17,93¢ 14,26! 11,68
Loss from operation (13,29¢) (10,44 (9,946 (6,71%) (2,877)
Interest incom: 58 85E 1,87( 1,97¢ 1,37:
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As of and for the Years Ended December 3:

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Interest expense, n (22) (54) (326) (411) (340)
Loss before income taxi (13,260 (9,649 (8,402 (5,150 (1,849
Benefit for income taxe (3,839) — (1,459 (1,280) (60€)
Net loss (9,427 (9,644 (6,94%) (3,870 (1,239
Preferred Stock dividend requireme (1,37) (1,379 (1,399 (1,457 (1,509
Earnings (loss) applicable to common

shareholder $ (10,799 $ (11,019 $ (8,347) $ (5,32) $ (2,74)
Earnings (loss) per sha— basic anc

diluted $ (0.4%) $ (0.46) $ (0.35) $ (0.29) $ (0.12)
Weighted average shares outstanc 23,806,53 23,794,56 23,727,02 23,591,99 23,332,27
Current assel $ 39,26: $ 43,61: $ 51,91¢ $ 57,78. $ 61,48:
Current liabilities $ 13,19%¢ $ 10,23¢ % 8,78¢ $ 6,891 $ 5,45¢
Property, plant, and equipment, | $ 14,23: % 14,43¢ $ 11,48 % 12,21 $ 11,92¢
Total asset $ 53,94, $ 58,563¢ $ 64,33( $ 70,79 % 73,75¢
Long-term debt, net of current

maturities $ 4,82 % 6,09¢ $ 3,741 $ 4,137 % 4,351
Stockholder’ equity $ 35,92( % 42,20¢  $ 51,761 $ 59,71( $ 63,23¢
Redeemable Preferred Stock (in sha 2,285,261 2,285,261 2,329,911 2,441,16! 2,498,66!
Cash dividends per common sh $ — 3 — 3 — $ — 3 —
Gross profit margit 34.1% 29.5% 30.2% 29.8% 36.2%
* Events that could affect the tremagicated above include receipt of royalties froMMD, continued reductions in manufactur

costs, continued increasing average sales pribesgaining of market access, and protection of gatents. We have been successf
protecting our patents, most recently against BD @MI. (seeltem 3. Legal Proceedings). As our products are made from petrol
products, the changing cost of oil and transpanmathay have an impact on our costs to the exteméases may not be recoverable thre
price increases of our products and reductionsilipreces may not quickly affect petroleum prodycices. Sales to the DHHS compri
52.0% and 24.4% of our revenues for the three nsoattd twelve months ended December 31, 2009, ridgggc This program, which wi
estimated to run from August 2009 through March@@hded in December 2009. We do not know if thnéilebe a similar program in 2010.

Item 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operation.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT WARNING

Certain statements included by reference in tHiadficontaining the words “could,” “may,” “believgs“anticipates,” “intends,
“expects,” and similar such words constitute fordvknoking statements within the meaning of the Pav&ecurities Litigation Reform Ac
Any forwardiooking statements involve known and unknown riskagcertainties, and other factors that may causeastual result
performance, or achievements to be materially diffe from any future results, performance, or aghigents expressed or implied by <
forwarddooking statements. Such factors include, amotgrst our ability to maintain liquidity, our maint@nce of patent protection,
impact of current litigation (as it affects our toss well as market access), our ability to mainfavorable supplier arrangements
relationships, our ability to receive royaltiesfr@TMD, our ability to quickly
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increase capacity in response to an increase irademour ability to access the market, our abtlitymaintain or lower production costs,
ability to continue to finance research and develept as well as operations and expansion of pramydhe increased interest of larger ms
players, specifically BD, in providing devices toetsafety market, and other factors referencetteim 1A. Risk Factors. Given thes
uncertainties, undue reliance should not be placefbrward-looking statements.

OVERVIEW

We have been manufacturing and marketing our ptsdoto the marketplace since 1997. We curremttyide other safety medic
products in addition to safety syringe productsie@uch product is the Patient S&feyringe, which is uniquely designed to reduce thle o
bloodstream infections resulting from catheter lwoimtamination. Patient Safe s unique luer guard reduces the risk of luer tiptao
contamination and the risk of contamination ofarnous fluid. Safety syringes comprised 98.9%unfsales in 2009.

Historically, unit sales have increased in theelaftart of the year due, in part, to the demands§oinges during the flu season.
expect the Swine Flu to have a longer worldwide imimation duration than the seasonal flu. In thiedtquarter of 2009, we were awarde
contract by the DHHS to supply a portion of theesaEngineered syringes to be used in the U.Srteffo vaccinate the U.S. population age
the Swine Flu. The impact on us was material et the DHHS comprised 52.0% and 24.4% of owsmegs for the three months and tw
months ended December 31, 2009, respectively. gisigram, which was estimated to run from Augugi®€hrough March 2010, endec
December 2009. Our revenue increased 142.1% ifotiréh quarter principally due to the DHHS contra@e do not know if there will be
similar program in 2010.

Our products have been and continue to be dis&iboationally through numerous distributors. Hogrewe have been blocked fr
access to the market by exclusive marketing prestngaged in by BD, which dominates the markeg. bélieve that its monopolistic busin
practices continue despite: (i) its paying $100lionl in 2004 to settle a prior lawsuit with us fanticompetitive practices, busin
disparagement, and tortious interference andh@)fact that a jury returned a verdict in Novem2@09 finding that all three patents asserte
us against BD are valid and infringed by BD (widgard to its Integrd" product). Although we have made limited progressome area
such as the alternate care and international markat volumes are not as high as they should yenghe nature and quality of our prodi
and the federal and state legislation requiringues of safe needle devices.

We continue to pursue various strategies to hatterb&ccess to the hospital market, as well asratfzekets, including attempting
gain access to the market through our sales effoutsinnovative technology, introduction of nevagucts, and, when necessary, litigation.
are also marketing more products internationally.

We sued OMI in April 2008 and separately sued BDune 2007 for claims of patent infringement (Kem 3. Legal Proceedings,
and in December 2009 and November 2009, respegtiseth companies were found to infringe our patefithese judgments could incre
demand for our product. However, there is no aswg when or if such increase will occur.

Beginning in 2004, we were given an award (from PATo supply syringes to various African countrigsder the Presiderst’
Emergency Plan for AIDS relief (PEPFAR). Awardsrgased significantly from 2004 to 2007. The cummdition of PEPFAR has be
reauthorized by Congress through 2013. Howevedifig for the procurement of safety syringes is fiiogram has not occurred to date.

As a result of the introduction of VanishPofhtsyringes through the PEPFAR initiative, African nties have begun to proci
products outside of the U.S.-funded program. I1872ahe Director General of Niger&aNational Agency for Food and Drug Administra
and Control (NAFDAC), endorsed automated retractigringes for use throughout Nigeria. We are aulyeselling syringes to a Nigeri
distributor for use in that country. At the end2ff08, the Deputy Prime Minister of Namibia alsdlpzally endorsed automated retrac
syringes as a public intervention that would “pobteealth workers and save their patient’s lives”.
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The number of international distributors contintescrease.

In the event we continue to have only limited marlecess, the cash provided by the litigation eeitints and generated fr
operations becomes insufficient, and royalties fBRMD are not forthcoming, we would take additibnast cutting measures to reduce «
requirements. Such measures could result in thect®n of units being produced, the reduction afrkforce, the reduction of salaries
officers and other nonhourly employees, and therdaff of royalty payments. We took such actionthatend of the second quarter of 2009.

At the end of the second quarter of 2009, we ancedrthat in the interest of the lotgrm survival of the Company we wo
reorganize some of the Compasyunctions and implement staff reductions, albider to minimize our cash expenditures and comsen
resources. Our workforce was reduced by 16% on1Jue009. However, due to the expected increaggdaduction from sales to DHHS,
increased the workforce at the Little EIm facilifgginning in the latter part of the third quarté2609. The rehiring only slightly affected 1
prior estimate that annual compensation costs alated expenses would be reduced by $2.1 millioualty due to the layoffs. An anticipa
reduction of inventory was estimated (at the tirhthe announcement) to result in a minimum of $hilion reduction in cash outlays over
subsequent twelve months. However, due to therefdem the DHHS, that particular initiative is bnld. Our President and CEO, Thomg
Shaw, waived future royalty payments beginning Julg009, for an aggregate savings of $1.0 millidrich affected royalty payments (i
expenses) in the third and fourth quarter of 2088@laries for all personnel above a certain sdkargl were cut by 10% in 2009 (subjec
contract rights). Such reduction, along with digttwuing the 401(k) matching, was estimated to s#660,000. We expect to save
additional $1.6 million by the following actions:aving most, if not all, of the molding of piece fmback to Little EIm; reducing professio
fees; and various other cost cutting measuresfegsional fees have been reduced and we have lelglitonal molding in Little EIm. The
measures will remain in place as long as Managedeshs them necessary.

We recorded a $200,000 charge in the second quar@009 for severance pay offered to the termohamployees. All severar
payments were paid in the third quarter of 2009.ik¢arred a noncash expense of $2.1 million relé&etthe issuance of stock options, mo:
which will be fully amortized by the third quartef 2010. We wrote off approximately $2.6 million in developnt costs related to t
catheters.

We are focusing on methods of upgrading our manuifeag capability and efficiency in order to redumests. We believe our curr
capitalization provides the resources necessaignpbement some of these changes and improve ouufaeturing capacity and efficient
thereby reducing our unit cost.

Product purchases from Double Dove, a Chinese maatwrer, have enabled us to increase manufacteepgcity with little capit:
outlay and have provided a competitive manufactugost. In 2009, Double Dove manufactured appraxéty 67.5% of the units \
produced. The cost of production per unit has gdlyedeclined as volumes increased. We believeaidd make up any lontgrm disruptio
in these supplies by utilizing more of the capaeitythe Little EIm facility, except for the 0.5mhsulin syringe, the 5mL and 10mL syring
and the autodisable syringe which altogether casegrabout 3.8% of our 2009 revenues.

We previously entered into a License Agreement BiltMD as of May 13, 2005. That license expiredMay 13, 2008 (prior to tf
manufacture and delivery of any products). Newdetss, BTMD continued to work toward completing fhaeility and gaining the necess
approvals in order to manufacture and sell produ@tse facility has been completed and BTMD has @lg@hese Government requiremet
BTMD received a Registration Certificate for Medi€evice on August 24, 2009. Production efforte aurrently underway and are be
tested. We entered into a new agreement (effeasvef July 1, 2009) with BTMD along similar terms the prior agreement. This agreer
expires on July 1, 2010 which may automaticallyeast under certain conditions. Such terms includeting to BTMD a limited exclusi
license to manufacture and a limited exclusivetrigtsell syringes in the PRC having retractabledtes that incorporate our technology. -
License Agreement is subject to the Technology hseeAgreement dated June 23, 1995 between Mr. Thdm@haw, our founder and Cl
as licensor, and the Company, as licensee (as adgndéccordingly, Mr. Shaw will receive 5% of tlieensing proceeds we receive. BTI
has agreed to manufacture and sell these produtkeiPRC and to pay us a quarterly royalty of &md onehalf cents per unit on 3mL a
5mL syringes and a royalty of three and dwadf- cents per unit on 0.5mL, 1mL, and 10mL syrigdhe obligation to pay the royall
continues even if
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any and all of our patent rights in the PRC arentbto be invalid or unenforceable for any reas@re still continue to expect royalty payme
although we are unable to predict the date welvedjin to receive such royalties.

With increased volumes, our manufacturing unit etstve generally tended to decline. Factors thatdcaffect our unit costs inclu
increases in costs by third party manufactureranging production volumes, costs of petroleum petaluand transportation costs. Increas
such costs may not be recoverable through price@ses of our products.

We completed the expansion of an existing warehaugee first quarter of 2009. This expansion @ased our warehouse a
provided for additional office space, and adde@@ad Controlled Environment. The additional Colfeid Environment will enable us to
more molding in-house.

LIQUIDITY

At the present time, Management does not intemdige equity capital. Due to the funds receivednfiprior litigation settlements, \
have sufficient cash reserves and intend to relggmrations, cash reserves, and debt financinigeagrimary ongoing sources of cash.

Historical Sources of Liquidity

We have historically funded operations primarilgrir the proceeds from revenues, private placemieatss, and litigation settlemer

Internal Sources of Liquidity
Margins and Market Acce:

To achieve break even quarters, we need minimasaco hospital markets which has been difficutlitain due to the monopolis
marketplace which was the subject of our initiaédait and now also included in our second antitttaxssuit against BD.We will continue ti
attempt to gain access to the market through des sfforts, innovative technology, the introduntiof new products, and, when neces:
litigation.

We are focusing on methods of upgrading our manurfexgy capability and efficiency in order to redumests. We believe our curre
capitalization provides the resources necessaignpbement some of these changes and improve ouufaeturing capacity and efficient
thereby reducing our unit cost.

In the third quarter of 2009, w were awarded a contract by the DHHS to supplgrign of the safety engineered syringes to be
in the U.S. efforts to vaccinate the U.S. populatigainst the Swine Flu. The impact on us was niaateSales to the DHHS comprised 52
and 24.4% of our revenues for the three monthshaalve months ended December 31, 2009, respectivilys program, which was estima
to run from August 2009 through March 2010, ende®é&cember 2009. Our revenue increased 142.1%eifourth quarter principally due
the DHHS contract. We do not know if there willdsimilar program in 2010.

Beginning in early 2004, we began to receive shipnod product from Double Dove which enabled udawer our unit costs
Fluctuations in the cost and availability of raw terals and inventory and our ability to maintaevdrable supplier arrangements
relationships could result in the need to manufactll (as opposed to 32.0%) of our products inUt®. This could temporarily increase |
costs as we ramp up domestic production.

The mix of domestic and international sales afftfutsaverage sales price of our products. Gegetak higher the ratio of domes
sales to international sales, the higher the aeessdes price will be. Typically international eslare shipped directly from China to
customer. Purchases of product manufactured ingClii available, usually decrease the average aostanufacture for all units as dome
costs, such as indirect labor and overhead, renaddively constant. The number of units produbgdhe Company versus manufacture
China can have a significant effect on the carryogts of inventory as well as Cost of sales. Vileoantinue to evaluate the appropriate
of products manufactured domestically and thoseuf@atured in China to achieve economic
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benefits as well as to maintain our domestic mastufang capability. Currently, approximately 32.086 our products are produc
domestically.

Fluctuations in the cost of oil (since our produats petroleum based) and transportation and themeoof units purchased frc
Double Dove may have an impact on the unit costuofproduct. Increases in such costs may notteverable through price increases ol
products. Reductions in oil prices may not quickfect petroleum product prices.

Seasonality

Historically, unit sales have increased in theelaftart of the year due, in part, to the demandsfoinges during the flu season.
expect the Swine Flu to have a longer worldwide imiration duration than the seasonal flu.

Licensing Agreemel

We previously entered into a License Agreement BiltMD as of May 13, 2005. That license expiredMay 13, 2008 (prior to tf
manufacture and delivery of any products). Newdetss, BTMD continued to work toward completing faeility and gaining the necess
approvals in order to manufacture and sell produdtse facility has been completed and BTMD has @lg@hese government requiremet
BTMD received a Registration Certificate for Medi€evice on August 24, 2009. Production efforte aurrently underway and are be
tested. We entered into a new agreement (effeasvef July 1, 2009) with BTMD along similar terms the prior agreement. This agreer
expires on July 1, 2010 which may automaticallyeagt under certain conditions. Such terms inclugatirg to BTMD a limited exclusi\
license to manufacture and a limited exclusivetrigtsell syringes in the PRC having retractabledtes that incorporate our technology. -
License Agreement is subject to the Technology hseeAgreement dated June 23, 1995 between Mr. Thdm@haw, our founder and Cli
as licensor, and the Company, as licensee (as adgndccordingly, Mr. Shaw will receive 5% of tlieensing proceeds we receive. BTI
has agreed to manufacture and sell these produtkeiPRC and to pay us a quarterly royalty of &md onehalf cents per unit on 3mL a
5mL syringes and a royalty of three and dwadf- cents per unit on 0.5mL, 1mL, and 10mL syrigd he obligation to pay the royall
continues even if any and all of our patent rightthe PRC are found to be invalid or unenforcedtteany reason. We still continue to exj
royalty payments although we are unable to pretiedate we will begin to receive such royalties.

Cash Requirements

Due to funds received from prior litigation settiemts, we have sufficient cash reserves and intenely on operations, cash reser
and debt financing as the primary ongoing souréesigh. In the event we continue to have onlytchimarket access and cash generated
operations becomes insufficient to support openatiave would take additional cost cutting measuoeseduce cash requirements. S
measures could result in the reduction of unitsigpgroduced, the reduction of workforce, the reidmcof salaries of officers and otl
nonhourly employees, and the deferral of royaltyrpents.

External Sources of Liguidity

We have obtained several loans from our inceptidmich have, together with the proceeds from thessaf equities and litigatit
efforts, enabled us to pursue development and ptmou of our products. Given the current economamditions, our ability to obta
additional funds through loans is uncertain. Femttore, the shareholders previously authorizeddatitianal 5,000,000 shares of a Clas
Preferred Stock that could, if necessary, be deséghand used to raise funds through the salewfyegDue to the current market price of
Common Stock, it is unlikely we would choose teseafunds by the sale of equity. We obtained a foam 1st International for $2,500,0!
secured by the land and existing buildings, whidviged funding for the construction of the 47, Z8uare foot warehouse placed in servit
2005. This loan had a maturity date in late M&0mh0. We anticipate refinancing this loan.
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CAPITAL RESOURCES

Material Commitments for Expenditures

On August 29, 2008, we obtained a $4,210,000 mtexdnstruction loan from Lewisville State Bank, igiglon of 1st Internation.
Bank. The purpose of the loan was to expand theheaise, including additional office space, andstmict a new Controlled Environme
The interest rate was WSJPR plus 0.25%. The lasrenewed on December 10, 2009 with a 20 yearteaton and 10 year maturity. T
interest rate is 5.968%. The construction projest freen completed.

Trends in Capital Resources

Interest expense will increase due to the recentdd approximately $4.2 million, but will be somewhmitigated by lower borrowir
rates if current conditions in the credit marketsitue. Interest income may be negatively afiédig lower interest rates and our p
movement of cash to U.S. Treasury bills and oth&. ldovernment backed securitie®lthough we believe that we have granted crec
credit-worthy firms, current economic conditionsyngfect the timing and/or collectability of somecaunts.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion contains trend informatiand other forwardeoking statements that involve a number of risks
uncertainties. Our actual future results couldedifnaterially from our historical results of opgoas and those discussed in the forward-
looking statements. All period references areunfiscal years ended December 2009, 2008, or 2@Xilar amounts have been roundec
ease of reading.

Comparison of Year Ended
December 31, 2009, and Year Ended December 31, 2008

Revenues increased 39.7%, due principally to sateter the DHHS contract. Domestic sales were 88cf%evenues wit
international sales comprising the remainder. Withthe DHHS contract, our revenues would haveemsed 5.6%, with domestic rever
increasing 7.3% and international revenues dedir8r0%. Unit sales of the 1mL syringe increasedl%/and 3mL unit sales increa
54.3%. Unit sales of all products increased 27.3&mestic unit sales as well as average salegiitcreased. International unit s
decreased slightly and average selling prices asg@. Sales to two customers accounted for 38f4%raevenues in 2009. Only one of tt
two customers was a customer in 2008, and sucbmestaccounted for 17.1% of our revenues in 2008.

Cost of sales increased due to greater volumegalfyaexpenses were higher due to higher gross.sale
As a result, gross profit margins increased fron5%2®in 2008 to 34.7% in 2009.

Operating expenses increased from the prior yeautallitigation costs and stock option expensegatgd by the cost cutting measl
beginning in the third quarter of 2009.

Sales and marketing expenses decreased due pyin@aribwer compensation due to staff reduction aaduction in pay, low:
advertising expenses and reduced travel costxk 8ftion expense and consulting costs increased.

Research and development costs were lower. Wedbakases in engineering costs due principallyetiuction in staff and pay
well as lower consulting cost. Stock option exgeimereased.

General and administrative costs increased dueipélty to litigation costs and stock option expen€ompensation costs decre:
due to staff reductions and reductions in pay.

Preferred Stock dividend requirements decreasghttblidue to conversion of preferred stock in tingt fquarter of 2008. The divide
arrearage at December 31, 2009, on all classesetdrRed Stock was approximately $15.3 million.
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Interest income decreased due to lower interess ramd lower cash balances. Interest expenseadecdrelue to capitalized intere
Interest expense is expected to increase in 20&@alcompletion of significant capital project2@09 for which interest was being capitaliz

Cash flow from operations was a negative $12.3ionilfor 2009 due principally to operating lossed arcreases in receivables. V
of the increase in receivables was related tonlifliin December 2009 to DHHS and collected in J3n2@10. The increase in income te
receivable is related to a refund for carrybaclowf 2009 net operating loss. We will file for tmefund early in the second quarter of 2C
The effect of noreash expenses and the change in working capitabwagative $2.9 million. Investing activitiesliagd $2.4 million in cast

Comparison of Year Ended
December 31, 2008, and Year Ended December 31, 2007

Revenues increased 6.1%, due principally to higlverage sales prices and greater volumes. Donszdés were 83.3% of reven
with international sales comprising the remaindenit sales of the 1mL syringe increased 22.7% &mdl unit sales decreased 4.0%. |
sales of all products increased 3.1%. Domestitsailes as well as average sales prices incredstgnational unit sales and average se
prices declined. Sales to one distributor accalifae17.1% and 13.7% of our revenues in 2008 &4¥ 2respectively.

Cost of sales increased due to higher manufactwirsgs and higher volumes. Royalty expenses wigteehdue to an increase
gross revenues.

As a result, gross profit margins declined from486.in 2007 to 29.5% in 2008.

Operating expenses increased from the prior yeartduhigher general and administrative expemségated by lower Sales a
marketing and Research and development costs.

Sales and marketing expenses decreased due pyintariteduced travel and entertainment, trade shand market expen
compensation and office supplies. Consulting egpeaiso decreased.

Research and development costs were flat. We barkases in engineering costs due principally ghdr costs of validation a
engineering samples offset by higher compensatistsc

General and administrative costs increased dueipehy to increased legal costs (including a settnt of litigation whereby v
obtained a patent license/assignment), office esgggncompensation, property taxes and freight cdsvel and entertainment costs and
to distributors decreased.

Preferred Stock dividend requirements decreasedalgenversion of Preferred Stock to Common Sto€tke dividend arrearage
December 31, 2008, on all classes of PreferreckStas approximately $13.9 million.

Interest income decreased due to lower interess i@dd cash balances. Interest expense decraseséal [dwer interest rates mitiga
by higher debt balances and capitalized interestcipally due to the construction of the warehouse

Other accrued liabilities increased due to prepaysmfom international customers.

Cash flow from operations was a negative $5.7 amlfior 2008 due principally to our losses. Thesefffof noneash expenses and
change in working capital was a positive $4.0 miili Investing activities utilized $2.2 million @ash.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
None.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following chart summarizes our material obligas and commitments to make future payments ucaietracts for longerm dek
as of December 31, 2009:

Payments Due by Perioc

Less More

Than 1-3 35 Than 5
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year Years Years Years
Long-term debt, including current maturiti $ 750578 $ 265957 $ 988,74¢ $ 273,36t $ 3,584,10.

These amounts do not reflect the effect of the fi@ak conversion feature and therefore will be ajez than the amounts in
financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We consider the following to be our most significascounting policies. Careful consideration aaediew is given to these and
accounting policies on a routine basis to ensuaettiey are accurately and consistently applied.

Accounts Receivable

We record trade receivables when revenue is rezedniNo product has been consigned to custom@us.allowance for doubtf
accounts is primarily determined by review of sfiedrade receivables. Those accounts that ardtfiduof collection are included in t
allowance. An additional allowance has been eistaddl based on a percentage of receivables outstan@hese provisions are reviewet
determine the adequacy of the allowance for doulstfgounts. Trade receivables are charged off where is certainty as to their be
uncollectible. Trade receivables are considerdidgieent when payment has not been made withinraohterms.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized for sales to distributorsnwiitte and risk of ownership passes to the distob generally upon shipmel
Revenue is recorded on the basis of sales prickstdbutors, less contractual pricing allowanc&ontractual pricing allowances consis
(i) rebates granted to distributors who provideknag reports which show, among other things, thality that purchased the products,
(i) a provision for estimated contractual priciapwances for products that we have not receivacking reports. Rebates are recorded \
issued and are applied against the custasmeceivable balance. The provision for contrdqtudaing allowances is reviewed at the end of «
quarter and adjusted for changes in levels of prtedior which there is no tracking report. Additédly, if it becomes clear that tracking rep
will not be provided by individual distributors,afprovision is further adjusted. The estimatedramtual allowance is netted against indivi
distributors’ accounts receivable balances for financial repgrpnrposes. The resulting net balance is refleatedccounts receivable
accounts payable, as appropriate. The terms anditmms of contractual pricing allowances are gaeel by contracts between us and
distributors. Revenue for shipments directly td-esers is recognized when title and risk of owngrglasses from us. Any product shippe
distributed for evaluation purposes is expensed.

Our domestic return policy is set forth in our stard Distribution Agreement. This policy providdsat a customer may rett
incorrect shipments within 10 days following artied the distributoss facility. In all such cases the distributor mabtain an authorizatic
code from us and affix the code to the returnedipca We will not accept returned goods withouetirned goods authorization number.
may refund the customer’s money or replace theumrochinus a 10% restocking fee and all applicatd@ght charges.

Our return policy also provides that a customer medyrn product that is overstocked. Overstocketgrns are limited to two times
each 12 month period up to 1% of distribusaidtal purchase of products for the prior 12 mqguehiod. All product overstocks and returns
subject to inspection and acceptance by manufacture
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Our international Distribution Agreements do natyide for any returns.

We record an allowance for estimated returns &slaation to accounts receivable and gross saléesoritally, returns have been |
than 0.5% of net sales.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or ragrith cost being determined using actual avecagt. A reserve is established
any excess or obsolete inventories.

Marketing Fees

Under a sales and marketing agreement with Ablegt,paid marketing fees until we terminated the xamttfor breach. Tt
contracted services were to include participatiopromotional activities, development of educati@aral promotional materials, represents
at trade shows, clinical demonstrations, insergicamd training, and tracking reports detailing gi@cement of our products to enders
Marketing fees were accrued at the time of the shlgroduct to Abbott. These fees were paid aftiebott provided us a tracking report
product sales to enagsers. These costs were included in Sales andetiraglexpense in the Statements of Operationsmbldeting fees ha'
been accrued since October 15, 2003, the date dtierdl Marketing and Distribution Agreement witlbldott was terminated. We filed <
against Abbott in August 2005 for breach of contead trial is scheduled for May 2010. We do nqgiext the eventual liability for marketi
fees, if any, to exceed the amount accrued.

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk.
We believe that our market risk exposures regardingcash and cash equivalents are immaterial adongot have instruments
trading purposes. We shifted the bulk of our fuiit® U.S. Treasury bills and other U.S. governmiatked securities in April 200

Additionally, reasonable, possible near-term charigenarket rates or prices will not result in nigtlechanges in near-term losses in earnings.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindgrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Retractable Technologies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheeRewctable Technologies, Inc. as of December BD92and 2008, and the rela
statements of operations, changes in stockhol@eypsity, and cash flows for each of the three yaathe period ended December 31, 2(
Our audits also included the financial statemehedale of Retractable Technologies, Inc., listettém 15(a). These financial statements
financial statement schedule are the responsilafithe Company management. Our responsibility is to expresgpamon on these financ
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighalaUnited States). Those stand
require that we plan and perform the audit to obta@asonable assurance about whether the finast@ééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, onsa b&sis, evidence supporting the amounts andodises in the financial statements.
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesiused and significant estimates made by maragems well as evaluating the ove
financial statement presentation. We believe thiataudits provide a reasonable basis for our opini

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respect® financial position of Retractal
Technologies, Inc. as of December 31, 2009 and 2898 the results of its operations and its cashdlfor each of the three years in the pe
ended December 31, 2009 in conformity with U.S.egally accepted accounting principles. Also, im opinion, the related financial staterr
schedule when considered in relation to the basim€ial statements taken as a whole, presentg faiall material respects the information
forth therein.

We were not engaged to examine management’s assatibut the effectiveness of the Comparigiternal control over financial reporting
of December 31, 2009 included in Item 9A of the @amy’s December 31, 2009 Form KOand, accordingly, we do not express an opi
thereon.

/sl CF & Co., L.L.P
CF &Co., L.L.P.

Dallas, Texa:
March 31, 201(
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2009 2008
ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $ 18,126,08 $ 33,283,74
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $681,966 and $499,966, respecti 9,948,211 3,288,94.
Inventories, ne 6,907,36! 6,641,53.
Income taxes receivab 3,655,63 —
Other current asse 624,39: 400,11:
Total current asse 39,261,69 43,614,32
Property, plant, and equipment, | 14,234,18 14,435,66
Intangible assets, n 426,67" 470,11¢
Other asset 18,75( 18,75(
Total asset $ 53,941,29 $ 58,538,85
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 6,997,311 $ 6,144,43!
Current portion of lon-term debit 2,628,65: 451,86"
Accrued compensatic 561,48« 650,70«
Marketing fees payabl 1,419,761 1,419,76!
Accrued royalties to shareholde 843,32 620,98°
Other accrued liabilitie 745,46( 949,77(
Total current liabilities 13,195,99 10,237,52
Long-term debt, net of current maturiti 4,824,83. 6,095,53!
Total liabilities 18,020,82 16,333,05
Stockholder’ equity:
Preferred Stock $1 par valt
Class B; authorized: 5,000,000 she
Series |, Class B; issued: 1,000,000 shares; oulistg: 144,000 and 144,000 shares, respectivejyiflation preferenc
of $900,000 and $900,000 respective 144,00( 144,00(
Series I, Class B; issued: 1,000,000 shares;andstg: 219,700 and 219,700, respectively (liquaapreference of
$2,746,250 and $2,746,250, respectivi 219,70( 219,70(
Series lll, Class B; issued: 1,160,445 sharestautisng: 130,245 and 130,245 shares, respectiliglyidation
preference of $1,628,063 and $1,628,063, respég}i 130,24! 130,24!
Series IV, Class B; issued: 1,133,800 shares; and#étg: 552,500 and 552,500 shares (liquidatiofepeace of
$6,077,500 and $6,077,500, respectivi 552,50( 552,50(
Series V, Class B; issued 2,416,221 shares; oulisignl,238,821 and 1,238,821 shares, respectiliglyidation
preference of $5,450,812 and $5,450,812, respég}i 1,238,82. 1,238,82:
Common Stock, no par value; authorized: 100,000db@0es; issued and outstanding: 23,825,149 a®d@864 shares,
respectively — —
Additional paic-in capital 57,089,15 53,952,18
Retained defici (23,453,94 ) (14,031,64)
Total stockholder equity 35,920,47 42,205,80:
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 5394129 § 58,538,85

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Sales, ne
Cost of Sale:
Costs of manufactured prodt
Royalty expense to sharehold
Total cost of sale
Gross profi

Operating expense
Sales and marketir
Research and developms
General and administratiy
Impairment of asse
Total operating expens:
Loss from operation

Interest and other incon
Interest expense, n
Loss before income tax
Benefit for income taxe
Net loss
Preferred Stock dividend requireme
Net loss applicable to common shareholc

Loss per shar

Weighted average common shares outstan

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
$ 3898183 $ 2789931 $  26,289,72
22,659,43 17,504,84 16,212,60
2,806,22; 2,168,26: 2,087,591
25,465,66 19,673,11 18,300,20
13,516,17 8,226,20: 7,089,51
4,372,16. 4,835,27 5,299,15
1,030,62; 1,066,06: 1,071,14:
18,814,39 12,769,77 11,565,14
2,594,60: — —
26,811,77 18,671,11 17,935,44
(13,295,60 ) (10,444,90 ) (9,945,92)
57,60« 855,68t 1,870,51;
(21,89:) (54,35¢) (326,30:)
(13,259,89 ) (9,643,58) (8,401,72)
(3,837,591) _ (1,453,61)
(9,422,301) (9,643,58) (6,948,10.)
(1,370,86:) (1,373,01') (1,399,06:)
$ (10,793,16) $ (11,01659) $ _ (8,347,16)
$ (0.45) $ (0.4€) $ (0.3¢)
23,806,53 23,794,56 23,727,02

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Series | Class B Series Il Class B Series Ill Class B Series IV Class B Series V Class B Common
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount

Balance as of
December
31, 200€ 164,000 $164,00( 224,700  $224,701 135,24  $135,24! 553,50( $553,500 1,363,72. $1,363,72 23,644,166 $ —

Conversion o
Preferred
Stock into
Common
Stock (20,000 (20,000) (5,000 (5,000 (5,000 (5,000 — — (81,25() (81,25() 111,25( —

Recognition of
stock option
compensatio — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _

Dividends
declared and
paid on
Series |
Class B
Preferred
Stock — —_ — — — — — — — — _ _

Dividends
declared and
paid on
Series Il
Class B
Preferred
Stock — —_ — — — — — — — — _ _

Net loss — - — — — — — — — — _ _

Balance as ¢
December
31, 2007 144,00( 144,00( 219,70( 219,70( 130,24¢ 130,24! 553,50( 553,50( 1,282,47. 1,282,47. 23,755,41 —

Conversion o
Preferred
Stock into
Common
Stock — — — — — — (1,000 (1,000 (43,65() (43,65() 44,65( —

Recognition of
stock option
compensatio — — — — — — — _ _ — _ _

Net loss — - — — — — — — — — _ _

Balance as ¢
December
31, 2008€ 144,00( 144,00( 219,70( 219,70( 130,24! 130,24! 552,50( 552,50( 1,238,82: 1,238,82. 23,800,06 —

Recognition of
stock option
exercise — — — — — — — — — — 25,08¢ —

Royalty waiver — — — — — — — — _ — _ _
Recognition of
stock option

compensatio — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _

Net loss — — — — — — — _ _ _ _ _

Balance as ¢

December
31, 200¢ 144,000 _$144,00 219,70(  $219,70! 130,24  $130,24! 552,50( $552,500 1,238,82. $1,238,82 23,825,14 $ —

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Additional Retained

Paid-in Earnings

Capital (Deficit) Total
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 54,709,10 $ 2,560,031 $ 59,710,31
Conversion of Preferred Stock into Common St 111,25( — —
Recognition of stock option compensat 52,17: — 52,17:
Dividends declared and paid on Series | Class BeRsal Stock (262,81¢) — (262,819
Dividends declared and paid on Series Il Classddpred Stocl (790,72%) — (790,72Y)
Net loss — (6,948,10.) (6,948,10.)
Balance as of December 31, 2( 53,818,98 (4,388,061 51,760,83
Conversion of Preferred Stock into Common St 44,65( — —
Recognition of stock option compensat 88,54¢ — 88,54¢
Net loss — (9,643,581) (9,643,58!)
Balance as of December 31, 2( 53,952,18 (14,031,64 ) 42,205,80
Recognition of stock option exerci 25,61( — 25,61(
Royalty waiver 1,000,001 — 1,000,001
Recognition of stock option compensat 2,111,36! — 2,111,36!
Net loss — (9,422,301) (9,422,301)
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 5708915 § (2345394) $ 3592047

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash bgeaperating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Stock option compensatic
Provision for inventory valuatio
Provision for doubtful accoun
Impairment of asse’
Accreted interes
(Increase) decrease in ass
Inventories
Accounts receivabl
Income taxes receivab
Other current asse
Other asset
Increase (decrease) in liabilitie
Accounts payabl
Other accrued liabilitie
Increase (decrease) in income taxes pay

Net cash used by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant, and equiprn
Investment in LLC
Acquisitions of patents, trademarks, licenses,iatahgibles

Net cash used by investing activit

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of lor-term debt and notes payal
Proceeds from lor-term debt
Proceeds from the exercise of stock opti
Payment of Preferred Stock divider

Net cash provided (used) by financing activi

Net decrease in cash and cash equiva
Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of perioc

End of perioc

Supplemental schedule of cash flow informati
Interest paic
Income taxes pai
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing andding activities:
Debt assumed to construct a warehc
Forgiveness of royalties by sharehol

Years Ended December 31

See accompanying notes to financial statements

F-8

2009 2008 2007

$  (9,422,301) $ (9,643,58) $  (6,948,10.)
1,396,79: 1,397,33; 1,430,07;
2,111,36! 32,62¢ 6,47¢
— — 155,60(

182,00( 224,63 169,22:
2,594,60: — —
43,15 54,38’ 120,48(
(265,83") 395,59 (806,94¢)
(6,841,26) (1,845,93") 119,89°
(3,655,63') 2,345,04. 10,69:
(224,28() (41,30¢) (91,100)

— (12,72¢) —

852,87 609,07( 1,287,73!
1,015,50! 798,57 506,38
(86,69¢) — —
(12,299,73 ) (5,686,28) (4,039,58!)
(2,383,86) (2,580,51() (641,507)

— 497,69 —

— (89,15:) (188,16¢)

(2,383,86) (2,171,97:) (829,66¢)
(499,66¢) (489,16() (384,46()

— 1,123,72! —

25,61( — —

— — (1,053,54.)

(474,059 634,56 (1,438,00.)
(15,157,65') (7,223,69)) (6,307,25!)
33,283,74 40,507,43 46,814,68
$ 18,12608 $ 33,283,74 $ 40,507,43
$ 184,01¢ $ 236,93, $ 382,90:
$ — % — $ —
$ 136260, $ 172327 $ —
$ 1,000,000 $ — % —
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Business of the Company

Retractable Technologies, Inc. (the “Compamygs incorporated in Texas on May 9, 1994, and dasidevelops, manufactures,
markets safety syringes and other safety medicalymts for the healthcare profession. The Comfeggan to develop its manufactur
operations in 1995. The Company’s manufacturindgyasiministrative facilities are located in Littlénk; Texas. The Comparg/priman
products with Notice of Substantial Equivalencehte FDA are the VanishPoifit 0.5mL insulin syringe; 1mL tuberculin, insulin, ¢
allergy antigen syringes; the 0.5mL, 3mL, 5mL, &@L syringes; the small diameter tube adapterptbed collection tube holder; t
allergy tray; the IV safety catheter; and the Rat&afe® syringe.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting prirespl*GAAP”) requires Manageme
to make estimates and assumptions that affecteperted amounts of assets and liabilities and assce of contingent assets
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeaitsi the reported amounts of revenues and expensieg) the reporting period. Actl
results could differ significantly from those estites.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and egsivalents include unrestricted cash, money makeounts, and investments v
original maturities of three months or less.

Accounts receivable

The Company records trade receivables when revenvecognized. No product has been consigned stomers. The Compary’
allowance for doubtful accounts is primarily detered by review of specific trade receivables. Ehascounts that are doubtful
collection are included in the allowance. An aiddial allowance has been established based oncamage of receivables outstandi
These provisions are reviewed to determine thewaingof the allowance for doubtful accounts. Tresleivables are charged off wi
there is certainty as to their being uncollectibleade receivables are considered delinquent vplagment has not been made wi
contract terms.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or ragriwith cost being determined using actual averag. A reserve is established
any excess or obsolete inventories.

Property, plant, and equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are stated at déspenditures for maintenance and repairs are eldatg operations as incurred. C
includes major expenditures for improvements aptaeements which extend useful lives or increapacty and interest cost associ:
with significant capital additions. For the yeasded December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, the Comeapitalized interest
approximately $205,000; $237,000; and $177,000n<5er losses from property disposals are includedcome.

Depreciation and amortization are calculated ufiegstraight-line method over the following usdiués:
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Production equipmet 3to 13 year
Office furniture and equipmel 3to 10 year
Buildings 39 years
Building improvement: 15 years
Automobiles 7 years

Long-lived assets

The Company assesses the recoverability of livagh assets using an assessment of the estimatiscounted future cash flows rele
to such assets. In the event that assets are toube carried at amounts which are in excess torhated gross future cash flows,
assets will be adjusted for impairment to a lewshmensurate with a discounted cash flow analysikefinderlying assets.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiedhform with the current year’s presentation.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost and condgisiagly of patents, a license agreement grantinglusive rights to use paten
technology, and trademarks which are amortizedgutsia straight-line method over 17 years.

Financial instruments

The Company estimates the fair market value ofniiiel instruments through the use of public mankétes, quotes from financ
institutions, and other available information. doeknt is required in interpreting data to develgtineates of market value a
accordingly, amounts are not necessarily indicat’éhe amounts that could be realized in a curraatket exchange. Shagenr
financial instruments, including cash and casheants, accounts receivable, accounts payabletsd liabilities, consist primarily
instruments without extended maturities, the faiue of which, based on Management’s estimatesledoeir recorded values.

Concentration risks

The Companys financial instruments exposed to concentratidnsredit risk consist primarily of cash, cash e@lénts, and accoul
receivable. Cash balances, some of which excetmidlly insured limits, are maintained in finandiadtitutions; however, Managem
believes the institutions are of high credit qualiThe majority of accounts receivable are duenfampanies which are wedktablishe
entities. As a consequence, Management considgrex@posure from concentrations of credit riskbedimited. Two customers, DH}
and Cardinal Health, comprised 68.4% of the Comjmraccounts receivable at December 31, 2009. Thap&oy had a hic
concentration of sales with two significant custesneFor the year ended December 31, 2009, themfamtioned customers accout
for $15.0 million, or 38.4% of net salesSales to the DHHS comprised 52.0% and 24.4% oE€tdmapanys revenues for the three mor
and twelve months ended December 31, 2009, respBctiThis program, which was estimated to run frémgust 2009 throug
March 2010, ended in December 2009. The Compaayg dot know if there will be a similar program 012.

Considering the current economic climate, the Camipacreased its Provision for doubtful accountsapproximately $182,000 tt
year.

The Company manufactures syringes in Little Elmxaleas well as utilizing manufacturers in Chindne Tompany purchases most o
product components from single suppliers, includivggedle adhesives and packaging materials. Tlrerenaltiple sources of the
materials. The Company obtained roughly 67.5%finished products in 2009 through Double Dov€lanese manufacturer. In-
event that the Company becomes unable to purclhabepsoduct from Double Dove, the Company woulddhteefind an alternate
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supplier for its 0.5mL insulin syringe, its 5mL afh@mL syringes, and its autodisable syringe ancese domestic production for 1
and 3mL syringes to avoid a disruption in supply.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized for sales to distributorsnatile and risk of ownership passes to the distdb, generally upon shipmel
Revenue is recorded on the basis of sales pridéestabutors, less contractual pricing allowanc&ntractual pricing allowances con
of: (i) rebates granted to distributors who provitacking reports which show, among other thingge facility that purchased t
products, and (ii) a provision for estimated coctmal pricing allowances for products that the Camp has not received track
reports. Rebates are recorded when issued andpateed against the customerfeceivable balance. The provision for contrd
pricing allowances is reviewed at the end of eacartgr and adjusted for changes in levels of prtsdfar which there is no tracki
report. Additionally, if it becomes clear that dking reports will not be provided by individualsttibutors, the provision is furtr
adjusted. The estimated contractual allowanceeited against individual distributer’accounts receivable balances for final
reporting purposes. The resulting net balanceefieated in accounts receivable or accounts payaseappropriate. The terms
conditions of contractual pricing allowances argegoed by contracts between the Company and itshditors. Revenue for shipme
directly to endusers is recognized when title and risk of owngrgfass from the Company. Any product shipped stributed fo
evaluation purposes is expensed.

The Companys domestic return policy is set forth in its stamgdBistribution Agreement. This policy providestta customer may rett
incorrect shipments within 10 days following arfivat the distributos facility. In all such cases the distributor mudttain al
authorization code from the Company and affix tbdecto the returned product. The Company will aaatept returned goods withot
returned goods authorization number. The Compaay mafund the customer’s money or replace the modu

The Companys return policy also provides that a customer neyrn product that is overstocked. Overstockingrres are limited t
two times in each 12-month period up to 1% of distior's total purchase of products for the pri@-rhonth period. All produ
overstocks and returns are subject to inspectidraaneptance by manufacturer.

The Company'’s international distribution agreemelatsiot provide for any returns.

The Company records an allowance for estimatednetas a reduction to Accounts receivable and Grales. Historically, returns he
been less than 0.5% of net sales.

Marketing fees

Under a sales and marketing agreement with Abbatioktatories (“Abbott”),the Company paid marketing fees until the Com
terminated the contract for breach. The contragevices were to include participation in promoéb activities, development
educational and promotional materials, represeantasit trade shows, clinical demonstrations, insémgi and training, and tracki
reports detailing the placement of the Companytipcts to endisers. Marketing fees were accrued at the timbeokale of product
Abbott. These fees were paid after Abbott providleel Company a tracking report of product salegridusers. These costs w
included in Sales and marketing expense in thee®iants of Operations. No marketing fees have beerued since October 15, 2C
the date the National Marketing and Distributionrégment with Abbott was terminated. The Compafedfisuit against Abbott
August 2005 for breach of contract. The Districdu@ has issued a scheduling order calling forl iraMay 2010. See Note
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES for further discussion.

Litigation Proceeds

Proceeds from litigation, if any, are recognizedewhrealizable. Generally, realization is not reafbyn assured and expected
proceeds are collected.

Income taxes
The Company evaluates tax positions taken or eggetct be taken in a tax return for recognitionhie financial statements basec
whether it is “more-likely-than-not” that a tgposition will be sustained based upon the techmizaits of the position. Measuremen

the tax position is based upon the largest amoiuneioefit that is greater than 50% likely of beneglized upon ultimate settlement.
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The Company provides for deferred income taxesutinautilizing an asset and liability approach frahcial accounting and report
based on the tax effects of differences betweerfittacial statement and tax bases of assets abdities, based on enacted r:
expected to be in effect when such differencesrsevin future periods. Deferred tax assets arogieally reviewed for realizability
The Company had sufficient taxable income from mpdarryback years to realize all of its taxables&sthrough December 31, 20
Taxable losses for 2007 and thereafter are sutjdaiss carryforwards. The Company has establishedluation allowance for its t
deferred tax asset as future taxable income cdmotasonably assured. Penalties and interestaartain tax positions are classifiec
income taxes in the Statements of Operations. Uratent tax law changes, companies are allowezhtry back taxable losses fr
either 2008 or 2009. The Company will file forax trefund utilizing its 2009 taxable losses whiciti vesult in a minimum of a $3
million refund.

Earnings per share

The Company computes basic earnings per sharevimjirdj net earnings for the period (adjusted foy anmulative dividends for tl
period) by the weighted average number of commameshoutstanding during the period. The Compapyptentially dilutive Commc
Stock equivalents, consisting of options, convégtitlebt, and convertible Preferred Stock, are mtilddutive for all periods presente
Accordingly, basic loss per share is equal to ddueéarnings per share. Annual cumulative prefedreidends have been added to
losses for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2002007 to arrive at net loss per share.

Shipping and handling costs

The Company classifies shipping and handling castgart of Cost of sales in the Statements of Gipesa
Research and development costs

Research and development costs are expensed asthcu

Share-based compensation

On September 26, 2008, the Compamshareholders approved the 2008 Stock Optionddralso approved an Offer to Exchange <€
Options (the “Exchange Offer"whereby employees, including executive officersd dbirectors exchanged certain outstan
underwater options for options issued under theB2B@ck Option Plan.Pursuant to th&xchange Offer, eligible participants (total
103) tendered, and the Company accepted for catioal] eligible options to purchase an aggregate 5,365 shares of the Company’
Common Stock representing 99.4% of the total shai€@ommon Stock underlying options eligible to eange in the Exchange Off
The Company issued new options under the 2008 Sigtlon Plan to purchase an aggregate of 962,68Bshof Common Stock
exchange for the cancellation of the tendered optidOptions issued to employees vested after eae yOptions issued to n@mploye:
Directors vested immediately.

Prior to 2008, the Company had issued options utittele stockbased Director, independent contractor and emplopeepensatic
plans as well as several individual option agredmeiwo of these plans and one individual optigreament have terminated and
unissued and unsold stock under these terminatet fflas been deregistered pursuant to Post-Efeativendment No. 1 to Form &-
Registration Statement, filed December 2, 2008.eadier mentioned, in 2008, the 2008 Stock Opften was approved and optir
have been issued under it pursuant to the Exch@ffgr. In July 2009, the Company issued optionstfe purchase of a total
1,886,425 shares to Directors, Executive Officensployees, and consultants under the 2008 Stocloi®ptian. Of this amoul
incentive stock options for the purchase of 269,966res of Common Stock and Non Qualified Stockidbptfor the purchase
229,494 shares of Common Stock were issued to HxecOfficers and Directors. Additionally, in 2008n option to purchase Th
Million (3,000,000) shares issued to Thomas J. Sbatside these plans was approved by shareholders.
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The Company’s share-based payments are accountesifiy the fair value method. The Company receitmebased compensati
expense on a straight-line basis over the requssiteice period. The Company incurred the follayéhare-based compensation costs:

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
Cost of sale: $ 317,64 $ (1,799 $ 6,64¢
Sales and marketir 242 ,50¢ (2,15¢€) 3,08¢
Research and Developme 47,16¢ (28)) (7,867)
General and administratiy 1,504,03! 36,86 4,607
$ 2,111,36! $ 32,62¢ $ 6,47¢

Options awarded to employees in 2009 and 2008 am@tized over twelve months. The Company amattaee months expense fi
options granted in 2008 in the fourth quarter &0 The Company expensed five months of expensepfions issued in 2009. Non-
employee Directors’ option expense was all expeivséie third quarter of 2009.

Recent Pronouncements

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardsr8¢*FASB”) issued Statement of Financial AccongtStandard (“SFAS"No. 168
The FASB Accounting Standards Codificatiéh andHierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Prinegp—a replacement 1
FASB Statement No. 162SFAS 168") (FASB ASC 103:0). SFAS 168 replaces all previously issued actiog standards al
establishes thd~ASB Accounting Standards Codificatid (“FASB ASC” or the “Codification”)as the source of authoritat
accounting principles recognized by the FASB toabelied by nongovernmental entities in the prepamadf financial statements
conformity with U.S. GAAP. SFAS 168 is effectiverfall interim and annual periods ending after 8eqiter 15, 2009. The FASB A
is not intended to change existing U.S. GAAP. @&Heption of this pronouncement only resulted inngjes to the Companyfinancia
statement disclosure references. As such, thetiadapf this pronouncement had no effect on the gamy’s financial position, results
operations, or cash flows.

In order to facilitate the transition to the FASEE®&, the Company has elected to show all referetacEASB ASC within this report «
Form 10-K along with a parenthetical referenceh®previous accounting standard.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff PositifirSP”) FAS 142-3, “Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assé
included in the Codification under FASB ASC 350hisTFSP amends the factors that should be considerdeveloping renewal

extension assumptions used to determine the ukfefdf a recognized intangible asset under FAS&ehent No. 142, Goodwill anc
Other Intangible Assets (“SFAS 142"). The intent of this FSP is to improve the consisyebetween the useful life of a recogni
intangible asset under SFAS 142 and the periodkpéaed cash flows used to measure the fair vafltbenasset under the Busin
Combinations Topic of the Codification and other &A FSP FAS 143 was effective for the Company beginning Januar30D9.
The adoption of FSP FAS 142-3 did not have a naltegripact on the Company’s financial position, tesaf operations, or cash flows.

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 18bbsequent Eventsncluded in the Codification under FASB ASC 88Hich establishe
general standards of accounting for and disclostiexents occurring after the
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balance sheet date, but before the financial setésmare issued or available to be issued. Inugepr2010, FSAB ASC 855 w
amended, removing certain disclosure requirememtspéiblic companies that conflicted with certain GGHisclosure requirement
Adoption of this standard and its amendment didhaate a material impact on the Companfjhancial position, results of operations
cash flows.

3. INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following:

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008
Raw material $ 2,424,81 $ 1,885,15!
Finished good 4,688,15. 4,961,97.
7,112,96! 6,847,13.
Inventory reserv (205,60() (205,600
$ 6,907,36! $ 6,641,53.

4. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant, and equipment consist of the foihg :
December 31

2009 2008
Land $ 261,89. $ 261,89:
Buildings and building improvemen 11,079,90 5,319,73.
Production equipmer 14,428,07 14,270,57
Office furniture and equipme! 2,148,62. 1,825,78:
Construction in progres 1,198,85! 6,287,50.
Automobiles 102,32: 102,32:

29,219,67 28,067,80
Accumulated depreciatic (14,985,49) (13,632,14)

$ 1423418 $ 14,435,66

Depreciation expense for the years ended Decembhe@089, 2008, and 2007 was $1,353,353; $1,351&#7$1,370,228, respectively.
5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consist of the following:
December 31

2009 2008
License agreeme! $ 500,00 $ 500,00(
Trademarks and pater 508,74: 508,74

1,008,74. 1,008,74.
Accumulated amortizatio (582,069 (538,62

$ 426,670 3 470,11!

In 1995, the Company entered into a license agreemviéh the Chief Executive Officer of the Compafor the exclusive right
manufacture, market, and distribute products inigizautomated retraction technology. This liceageeement was amended July 3, -
to include certain additional patent applicatiomsed by such officer in the definition of “Patenbperties”so that such additional pat

applications would be covered by the license. Téifinology is the subject of various patents aatdng applications owned by
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such officer of the Company. The initial licensiieg of $500,000 is being amortized over 17 yedise license agreement also prov
for quarterly payments of a 5% royalty fee on greakes. The royalty fee expense is recognizedhénperiod in which it is earne
Royalty fees of $2,806,223; $2,168,268; and $2387 are included in Cost of sales for the yearsdrdecember 31, 2009, 2008,
2007, respectively. Royalties payable under thlgse@ment aggregated $843,327 and $620,987 at Dece&thp 2009 and 20(
respectively. Gross sales upon which royaltiesbased were $56,124,453; $43,365,361; and $419bX@ 2009, 2008, and 20!
respectively.

In the third quarter of 2009, the Company annoursmebral cost cutting and cash saving initiatiesdnserve its cash. As a par
those initiatives, the Chief Executive Officer wadl payment to him of $1,000,000 in royalty feesherEfore, the royalty fees
$2,806,223 for 2009 resulted in a cash outlay ¢8@3,223.

Amortization expense for the years ended Decembe2@09, 2008, and 2007, was $43,440; $43,597 $48454, respectively. Futt
amortization expense for the years 2010 througl 20 &stimated to be $43,000 per year.

6. OTHER ASSETS

In 2006, the Company invested $500,000 in a limitedility company. The Company exercised its optto have that investme
returned. The investment was returned in April&00

7. LONG-TERM DEBT

December 31
2009 2008

Long-term debt consists of the following:

Note payable to Katie Petroleum. Interest accrateprime plus 1%, which was 4.25% and 5.0%
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Inteyebt was payable monthly through Februar
2004. The original amount of the note of $3,000,0as discounted for presentation purpose
$299,346 for stock options issued in conjunctiothwie debt and $412,500 for the intrinsic valua
beneficial conversion feature of the debt. BegignMarch 1, 2004, the loan has been payah
equal installments of principal and interest paymaef@xcept for changes in the interest rate
approximately $37,000 and matures on SeptemberZW 2. Guaranteed by an offic
Approximately $163,736 of the principal payment wasverted into 40,934 shares of Common S
as of March 1, 2006. Not otherwise collateraliz&hnvertible into Common Stock at $4.00 per s
at the option of the holde $ 1,097,11:'$ 1,437,97

Note payable to 1st International Bank for $2,500,0The proceeds from the loan paid off the reing
$475,000 of a revolving credit agreement and fundedvarehouse and related infrastructi
Payments were interest only during the first 12 then After 12 months, payments are based on a 20-
year amortization with a fivgear maturity on March 29, 2010. The interest @tédecember 3
2009 and 2008 was 4.25% and 4.25%, respectively,ismased on the amount of funds kep
deposit with the bank. Accordingly, interest wiliry from the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate
“WSJPR") to the WSJPR plus 1%, with floors that mmagge from 4.25% to 6.50%Compensatin
balances at 1st International affecting the interate will range from $0 to $500,000. The Comg
had in excess of $500,000 on deposit with 1st hatiéwnal Bank throughout the year. The not
secured by the Compa’s land and buildings 2,141,99¢ 2,241,14!

Note payable to DaimlerChrysler Services North AggeLLC. Sixty (60) monthly payments at $1,0
Interest is 5.49%. Collateralized by a 2005 Friigér truck. 1,00E 12,711

Note payable to GMAC. Sixty (60) monthly paymeat$427. Interest is zero percent. Collateralizg
a 2005 Chevrolet vai 3,762 8,561
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2009 2008

Interim construction loan from Lewisville State Bam division of 1st International Bank, for a naxim

of $4,210,000, which provided funding for the exgian of the warehouse, additional office space,

a new Controlled Environment. The note bore irtesg WSJPR plus 0.25%. The loan was rent

on December 10, 2009 with a 20 year amortizaticth Hh year maturity. The loan is secured by
Compan'’s land and buildings. The interest rate is 5.9€ 4,209,60t 2,847,00t
7,453,48! 6,547,40(

Less: current portio (2,628,65.) (451,865
$ 482483 $ 6,09553

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt as afdbéer 31, 2009, are as follows:

2010 $ 2,628,65:
2011 519,611
2012 447 75k
2013 132,50
2014 140,86:
Thereafter 3,584,10:

$ 7,453,48!

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

On August 12, 2005, the Company filed a lawsuitirggaAbbott in the U.S. District Court in the Eastdistrict of Texas, Texarka
Division. The Company is alleging fraud and brea€ltontract in connection with the National Maikgtand Distribution Agreeme
dated as of May 4, 2000, which was terminated otol@ 15, 2003. It is seeking damages which itmeges to be in millions of dolle
of lost profits, out of pocket expenses, and otleanages. In addition, it is seeking punitive daasagre- and pogtrdgment interest, al
attorneys’ fees. Following Abbo#t'unsuccessful attempt to get the case dismisskdraered to arbitration, Abbott filed an answed
counterclaim on July 15, 2008, alleging severabbhes of contract, breach of implied warranty ofghantability, and breach of expr
warranty, seeking in excess of $6,000,000 in corspemy damages as well as seeking attornfeys. The Company denies the vali
of Abbott’'s counterclaims. Discovery has already taken p#akis substantially completed. The District Gcwas issued a revis
scheduling order calling for trial in May 2010.

In April 2008, the Company sued Occupational andligld Innovations Limited (“OMI”)in the U.S. District Court for the East
District of Texas, Tyler Division, alleging that OMad infringed two U.S. patents (6,572,584 an®¥,324). The Company also alle
theft of confidential information, intentional imference with contracts, and engaging in false abieg that wrongfully disparaged &
mischaracterized the syringe products. The Comgfantlyer alleged that OMI made false allegatiorgarding the source of origin of
safety syringe products being offered in the U.8.02cember 18, 2009, the jury delivered a verdiche Company favor on the pate
infringement and misappropriation of trade seccésns against OMI. On March 4, 2010, the Coureesd a final judgment and orde
that the Company recover damages and prejudgmienest from OMI based on OMI'misappropriation of trade secrets in the amot
$3,153,575. In addition, the Court entered a peentinjunction enjoining OMI, its manufacturersstdbutors and service provid
from infringing patent no. 6,572,584, by makingpionting, selling or using any of OM{’syringes in the U.S. and its territories. OM¢
entered into an administrative proceeding in Adistrevhich is the equivalent of bankruptcy and hiesdfa similar proceeding in t
Eastern District of Texas, which make the actuebvery of the damages unlikely.

In June 2007, the Company sued Becton Dickinson@ompany (“BD”")in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern Distraft Texas
Marshall Division, alleging infringement of threatpnts (5,578,011; 5,632,733; and 6,090,077) aoltions by BD of the federal a
state antitrust laws, and of the Lanham Act. Tlen@any subsequently dropped the 5,578,011 patlagasions from the lawsuit.
January 2008, the Court
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severed the patent claims from the other claimslipgnresolution of the patent dispute. In ApriD8)the Company and the officer s
BD in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern Distrof Texas, Marshall Division, alleging infringemt of another recently issued pa
(7,351,224). BD counterclaimed for norfringement and invalidity of the asserted patefhe Court consolidated this case with
abovestated case filed in June 2007. On November 99.20@ jury returned a verdict finding that thequas asserted by the Comp
were valid and infringed by BD and awarded $5,000,ih damages. No final judgment has been enteréis case. The Company
seeking injunctive relief.

In September 2007, BD and MDC Investment Holdimgs, (“MDC”) sued the Company in the United States District Céur the
Eastern District of Texas, Texarkana Division,ialiy alleging that the Company is infringing twa3J patents of MDC (6,179,812 ¢
7,090,656) that are licensed to BD. BD and MDC seginctive relief and unspecified damages. Then@any counterclaimed f{
declarations of noinfringement, invalidity, and unenforceability dfet asserted patents. The plaintiffs subsequentiyped allegatior
with regard to patent no. 7,090,656 and the Compgaingequently dropped its counterclaims for uneefability of the asserted pater
The Court conducted a claims construction hearimgSeptember 25, 2008 and issued its claims cotigtnuorder on November 1
2008. No trial date has been set.

In September 2008, the Company and an officer Safdty Medical International (“SMI”")n the United States District Court for
Eastern District of Texas, Tyler Division, allegindringement of U.S. patent nos. 6,572,584 an&%,&4, and seeking injunctive rel
unspecified monetary damages, and reimbursemeattaieys’ fees. SMI has counterclaimed, seekiegjadatory judgments of non-
infringement and invalidity of the asserted pater&/l is not seeking monetary damages. SMI Had for bankruptcy, and this lawsi
including all claims and counterclaims, was dismikas a result of those proceedings, which haveleded.

9. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes consists of theofelhg:
For the Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
Current tax provision (benefi
Federal $ (3,655,63) $ — $ (143459
State (181,959 — (1,310,15)
Total current provision (benefi (3,837,59) — (1,453,61)
Deferred tax provision (benefi
Federal — — —
State — — —
Total deferred tax provision (benel — — —
Total income tax provision (benef $ (3,837,59) $ — $ (1.45361)

The Company recognized a tax benefit in 2007 piilgnaue to the net effect of a state tax refund foior years that had not be
previously recognized.

The Company recognized a tax benefit in 2009 piilsndue to a federal tax carryback related to 2009.

Deferred taxes are provided for those items refddrtadifferent periods for income tax and finanaigporting purposes. The tax effe
of temporary differences that give rise to sigrifit portions of the deferred tax assets and lt&slare presented below:

The Company has $14,277,070 in tax benefits atalila to carryback losses for federal tax purpoSé loss carryforwards will beg
to expire in 2027 for federal tax purposes and belyin to expire for state tax purposes in 2012.
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December 31

2009 2008
Deferred tax asse
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 5,414,557 $ 5,285,16.
Accrued expenses and reser 1,045,12 1,240,05!
Employee stock option expen 422,47¢ 31,66¢
Inventory 242,80° 435,57¢
Non-employee stock option exper 183,57( 198,42!
Charitable contribution carryforwar: 26,16¢ 21,11¢
Deferred tax asse 7,334,711 7,212,00
Deferred tax liabilitie:
Property and equipme (687,51) (1,178,61)
Deferred tax liabilitie: (687,519 (1,178,61)
Net deferred asse 6,647,20 6,033,38!
Valuation allowanct (6,647,20) (6,033,381
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ — 3 —

A reconciliation of income taxes based on the febstatutory rate and the provision (benefit) faxdme taxes is summarized as follows:

December 31

2009 2008 2007

Income tax (benefit) at the federal statutory (35.0% (35.0)% (35.0)%
State tax (benefit), net of federal (bene (2.¢2) (2.9) (2.¢2)
Increase (decrease) in valuation allowa 4.6 32.1 27.2
Permanent difference 3.C 0.4 1.C
Cancellation of options under Exchange O — 5.4 —
State tax refund and accru. (0.9 — (12.0)
Return to accrual adjustmer 0.5 — .
Other 1.6 — 1.2

Effective tax (benefit) rat (29.0 —% (A7.2)%

The Company files income tax returns in the U.8efal jurisdiction and in various state and locaisdictions. The Company‘federe
income tax returns for all tax years ended on tarddecember 31, 2006, remain subject to examindtjothe Internal Revenue Servi
The Companys state and local income tax returns are subjeeké&mination by the respective state and localaaitis over variol
statutes of limitations, most ranging from thredive years from the date of filing.

10. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred Stock

The Company has one class of Preferred Stock odlisigz Class B Convertible Preferred Stock (“CIBsStock”). The Class B Stoc
has five series: Series |, Series Il, SeriesSéies 1V, and Series V.

Class B

The Company has authorized 5,000,000 shares oafstgiue Class B Stock which have been allocateshgnseries I, I, I, IV, and

in the amounts of 144,000; 219,700; 130,245; 592,50d 1,238,821 shares, respectively. The remgifi714,734 authorized she
have not been assigned a series.
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Series | Class B

There were 1,000,000 shares of $1 par value Se@ésss B Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series 4$3IB Stock”jssued and 144,0
outstanding at December 31, 2009 and 2008. Holofe&eries | Class B Stock are entitled to rec@iveumulative annual dividend
$.50 per share, payable quarterly if declared yBbard of Directors. In 2004, the Company paid5$@,000 in dividends. In 2007,"
Company paid $262,819 in dividends. At December2BD9 and 2008 approximately $180,000 and $108@3@ectively, of dividen:
which had not been declared were in arrears.

Series | Class B Stock is redeemable after thraesyfeom the date of issuance at the option ofbmpany at a price of $7.50 per sh
plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. Each sbh&eries | Class B Stock may, at the option of stexkholder, be converted to «
share of Common Stock after three years from the dtissuance or in the event the Company filemgial registration statement unt
the Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant to thesedernmo shares of Series | Class B Stock were cazvénto Common Stock in 2009.
the event of voluntary or involuntary dissolutidiquidation, or winding up of the Company, holders Series | Class B Stock tF
outstanding are entitled to $6.25 per share, gluscarued and unpaid dividends prior to any dsttions to holders of Series Il Clas
Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series Il Class Bcgt)p Series Ill Class B Convertible Preferred &tdtSeries Ill Class B Stock)
Series IV Class B Convertible Preferred Stock (&=l Class B Stock”), Series V Class B Convedilitreferred Stock $eries \
Class B Stock”), or Common Stock.

Series |l Class B

There were 1,000,000 shares of $1 par value Skr@lass B Stock issued and there were 219 5@res outstanding at Decembel
2009 and 2008. Holders of Series Il Class B Stawk entitled to receive a cumulative annual divilef $1.00 per share, paya
quarterly if declared by the Board of Directorsoldters of Series Il Class B Stock generally havevoting rights until dividends are
arrears and unpaid for twelve consecutive quartersuch case, the holders of Series Il Classd@lShave the right to elect otieird of
the Board of Directors of the Company. In 2004 @ompany paid $4.6 million in dividends. In 20@¥e Company paid $790,72&
dividends. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, approximately $3H1.8nd $331,000 respectively, of dividends whicld inat bee
declared were in arrears.

Series Il Class B Stock is redeemable after thesgsyfrom the date of issuance at the option ofCtbmpany at a price of $15.00
share plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. Bhehe of Series Il Class B Stock may, at the optibtie stockholder, be convertec
one share of Common Stock after three years fra@ardéte of issuance or in the event the Company éiteinitial registration statem:
under the Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant toghesms, no shares of Series Il Class B Stock weneerted into Common Stock
2009. In the event of voluntary or involuntarystdikition, liquidation, or winding up of the Compathplders of Series Il Class B St
then outstanding are entitled to $12.50 per shims, all accrued and unpaid dividends, after distion obligations to holders of Serit
Class B Stock have been satisfied and prior todistyibutions to holders of Series Ill Class B $toSeries IV Class B Stock, Serie
Class B Stock, or Common Stock.

Series Ill Class B

There were 1,160,445 shares of $1 par value Siri€$ass B Stock issued and 130,245 shares oustgrat December 31, 2009 ¢
2008. Holders of Series lll Class B Stock aretlutito receive a cumulative annual dividend of0®1per share, payable quarterl
declared by the Board of Directors. At December 2009 and 2008, approximately $3,246,000 and $30DD, respectively,
dividends which have not been declared were iraesre

Series Il Class B Stock is redeemable after tlyesrs from the date of issuance at the option ®Gbmpany at a price of $15.00
share, plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. Bhahe of Series Ill Class B Stock may, at theooptif the stockholder, be converte:
one share of Common Stock after three years fra@ardéte of issuance or in the event the Company éiteinitial registration statem:
under the Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant toahieems, no shares of Series Il Class B Stock wengerted into Common Stock in
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2009. In the event of voluntary or involuntary dissolutjdiquidation, or winding up of the Company, halslef Series Il Class B Sto
then outstanding are entitled to $12.50 per shaus, all accrued and unpaid dividends, after distion obligations to Series | Clas
Stock and Series Il Class B Stock have been sadisfind prior to any distributions to holders ofi&etV Class B Stock, Series V Clas
Stock, or Common Stock.

Series IV Class B

There were 1,133,800 shares issued and 552,508ssbatstanding at December 31, 2009 and 2008. kotdeSeries IV Class B Sta
are entitled to receive a cumulative annual divilen$1.00 per share, payable quarterly, if deddrg the Board of Directors. Hold:
of Series IV Class B Stock generally have no votiggts. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, approxeme$7,583,000 and $7,030,0
respectively, of dividends which have not been aled were in arrears.

Series IV Class B Stock is redeemable after thesgs/from the date of issuance at the option oftbpany at a price of $11.00
share plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. Edwere of Series IV Class B Stock may, at the optibthe stockholder any tir
subsequent to three years from date of issuanagrbeerted into one share of Common Stock, or énetfent the Company files an ini
registration statement under the Securities A&9#¥3. Pursuant to these terms,shares of Series IV Class B Stock were converta
Common Stock in 2009. In the event of voluntaryiroroluntary liquidation, dissolution, or windingpwf the Company, holders
Series IV Class B Stock then outstanding are edtitb receive liquidating distributions of $11.0€r ghare, plus accrued and un,
dividends after distribution obligations to Serg3lass B Stock, Series Il Class B Stock, and SdfleClass B Stock have been satis
and prior to any distribution to holders of Sene€lass B Stock, or Common Stock.

Series V Class B

There were 2,416,221 shares issued and 1,238,82fanding at December 31, 2009 and 2008. Holde&edes V Class B Stock ¢
entitled to receive a cumulative annual dividend0f32 per share, payable quarterly, if declaredhieyBoard of Directors. Holders
Series V Class B Stock generally have no votingptsg At December 31, 2009 and 2008, approxima$&ly$93,000 and $3,297,0
respectively, of dividends which have not been aled were in arrears.

Series V Class B Stock is redeemable after twosyram the date of issuance at the option of then@my at a price of $4.40 per st
plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. Each sbi8eries V Class B Stock may, at the option ofdteekholder any time subsequer
the date of issuance, be converted into CommonkSt&ursuant to the terms of the certificate ofiglestion, no shares of Serie:
Class B Stock were converted into Common StockOig92 In the event of voluntary or involuntary lidation, dissolution, or windir
up of the Company, holders of Series V Class BISthen outstanding are entitled to receive liquiadistributions of $4.40 per she
plus accrued and unpaid dividends after distributibligations to Series | Class B Stock, Serig3ldlss B Stock, Series Ill Class B St¢
and Series IV Class B Stock have been satisfiecpaindto any distribution to the holders of them@aon Stock.

Common stock

The Company is authorized to issue 100,000,00Cesha&rno par value Common Stock, of which 23,82%ddd 23,800,064 shares w
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2009 argi 2&€pectively.

11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company had a lease with Mill Street Entergrig#lill Street”), a sole proprietorship owned by a person, who cetisbe a 10¢
shareholder in 2008, for offices and storage inikgille, Texas. During the year ended December2807, the Company paid $14,!

under this lease. This lease term expired in 200¢.
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The Company paid MediTrade International Corporataocompany controlled by a person, who ceasée ® 10% shareholder in 2(
on a month-to-month consulting agreement wherebyliftade is paid $7,500 per month plus expensekotal amounts paid
MediTrade for the years ending December 31, 200082and 2007 totaled $111,883.57; $98,401; an@®,$13, respectively.

The Company has a license agreement with the Exiefutive Officer of the Company. See Note 5.

During the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008286d, the Company paid $50,793; $40,191; and $30,@spectively, to fami
members of its Chief Executive Officer for variceensulting services.

12. STOCK OPTIONS
Stock options

Prior to 2008, the Company had three stock optiangthat provided for the granting of stock opsida officers, employees, and ot
individuals. Two of those plans have terminatdd2008 Stock Option Plan was approved for the gngnof stock options to employe
Directors, and consultants. During 1999, the Campproved the 1999 Stock Option Plan. OptiomgHe purchase of 131,880 sh
of Common Stock granted under the 1999 Stock Opfilam are outstanding. The 1999 Stock Option Rtaminated pursuant to
terms in 2009. The 2008 Plan is the only plan wtitck options currently being awarded. The Comgpaas reserved an aggreg
3,000,000 shares of Common Stock for issuance tlgoaxercise of options under the 2008 Stock OgfRiamn.

On September 26, 2008, the Companghareholders approved an Exchange Offer whensipjogees, including executive officers, i
Directors could exchange certain outstanding und&moptions for options issued under the 2008kKS@gtion Plan. Pursuant to tt
Exchange Offer, eligible participants (totaling 1@ndered, and the Company accepted for canaellatiigible options to purchase
aggregate of 1,925,365 shares of the Compa@gmmon Stock representing 99.4% of the totaleshaf Common Stock underlyi
options eligible to exchange in the Exchange OffEne Company issued new options under the 2008kSIption Plan to purchase
aggregate of 962,683 shares of Common Stock inagxgghfor the cancellation of the tendered optidDptions issued to employees \
in mid 2010. Options issued to non-employee Daecvested in 2009.

In July 2009, the Company issued options for thelpase of a total of 1,886,425 shares to Directexecutive Officers, employees, ¢
consultants under the 2008 Stock Option Plan. h3f amount, incentive stock options for the purehat269,956 shares of Comn
Stock and Non Qualified Stock Options for the pass of 229,494 shares of Common Stock were issuétkecutive Officers ar
Directors. Additionally, in 2009, an option to phase Three Million (3,000,000) shares issued tonTds J. Shaw outside these p
was approved by shareholders.

The Company also hadptions for common shares outstanding under ti86 18centive Stock Option Plan and the 1996 Stopkdd
Plan for Directors and Other Individuals throughvisimber 2008. The two 1996 plans and all optiossdd thereunder have terming
or have been exchanged for options granted unde2QB8 Plan.

The Compensation and Benefits Committee administédans and determines and/or recommends tBdlaed exercise prices at wh
options are granted. All executive compensatioduiding the granting of stock options, is deterximy the Compensation and Ben
Committee. Shares issued upon exercise of optioms from the Company’authorized but unissued Common Stock. The opties
over periods up to three years from the date afitgaad generally expire ten years after the daggrafit. Unvested options issued ut
the 2008 Stock Option Plan expire immediately atemination of employment.

Employee options

A summary of Director, officer, and employee opsigranted and outstanding under the Plans is pgeztérlow:
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Outstanding at beginning of peri
Granted
Exercisec
Forfeited

Outstanding at end of peri
Exercisable at end of peric

Weighted average fair value of
options granted during peric

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

1,057,26. $ 1.9¢ 2,187,45" $ 8.8C 2,417,29" $ 8.5¢
4,796,42! 0.81 962,68 1.3C — —
(5,08%) (2.30 — — — —
(127,079 (4.99) (2,092,87) (8.79) (229,84() (6.50'
5,721,52 $ 0.94 1,057,26. $ 1.9¢ 2,187,45" $ 8.8(
1,137,40. $ 1.44 147,58( $ 6.2 2,187,45" $ 8.8(
— % 0.5¢ — 3 0.7¢ — % —

The fair value of each 2008 option grant is estedadn the date of grant using the binomial opticnipg model with the followin
weighted average assumptions used for grants i8:260 dividend yield; expected volatility of 67%3risk free interest rate of 2.83
and an expected life of 8.61 to 8.69 years. Th®op were issued under the 2008 Stock Option PNmoptions were issued in 2007.

The fair value of each 2009 grant is estimatedhendiate of the grant using the BlaBkholes pricing model with the following weigh
average assumptions used for grants in 2009: esghectatility of 67.53%, risk free interest rate385%, and an expected life of 8.6
8.69 years. Other than the options issued to thef &xecutive Officer, the options were issued urttle 2008 Stock Option Plan.

The following table summarizes information aboutdator, officer, and employee options outstandindar the aforementioned plan:

December 31, 2009:

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Exercise Shares Contractual Shares

Prices Outstanding Life Exercisable
$ 10.0( 17,10( 0.84 17,10(
$ 6.9( 15,08( 2.7t 15,08(
$ 8.6 2,40( 3.4¢ 2,40(
$ 8.87 70C 4.3€ 70C
$ 1.3C 902,12: 8.8¢ 902,12:
$ 0.81 4,784,12! 9.54 200,00(
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Non-employee options

A summary of options outstanding during the yeaideel December 31 and held by non-employees idlas/fo

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of peri 454,70( $ 8.41 549,70 $ 8.6¢ 579,70( $ 8.5(C
Granted 90,00( 0.8 — — — —
Exercisec (20,000) (0.9%) — — — —
Forfeited (133,10() (10.00) (95,00() (10.00) (30,00() (5.00)
Outstanding at end of peri 391,600 $ 6.52 454,700 $ 8.41 549,700 $ 8.6¢
Exercisable at enof period 391,600 $ 6.52 454,70C $ 8.41 549,70 $ 8.6¢
Weighted average fair value of
options granted during peric — 3 0.61 — % — — $ —

The fair value of each 2009 grant is estimated len date of the grant using the Black Scholes pyigimodel with the followin
assumptions: expected volatility of 67.53%, riskefinterest rate of 3.35%, and an expected life &f years. These options were is¢
under the 2008 Stock Option Plan. No options wesaed in 2008 or 2007.

The following table summarizes information abounhsmnployee options outstanding under the aforemeatiqeians at December

2009:
Weighted
Average
Remaining
Exercise Shares Contractual Shares
Prices Outstanding Life Exercisable
$ 10.0¢ 89,10( 0.5¢ 89,10(
$ 6.9C 232,50( 2.7¢ 232,50(
$ 0.81 70,00( 9.5t 70,00(

The Company recorded $2,111,360; $98,473 (offged loredit of $65,844 for surrendered stock oplipasd $6,478 as stodkase:
compensation expense in 2009, 2008, and 2007, atbaglg. The total intrinsic value of options egeed was $16,388; $0; and $(
2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. The aggrdgaiasic value of options outstanding and of optieexercisable at December 31, z
was approximately $4.3 million and $531,000, resipely. The total compensation cost related to -mested stock options to
recognized in the future was $1,346,587 at DecerdbgP009.

13. 401(k) PLAN

The Company implemented an employee savings aimdment plan (the “401(k) Plan”) in 2005 that iseinded to be a tagualified plat
covering substantially all employees. Under thente of the 401(k) Plan, employees may elect to rdmrte up to 88% of the
compensation, or the statutory prescribed limiless. The Company may, at its discretion, matshleyee contributions. The Comp:
made matching

F-23




Table of Contents

contributions of approximately $76,643, $122,008] 111,000 in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectivdlythe third quarter of 2009, t
Company discontinued contributions until furthetioe.

14. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

2009 2008 2007
Domestic sale $ 34,466,79 $ 23,244,37 % 21,461,71
International sale 4,515,041 4,654,94 4,828,00:.
Total sales $ 3898183 $ 27,899,31 % 26,289,72
Long-lived asset:
Domestic $ 13,961,44 $ 14,435,66 $ 11,483,42
Foreign $ 272,73t $ — 3 —

The Company does not operate in separate repogafteents. The Company has no ltingd assets in foreign countries. Shipmen
international customers generally require a pregayreither by wire transfer or an irrevocable conéd letter of credit. The Compe
does extend credit to international customers anesoccasions depending upon certain criteria, dhiofy but not limited to, the cre
worthiness of the customer, the stability of theirdoy, banking restrictions, and the size of thdeor All transactions are in U
currency.

SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA - UNAUDITED
The selected quarterly financial data for the pisi@nded December 31, 2009 and 2008, have beevededriom the Company’
unaudited financial statements and include all sidjents, consisting only of normal recurring adpestts, necessary for a 1

presentation of the results of the interim periods.

(In thousands, except for per share and outstandingtock amounts)

2009
Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Sales, ne $ 525¢ $ 575 $ 10,75 $ 17,21¢
Cost of sale: 4,02¢ 3,41% 7,817 10,207
Gross profit 1,22¢ 2,34( 2,93¢ 7,01z
Total operating expens 5,271 5,121 6,484 9,93¢
Loss from operation (4,04z2) (2,781) (3,54¢) (2,92¢)
Interest and other incon 29 11 14 4
Interest expense, n — — — (22)
Benefit for income taxe 10E — 10C 3,63:
Net income (loss (3,90¢) (2,770) (3,43%) 691
Preferred stock dividend requireme (342) (3423) (3423) (342)
Earnings (loss) applicable to common sharehol $ (4,251) $ (3,113) $ (3,77¢) $ 34¢
Net earnings (loss) per she basic and dilute $ (0.18) $ (0.13) $ (0.1€) $ 0.01
Weighted average shares outstanc 23,800,06. 23,800,06. 23,803,39 23,822,60
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Sales, ne

Cost of sale:

Gross profi

Total operating expens
Loss from operation
Interest and other incon
Interest expense, n

Net loss

Preferred stock dividend requireme
Loss applicable to common shareholc
Net loss per shar basic and dilute:
Weighted average shares outstanc

Profit margin

(In thousands, except for per share and outstandingtock amounts)

2008

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
$ 531t % 6,47¢ $ 8,997 $ 7,113
4,02¢ 3,49¢ 6,871 5,27¢
1,28¢ 2,97¢ 2,12¢ 1,83¢
4,362 4,02¢ 4,30¢€ 5,97¢
(3,07¢) (1,052) (2,180) (4,137)
254 241 15¢ 20z
(41) (22) (14) 23
(2,86%) (83%) (2,03%) (3,912)
(34£) (342) (342) (342)
$ (3,20¢) $ (1,17¢) $ (2,37¢) $ (4,25¢)
$ (0.12) $ (0.0£) $ (0.1C) $ (0.1€)
23,778,07 23,800,06. 23,800,06. 23,800,06.
24.2% 46.0% 23.6% 25.8%

Major variances in the third quarter results foD2@ompared to 2008 are due to higher revenuedadtiee DHHS contract and higl

litigation costs in 2009.

Fourth quarter results for 2009, when compared0@32 were affected by a dramatic increase in reegrmue to the DHHS contra
Operating expenses increased primarily due togbegnition of an impairment cost of $2.6 milliondaedditional litigation costs of $2
million. Net income was positively affected in Z0for a tax benefit of $3.6 million related to tberryback of the 2009 net operating

for federal taxes.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountéon Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) under the Securitieh&nxge Act of 1934 (the “Exchange ActMlanagement, with the participation
our President, Chairman, and Chief Executive Offid&omas J. Shaw (the “CEO"3nd our Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
Douglas W. Cowan (the “CFO”gcting in their capacities as our principal exeaitind financial officers, evaluated the effectesn of oL
disclosure controls and procedures, as defineduie R3a15(e) under the Exchange Act. The term disclosorgrols and procedures me
controls and other procedures that are designedigare that information required to be disclosedi®yn our periodic reports is: i) record
processed, summarized, and reported within the peréeods specified in the Securities and Exchangmm@ission’s (the “SEC"yules ani
forms; and ii) accumulated and communicated to Management, including our principal executive amthgpal financial officers, ¢
appropriate to allow timely decisions regardinguieed disclosure. Based upon this evaluation, @O and CFO concluded that, as
December 31, 2009, our disclosure controls andgataes were effective.

Managemeris Annual Report on Internal Control over Finan&eabporting

Management is responsible for establishing and tai@ing adequate internal control over our finaheigporting as defined

Rule 13a15(f) under the Exchange Act. The term internalticrover financial reporting means a process desigoy, or under the supervis
of, our principal executive and principal financadficers and effected by our Board of Directorsadgement and other personnel, to prc
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability imdintial reporting and the preparation of financtdtements for external purpose:
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfex and includes those policies and proceduras {fj pertain to the maintenance
records that in reasonable detail accurately amly f@flect our transactions and dispositions séets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance thi
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepiafation of financial statements in accordanch génerally accepted accounting princig
and that our receipts and expenditures are beirdgmaly in accordance with authorizations of Mamaget and Directors; and (iii) provi
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tighetigction of unauthorized acquisition, use or as#fjon of our assets that could hay
material effect on our financial statements. Mamagnt used thénternal Control - Integrated Frameworlssued by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisgiogvaluate the effectiveness of our internal drdver financial reporting as requi
by paragraph (c) of Rule 13&% under the Exchange Act. Management, with thiéggzation of our CEO and CFO, concluded that inberna
control over financial reporting as of December 2109, was effective. No material weaknesses irirdarnal control over financial reporti
were identified by Management.

This annual report does not include an attestateport of our registered public accounting firm astjng internal control ov
financial reporting. Managemestieport was not subject to attestation by oursteged public accounting firm pursuant to temporaigs o
the SEC that permit us to provide only Managemeam®irt in this annual report.

Our management, including the CEO and CFO, doesxpmct that our disclosure controls and procedor&sir internal control ov
financial reporting will prevent or detect all erscand all instances of fraud. A control systempratter how well designed and operated
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assuraratétth control system’s objectives will be met.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repaortin

There have been no changes during the fourth quafr2009 or subsequent to December 31, 2009 irindernal control over financi
reporting or in any other factor that has mateyiaffected or is reasonably likely to materiallyfeat our internal control over financ
reporting.
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Item 9B. Other Information.

Effective December 20, 2009, the Board of Directapproved changes to the Charters for the Audit i@ibree, Compensation a
Benefits Committee, and Nominating Committee ad a&lchanges to our Code of Business Conduct arids=&ll of which are posted on
website at www.vanishpoint.com. A summary of thetenial changes is set forth below.

The Audit Committee Charter was amended primadlyefflect the new name change for the NYSE Amex ldsGwell as to chan
reference to various accounting standards as emfjuiy changing rules. It was also amended to aiscbur current process for rece
retention, and treatment of complaints regardingpanting, internal accounting controls, or auditmgtters and the confidential submissiol
employees of such concerns. A copy of the chigtattached hereto as Exhibit No. 99.1.

The Compensation and Benefits Committee Charteransnded primarily to reflect the new name forRWSE Amex LLC and als
to clarify that the CEQ’s compensation is set sobsl the Committee. A copy of the charter is ateathereto as Exhibit No. 99.2.

The Nominating Committee Charter was amended teatethe new name change for the NYSE Amex LLC.ofscof the charter
attached hereto as Exhibit No. 99.3.

The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics was amendedlect the new name change for the NYSE AmeK land also primarily 1
add our Insider Trading Policy as it currently stein Other minor changes were also made. A coplygeomended code is incorporated he
as Exhibit No. 14.

On January 22, 2010, we held the rescheduled ngeetipreferred shareholders for those series fidatat obtain quorum at the init
Special Meeting (Series | 4V Class B Convertible Preferred Stock). The Setieand Ill Class B Convertible Preferred Shardkod obtaine
quorum at this rescheduled meeting. The proposatsnitted for their approval were those relatingato amendment of the applice
certificates of designation. Previously, the vasi@ertificates of designation provided that, ifidénds were in arrears on the preferred s
there were certain prohibitions on acquisitionsdonsideration by the Company of stock rankinggumd such stock except on certain ter
One of the limitations was that no acquisitions éonsideration could be made unless the acquisitivalved the acquisition of all of t
preferred stock (upon a 50% vote) or unless thiepesd stock was converted into or exchanged itdoksof the Company ranking junior to
preferred stock as to dividends and upon liquidatithe proposed amendments deleted these requireraed specifically provided that
Company can purchase any of its shares rankingijuaithe preferred stock (including Common shaogsany terms it fixes, even wher
dividend upon shares of the preferred stock Briears, so long as: (A) the cash assets of tmep@ny as of its latest reporting period equ
exceed $40,000,000 or (B) if the cash assets oCthrapany as of its latest reporting period wers sn $40,000,000, the amount of fu
utilized to purchase such shares within the nexrrtgn do not exceed 25% of the value of the cashtass of the previous reporting peri
The Series Il Class B Convertible Preferred Shddehe rejected this proposal. The Series Ill CBSSonvertible Preferred Shareholc
approved this proposal. The Series V Class B Quitne Preferred Shareholders approved a similappsal at the prior Special Meeting. -
meeting of the Series | Class B Convertible Prefitr&hareholders has been permanently adjourned. meeting of the Series IV Clas
Convertible Preferred Shareholders has been adjdwntil June 11, 2010 at 10:00 a.m. Central time.

Articles of Amendment were filed on October 16, 200ith the Texas Secretary of State amending th&lés of Incorporation
reflect the prior approval of the proposal by tlei& V Class B Convertible Preferred Stock.

PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance.
The following table sets forth information concexgiour Directors, executives, and certain of ognigicant employees as of the ¢
of this report. Our Board of Directors consistsadbtal of seven (7) members, two (2) membersti€tiware Class 1 Directors and five (5

which are Class 2 Directors which serve for tworyea
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terms. At our 2010 Annual Meeting, we will be silng the election of four Class 2 Directors amdClass 1 Director so that the Board
be more evenly split with four Class 2 Directorsl éiree Class 1 Directors.

Term as

Director
Name Age Position Expires
EXECUTIVES
Thomas J. Sha 59 Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer, at@s€ 2 Directo 2010
Douglas W. Cowal 66 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasugerd Class 2 Directc 2010
Kathryn M. Duesma 47 Executive Director, Global Heal N/A
Russell B. Kuhimai 56 Vice President, Sale N/A
Michele M. Larios 43 Vice President, General Counsel, and Secr¢ N/A
Lawrence G. Salern 49 Director of Operation N/A
Steven R. Wisne 52 Executive Vice President, Engineering & Productimd Class 2 Directc 2010
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Marco Laterze 62 Class 1 Directo 2011
Amy Mack 42 Class 1 Directo 2011
Marwan Sake 54 Class 2 Directo 2010
Clarence Zierhu 81 Class 2 Directo 2010
SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES
Shayne Blythe 41 Director of Sales and Marketing Logisti N/A
John W. Fort lll 41 Director of Accounting N/A
James A. Hoove 62 Director of Quality Assuranc N/A
R. John Mada 49 Production Manage N/A
Judy Ni Zhu 51 Research and Development Mana N/A

Executives

Thomas J. Shaw, our Founder, has served as Chaiofm#re Board, President, Chief Executive Officand Director since o
inception. We believe it is appropriate for Mr.a8hto continue to serve as a Director and as the@r@han of the Board because of his ¢
knowledge of the strengths and weaknesses of amdupts (as their primary inventor) and of the Comypéas its Founder). Further,
strategic knowledge of the Company and its comipetiénvironment arising from his ongoing servicasita CEO is vital to the succes:
supervision of the Company by the Board of DirestoFinally, Mr. Shaws educational background in both Engineering andoAnting i
helpful to Board deliberations. In addition to tdsties overseeing our Management, he continuelead our design team in prod
development of other medical safety devices thteit among other things, his unique patentediéitring technology. Mr. Shaw has ovel
years of experience in industrial product desigd laas developed several solutions to complicatechaergcal engineering challenges. He
been granted multiple patents and has additiontnps pending. Mr. Shaw received a Bachelor o&i&s# in Civil Engineering from t
University of Arizona and a Master of Science ircAanting from the University of North Texas.

Douglas W. Cowan is a Vice President and our ChRiafncial Officer, Treasurer, and a Director. Kowan joined us as Ch
Financial Officer and was elected to the Board o&E&tors in 1999. We believe it is appropriate awan continue to serve as a Director
to his level of involvement in the financial staitEthe Company (as its CFO) as well as his lead molsupervising all internal control &
disclosure control procedures and statements. I$teserves as the primary contact for investorcivienables him to bring their concern
the Board on appropriate topics as they arise.eligrtise as a CPA and experience as the Comp&n0 allow him to guide the Board, u|
request. with regard to financial matters. He @sponsible for our financial, accounting, risk ngeraent, and forecasting functio
Mr. Cowan also serves as a Director of Cowan Teldgmes, Inc., a private computer consulting compair. Cowan has a Bachelor
Business Administration from Texas Technologicall€ye. He is a CPA licensed in Texas.
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Kathryn M. Duesman, RN, joined us in 1996 and atfyeserves as the Executive Director, Global HealShe provides clinic
expertise on existing products as well as thosgeielopment. She has been instrumental in devedapaining and marketing materials .
has spoken and been published on safety issuesDiMsman works with international agencies to penthe use of safe technologie
developing countries. Ms. Duesman is a 1985 gtadofaTexas Woman’s University with a Bachelor afeé®ice in Nursing. Ms. Duesman’
clinical background as a registered nurse inclai@gnostic, acute, and home healthcare nursing.

Russell B. Kuhlman joined us in February 1997 andur Vice President, Sales. Mr. Kuhlman is respigla for management of t
sales force and liaison with GPOs and product itrgifior our sales organization, as well as distidou Mr. Kuhlmans efforts with us hay
resulted in bringing onboard Specialty Distributonsfluencing legislation, and educating influehtteealthcare representatives about
benefits of our product line. Mr. Kuhlman is resggel throughout the industry and is a main contdbto the safety effort in this count:
Mr. Kuhlman is also Vice President of Kuhlman & Kuaian, Inc., a private real estate management coynpie has a sales background in
medical service industry that includes his mosent¢avork for ICU Medical (formerly Bid?lexus), a medical device manufacturing comg.
from 1994 to 1997, where he developed strategidketizng plans for new safety products. Prior to Wik there, Mr. Kuhlman worked
Director of Sales and Marketing for Ryan Winfieldetcal, Inc., a medical device manufacturing conygpdrom 1989 to 1994, where
launched several new products, developed stratadés territories, and was the trainer for Salek Regional Managers. Mr. Kuhlman ¢
worked for BD VacutaineP Systems, a medical products company, in sevendiaiées from 1980 to 1989, where he was recogniaedh
National Sales Representative for the year 1987.. KMhiman holds a Bachelor of Science in Finamoenfthe University of Tennesse

Michele M. Larios joined us in February 1998 andrently serves as our Vice President, General Gaduasd Secretary. Ms. Lar
is responsible for our legal and legislative, gyadissurance, human resource, and regulatory fimgctiln addition to working on legal matt
and with outside counsel, Ms. Larios works withiséggors on pertinent issues and relevant legstatiMs. Larios received a Bachelor of /
in Political Science from Saint Mary’College in Moraga, California, and a Juris Daaterfrom Pepperdine University School of Lav
Malibu, California.

Lawrence G. Salerno has been employed with us si8&% and has served as Director of Operationsu$osince 1998. He
responsible for the manufacture of all our produess well as all product development and proceseldpment projects. In addition,
supervises all aspects of the construction andresipa of our facilities in Little EIm, Texas. Msalerno is the brother of a 5% sharehc
(and consultant to the Company) who ceased to b@¥a shareholder in 2008 Mr. Salerno received his Bachelor of Science inriecoic:
from the University of North Texas.

Steven R. Wisner joined us in October 1999 as Hiex¥ice President, Engineering and Production asi@ Director. We believe
is appropriate that Mr. Wisner continue to serva &irector due to his extensive experience in af@mal management and his comprehet
overview of all of the Compang’operations. His role in overseeing all engimegrproduction, and foreign sales allows him tovjue timely
and insightful guidance regarding the effect of Blodecisions on the Company’s abilities to meetgitgls. Mr. Wisnes responsibilitie
include the management of engineering, productitininese operations, and international sales. Msn®f has over 30 years of experienc
product design, development, and manufacturing.. Wisner holds a Bachelor of Science in Computegifigering from lowa Sta
University.

Independent Directors

Marco Laterza joined us as a Director effectiveofiMarch 22, 2005. We believe it is appropriate. Materza continue to serve ¢
Director because of his skills as a CPA in actixecpce as well as his decades of experience irsimgvindividuals and entities with regarc
corporate planning and financial issues. SucHss&itd experience provide a valuable contributiohis role as the designated financial ex
on the Audit Committee as well as provide valuabldgependent accounting advice to the Board. Sik8%8, Mr. Laterza has owned :
operated a public accounting practice. His practiccludes corporate, partnership and individughtian, compilation/review of financi
statements, financial planning, business consyléing trusts and estates. From 2004 to the pré&ertaterza has also served as the Trea
for EZ Blue Software Corporation, a private
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development stage, software company. Formerly dterza was employed in a number of positions fi@%7 to 1985 with El Paso Natt
Gas Company eventually serving as its Director ofdunting. Mr. Laterza received his Bachelors akiBess Administration in Accounti
from Pace University in 1972. He is a CPA and fieaeived a Certificate of Educational AchievemenPersonal Financial Planning from
American Institute of CPAs.

Amy Mack joined us as a Director on November 19)720We believe it is appropriate that Ms. Macktomre as a Board member «
both to her over ten years of experience as a ntineeprimary retail user of our products) as vadl her experience in running her ¢
company. Further, she contributes to the divexsitgxperience on our Board. Since 2003, she ha®d and operated SPA 02, a medical
Since April of 2000, she has owned and operated Gmved as Chief Nursing Officer for) EmergiS&ffAssociates, a nursing staffi
company, in Dallas, Texas. She served as a regiisteirse from August 1997 to the date she begaerdi8taff & Associates. She obtail
her Bachelor of Science degree from Texas A&M Ursitg in College Station, Texas in 1991 and an Akge degree in Nursing from
Centro College in Dallas, Texas in 1994. Sherisgéstered nurse in Texas.

Marwan Saker joined our Board of Directors in JAA80. We believe it is appropriate that Mr. Sas@mtinue to serve as a Direc
due to over a decade of experience in internatibnalness as well as his specific expertise inesgelating to international distributic
Mr. Sakers experience as a business owner competing intemadly provides additional necessary insight to Baard. Since 1983, Mr. Sal
has served as Chief Executive Officer of Sovana, ka private export management company that segpljricultural equipment and supg
to overseas markets. Since 2000, he has serVeueasor of Consolidated Food Concepts Inc., agisvcompany. Since 1986, he has serv
President of International Exports & Consulting.|re private export management, consulting, anttildigion company. Since 2000, he
served as Vice President of Hanneke Corp., a grieaerseas sourcing company. From 1998 to 2001seheed as a Member of |
Investments, LLC, a private equity investment compaSince 1999, he has served as President of $akestments Inc., a private comp.
that manages an investment portfolio. Since 1%@8has served as a General Partner of Maya Invesmetd., a private investme
management limited partnership. He also servesMember of MMDA, LLC, a private real estate deyetent company. He is also invoh
with Fig Land Development, a private company. Blker has acted as a representative for U.S. caegpseeking distribution, licensing,
franchising in the Middle East, Europe, and Nortiica. Mr. Saker was instrumental in developingeassful partnerships in more thar
countries. He offices in Irving, Texas.

Clarence Zierhut has served on our Board of Dirscsince April 1996. We believe it is appropriéde Mr. Zierhut to continue 1
serve as a Director primarily due to his lifetinfeegperience in conception and development of imtiwe products as well as his experienc
adapting such products to address mass produssores. Finally, Mr. Zierhut has valuable expereand insight arising out of the succes
running of his own small company. Mr. Zierhut foeddan industrial design firm in 1955, Zierhut Desigow Origin Design, that develc
new products from concept through final prototypéke ceased management of the company for a pefitiche but has since resumed
executive duties. During his professional carbr,Zierhut has created over 3,000 product desfignsore than 350 companies worldwide
virtually every field of manufacturing, and has worany international awards for design excellenekgs clients have included Johnsol
Johnson, Abbott, Gould, and McDonnell Douglas. fdeeived a Bachelor of Arts from Art Center CollegeDesign in Los Angele
California.

Significant Employees

Shayne Blythe has been with us for over ten yeatsia our Director of Sales and Marketing LogisticShe is responsible
developing and implementing strategic directiorigectives, comprehensive sales and marketing p&rt programs. In addition, she dir
and oversees all aspects of the distribution psoaad customer service policies in order to mordtat maintain customer satisfaction. Pric
joining us, Ms. Blythe assisted Mr. Shaw with thiegimal 3mL syringe and other SBIR grant projeckds. Blythe has a Bachelors of Busir
Administration in management from the American fodatinental University.

John W. Fort Ill is our Director of Accounting. MFort joined us in March of 2000 as a Financiablst and has served as
Director of Accounting since October of 2002. ldrmary responsibilities include managing the degdy operations of the Accounting
Finance Department and coordination of the annu@its, and
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interim reviews by our independent accountantayel as our cost accounting and forecasting fumstioPrior to joining us, he served as
Manager of Financial Planning for the produtdrketing department of Excel Communications. Rt also served as the Manage
Budgeting and Projections for Snelling and Snelling., an international personnel services firvr. Fort holds a Bachelor of Busin
Administration in Accounting from Tarleton Stateildersity.

James A. Hoover joined us in February 1996 anduisirector of Quality Assurance. Prior to his bedng Director of Qualit
Assurance he was Production Manager. He is reggerfer our quality assurance functions. Mr. Heohas also developed and impleme
FDA required procedures and has been involveddrFDA inspection process. Mr. Hoover joined usraftorking for Sherwood for 26 yea
During his tenure with Sherwood, a medical devianuofacturing company, he gained hawodsexperience in all aspects of the medical dt
manufacturing process. Mr. Hoover began his carétbr Sherwood as a materials handler and workedualy up through a series of positi
with added responsibilities to his final positidmete as Production Manager of @ffie Molding, Operating Room/Critical Care. Ind
capacity, he managed several departments, ranat@reduct lines, and hired and supervised over&@iployees. While at Sherwood, he
gained experience with one of the country’s fiefesy syringes, the Monoje®t

R. John Maday joined us in July 1999 and is ourdBection Manager. He is responsible for supervisibrihe production of o
products. Prior to becoming Production Managedamuary 1, 2005, he served as our Production GeBeparvisor. Mr. Maday has over
years of manufacturing experience in both clasnt 11l medical devices. He spent three years Wigmtor Corp. supervising two product
departments and 13 years with Sherwood in whiclydieed handen experience in all aspects of medical device ramturing includin
managing the Kit and Packaging department with @25 employees. Mr. Madag/'formal training includes FDA and Total Qus
Management Systems and he is certified as a BlattkoB Six Sigma Methodology.

Judy Ni Zhu joined us in 1995 and is our Researcth@evelopment Manager. Her primary focus is on peoduct development a
improvement of current products. Prior to joiniag, Ms. Zhu worked as a design engineer with MavBlon the original 3mL syringe a
other SBIR grant projects. Ms. Zhu received hecHgdor of Science from Northwest Polytechnic Unsigrin Xian, China, and her Mastet
Engineering from the University of Texas at Arliagt Ms. Zhu has assisted in design modificatiomsthe 3mL syringe, which ha
maximized both product reliability and productiofii@ency. She also designed and developed a miamedle assembly machine anc
automatic lubricating and capping system for thd_3wringe and developed and assisted in the desfiggtutomated blood collection tu
holder assembly equipment. Ms. Zhu has collabdraith Ms. Duesman and Mr. Shaw in the filing ofesrl patent applications.

FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS

There are no family relationships among the abareqns except as set forth above.
DIRECTORSHIPS IN OTHER COMPANIES

No Directors hold directorships in reporting comigan
INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None of the above persons or any business in wdich person was an executive officer have beerhieddn a bankruptcy petitio
been subject to a criminal proceeding (excludimadfitr violations and other minor offenses), beehjsct to any order enjoining or suspenc
their involvement in any type of business, or bparty to an alleged violation of a securities l@amnmodities law, law or regulation respec
financial institutions or insurance companies, @awegulation prohibiting mail or wire fraud, orles of any organization that has disciplir
authority over its members.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMRNCE

Section 16 of the Exchange Act requires our Dinetexecutive officers, and persons who own moae tt0% of a registered clas:
our equity securities to file with the SEC initie@ports of beneficial ownership (Form 3)
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and reports of changes in beneficial ownershipr{fso4 and 5) of our Common Stock and our other gcggturities. Officers, Directors, &
greater than 10% shareholders are required by H@sSregulations to furnish us with copies of adicBon 16(a) reports they file. All of o
Directors, executive officers, and 10% shareholfiexd all reports timely.

CODE OF ETHICS

Effective as of March 9, 2004, we adopted a codetbits that applies to all employees, includingt ot limited to, our princip
executive and financial officers. Our Code of Bigsis Conduct and Ethics is designed to deter waingdnd to promote:

1. Honest and ethical conduct, including the ethiealdiing of actual or apparent conflicts of intesds¢tween personal and
professional relationship

2. Full, fair, accurate, timely, and understandabgeldisure in reports and documents that we file vattsubmit to, the SEC al
in our other public communication

3. Compliance with applicable governmental laws, rugesl regulations
4, The prompt, internal reporting of violations of tb&de to an appropriate person or persons ideshfifiche code; an
5. Accountability for adherence to the co

The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics was amand2D9 to reflect the new name change for the EYA®hex and also primari
to add our Insider Trading Policy as it currenttgrals. Other minor changes were also made. A obplye amended code is incorpor:
herein as Exhibit No. 14We have posted a copy of the code on our websitenat.vanishpoint.com/investor.asp. Please follbw link tc
“Governance” then follow the link to “Charters,’h click on “RVP Corporate Code of ConducAhy amendment to this code or waiver o
application to the principal executive officer, mripal financial officer, principal accounting aféir, or controller or similar person shall
disclosed to investors by means of a Fori ing with the SEC. We will provide to any pens without charge, upon request, a copy of
code of ethics. Such requests should be subniittediting to Mr. Douglas W. Cowan at 511 Lobo LakeO. Box 9, Little EIm, Texas 75068-
0009.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

We have a separatetiesignated standing Audit Committee establishedcitordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the ExchaAgt
consisting of Messrs. Clarence Zierhut, Marco tzteand Marwan Saker. Each of the members ofAtidit Committee is independent
determined by the NYSE Amex rules.

Audit Committee Financial Expert

The Board of Directors has determined that we feveast one financial expert serving on the A@timmittee. Mr. Marco Later
serves as our designated Audit Committee Finafoiglert. Mr. Laterza is independent as it is defif@ Audit Committee members by -
listing standards of the NYSE Amex.
ltem 11. Executive Compensation.

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Obijectives of Our Compensation Plan

Our executive officer compensation program (therffpensation Program’is based on the belief that competitive compensas

essential to attract, retain, motivate, and rewagthly qualified and industrious executive officel®ur Compensation Program is intende

accomplish the following:
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attract and retain highly talented and productixecetive officers;

provide incentives and rewards for superior peréomoe by the executive officers; and

align the interests of executive officers with theerests of our stockholders.
What the Compensation Program Is Designed to Award

Our Compensation Program is designed to awarddgibrior long-term performance by our executivécefs and their loyalty.
Summary of Each Element of Compensation

To achieve these objectives, the Compensation amfig's Committee has approved an executive offioenpensation program tl
consists of three basic components:

base salary;

periodic long-term incentive compensation in therf@f stock options; and

medical, life, and benefit programs (which are galhe available on the same terms to all employees)
Why We Choose to Pay Each Element of Our Compensati Program
Base Salan

We choose to pay a significant component of our memsation in base salary due to the fact that mamé€ial performance
constrained by the monopolistic activities of Bi/e have been blocked from access to the markekxdlysive marketing practices engage
by BD who dominates the market. We believe ttanibnopolistic business practices continue desfjtés paying $100 million to settle
prior lawsuit with us in 2004 for anticompetitiveaptices, business disparagement, and tortioudénémce and (ii) the fact that a jury retur
a verdict in November 2009 finding that all threstgmts asserted by us against BD are valid anmged by BD. Until such time as we beli
that we have access to the market, we believeittimappropriate to weigh our Compensation Progheavily in favor of base salaries raf
than in incentive compensation.

Long-Term Incentives: Stock Options

Long+erm incentives are provided through grants oflstmations. The grants are designed to align therésts of executive office
with those of stockholders and to provide each ethee officer with a significant incentive to mareaffom the perspective of an owner witt
equity stake in the Company.

How We Determine the Amount or Formula for Paymentin Light of Our Objectives

Executive compensation remains the same until tisesiereview of such compensation by the Compemsaind Benefits Committe
Compensation, other than that of the Chief Exeeu®fficer, has generally not been reviewed annuallnder the terms of Mr. Shasv’
employment agreement, his compensation is reviemedally. In the past, when there is a reviewxefceitive compensation, we have reta
an outside consulting firm, Trinity Executive Reiteus, Inc., to provide benchmarks for similar c@ngation given the multiple and vai
positions each executive fulfills as well as ozesand the hostile environment in which we operate.

Base Salan

The base salary for each of our executive officesubjectively determined primarily on the badishe following factors: experienc
individual performance, contribution to our perf@nce, level of responsibility, duties and functiogalary levels in effect for compara
positions within and without our industry, and mm&l base salary comparability considerations. elmw, salaries can also be affected by
long-term needs.
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These base salaries are reviewed periodically andba adjusted based upon the factors discussbe jprevious sentence, as we
upon individual performance during the previougsdisyear, changes in the duties, responsibilities fanctions of the executive officer, ¢
general changes in the compensation peer grougichwve compete for executive talent. The relatigght given to each of these factor
the Compensation and Benefits Committeeécommendation differs from individual to indival, as the Compensation and Ben
Committee deems appropriate.

Beginning August 1, 2009, all employees above #atesalary level had their salaries reduced by .10%is included all Executit
Officers. However, Mr. Shaw’Employment Agreement provides salary is autoraliiyicncreased by the percentage increase in thewuoe
price index (“CPI”) from the previous year. Ther@oensation and Benefits Committee decided to iserédr. Shaws salary (which had al
been previously cut by 10%) by $11,254.04 for 2010.

Long-Term Incentive: Stock Options

We have issued stock options to our employees fiora to time and may do so in the future. We didlissue any stock options
2007. We issued new options under the 2008 Statlo® Plan to purchase an aggregate of 962,68%&sldrCommon Stock in exchange
the cancellation of tendered options pursuant tdexchange Offer in 2008. We issued incentive stogtions (“ISOs”)for the purchase
269,956 shares of Common Stock and Non QualifietkSOptions (“NQSOs”Yor the purchase of 229,494 shares of Common Sto
Executive Officers and Directors under the 200&BtOption Plan in July 2009. Options are genergignted to regular fulime employee
and officers except to our CEO.

In 2009, the Compensation and Benefits Committemtgd the first option to Thomas J. Shaw, our C&Bich option grant wz
approved by the shareholders later that year. dgt®n was granted outside of any plan and wagHerpurchase of 3,000,000 share
Common Stock. The committee took into consideratiamnong other things, the following benefits reediand to be received by the Comg
in consideration for the grant of the option:

Mr. Shaw has been the primary developer of allhef €ompany’s products and is crucial to the recent
development of a number of new products that apaltie of expanding the Company’s product line both
inside and (eventually) outside of the syringe regrk

Mr. Shaw’s active participation and continuationthwthe Company is crucial for the success of the
Company in breaking into the market through itsesavongoing lawsuits. Mr. Shaw’s participationswa
crucial in obtaining the Company’s prior litigatisettlements for tens of millions of dollars;

Mr. Shaw had his salary reduced by 10% beginningagust 1, 2009;

Mr. Shaw only had a substantive pay raise threedigince the Company'’s incorporation in 1994;

Mr. Shaw has never before been granted optionsitddse fact it is a standard compensation pradticea
person in his position; and

Mr. Shaw has never before been granted a bonugtel¢isp fact it is a standard compensation pradtca
person in his position.

If stock options are to be issued, Management pespa proposal to the Compensation and Benefitsn@ittee. Considerations
Management in its initial proposal in determininguitable aggregate fair market value of optionsdaranted include our financial conditi
the number of options already outstanding, and#reefit to the norexecutive officer employees. The proposal includé&srmation relating t
the expected expense of such grants to be recabbjzas, the approximate number of options to bedd, the number of options
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currently outstanding, the employees to be includegel amount of stock currently outstanding, arelrtiethod under which the options wc
be awarded.

Once the dollar amount of options to be grantedpproved by the Compensation and Benefits Commilttenagement begi
determining the aggregate number of shares undegriyptions that can be granted under such app(baakd on the fair value of an option
the purchase of one underlying share). Factotaded in the determination of the value of an aptpant for the purchase of one share inc
current market price of the Company’s stock, theppsed exercise price, the proposed expiration, tlagevolatility of the Compang’ stock
and the risk free rate. We may retain an indepetoletside consultant to determine such valuethénpast we have utilized the BlaSkhole
model as well as the binomial model, but we mayaiker methods in the future as more appropriathods are developed.

Management provides the Compensation and Beneditsn@ittee with a proposal regarding option grantexecutive officers. If tt
recommendation is acceptable, the committee gthateptions. If the committee feels changes anétedk it grants options on its own terms.

With regard to many past grants, after the aggeegaimber of shares underlying the options to batgdawas determined,
allocated the options to our various departmentsgua factor based on their annual compensatiorgitheir performance rating. 1
individual employee’s allocation factor was the mwator of a fraction. The denominator was the depent's sum of all factors (annt
compensation times performance ratings of all tlgghdée employees). The resulting fraction was tiplied by the stock options to be awar
to determine the employeeindividual portion of the aggregate approvedami Future grants may be based on the valuentfilootions tc
the Company and not necessarily pursuant to amyufiar.

The allocation was, from time to time, further mwved by each departmestnanagement if they believed certain employees we
awarded an appropriate number of options, whichadament would consider.

Each stock option grant to employees allows theleyee to acquire shares of Common Stock at a fpeek per share (never I
than the closing stock price of the Common Stocktendate of grant) for a fixed period (usually sexars). With regard to grants priol
2009, each option generally became exercisable #itee years, contingent upon the emplogeedntinued employment with us.
exceptions include options issued to Officers andbeddors pursuant to the Exchange Offer, which edstmmediately for nommploye:
Directors and after one year for employees (incigd¢mployee Directors) and options granted in 20B&h vested in one year for execu
officers and immediately for noemployee Directors. Accordingly, generally stogkion grants will provide a return to the employmdy if
the employee remains employed by us during theéngeperiod, and then only if the market price af tinderlying Common Stock apprecia
Future grants may vest over a shorter or longeoger

How Each Compensation Element and Decision Fits IntOverall Compensation Objectives

Our Compensation Program is intended to accomplishfollowing objectives: 1) attract and retain lligtalented and producti
executive officers; 2) provide incentives and redgafor superior performance by the executive officand 3) align the interests of execu
officers with the interests of our stockholders.

We ensure, through periodic retention of compearatbnsulting experts to provide a benchmark amalysindustry compensatic
that overall compensation is sufficient to attractd retain highly talented and productive executificers. We pay the bulk of ¢
compensation in the form of cash compensation dued fact that competing in an antmpetitive environment means that results will
always be commensurate with performance. We beltbat the performance of our executives has bedstamding. We believe this
especially true given the ardgémpetitive environment in which we operate. Basuare granted from time to time (the last tim@003) tc
recognize extraordinary performance and/or extiaarg job requirements. We believe this approauth weighting of compensation eleme
is necessary to retain our executive talent dubd@nvironment in which we operate.

Periodically, we grant stock options with the iritea provide both an incentive and reward to exgeubfficers for longtermr
performance and to align the interests of our eyg#e with that of the shareholders.
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Allocation Between Long-Term/Current and Between Cah/Non-Cash Compensation

All of our long-term compensation consists of mash compensation in the form of stock options. Wkeve that the granting
stock options incentivizes executives to maximige longterm strengths as well as our stock price. Howevecause we are operating
monopolistic environment and our stock price htkelrelationship with our performance, the mosg#icant component of compensatiol
base salary and not stock options. Managememicented to maximize shareholder value and will dgarded if they do so. Howevel
significant base salary enables us to retain tispetent Management despite the current inabdifyrovide valuable equity incentives.

How Determinations Are Made as to When Awards Are @anted

Generally, option awards to executive officers granted by the Compensation and Benefits Committekfor others are grantec
the discretion of the Board after recommendatiothefCompensation and Benefits Committee or orcdmemittees own initiative. No awart
are granted if the Compensation and Benefits Cotaedoes not support a recommendation.

Unfortunately, our stock price does not always reacexpected to our achievements. Accordinglyiregs options have been grar
to aid in retaining competent and experienced ezl without regard to the then current stock ari¢dowever, such options always h
exercise prices that are at or above fair markietevan the date of grant.

In addition, there is no relationship between thgedf grant of options and our possession of n@hteonpublic information (i.e. w
grant options without regard to whether or not we ia possession of material npoblic information as we usually are in possessibauct
information). Furthermore, it is our policy witegard to options that (although the options co@dxercised) the underlying shares coulc
be sold into the market while the executive wapdasession of material ngublic information under our insider trading policiccordingly
we believe that there is minimal risk of the ex@aiprofiting from such material nonpublic infornaat.

What Specific Items of Corporate Performance Are Téen Into Account in Setting Compensation Policiesrad Making Compensatior
Decisions

Cash reserves as well as trends in sales andarestaken into account when considering the adiigabf increasing base salaries
granting cash bonuses. However, no specific iteht®rporate performance are taken into accouseiting executive compensation due tc
fact that we compete in a monopolistic environmantl, therefore, significant achievement or perfaroeais not always correlated w
corporate results. At such times that any of thizsgors make it inadvisable to increase salarieggrant bonuses as advisable, !
consideration is given to increasing option awaadting into account the value of prior option awsard

Awards are granted on the basis of historical perémce. Accordingly, there is no discretion torggthe awards once granted.
How Compensation Reflects Individual Performance

Executive compensation is not based on the indalidwontribution to specific, quantitative corporatgectives due to the fact tl
we compete in a monopolistic environment. Howewedjvidual's contribution to the Compars/performance is determined pursuar
qualitative factors as discussed above undéow We Determine the Amount or Formula for Paymentin Light of Our Objectives.”
Factors We Consider in Determining to Change Compesation Materially

We consider our cash position, current liquidignigls, and the short-term and lalegm needs for cash reserves (especially in li§
the hostile environment in which we operate) whealgating whether we can change compensation raliyeait a given time.
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On an individual-by-individual basis, we also calesithe value of past option compensation, the etitiyeness of that individuad’
base salary, and that individual's contributiorotw goals.

The Impact of the Accounting and Tax Treatments oDur Types of Compensation

Stock options granted to executives and other eyepl® are expensed for accounting purposes und&tdlok Compensation Topic
the Codification. We expense all of our optiontsaas we do the costs of salaries and any perlatitises. Accordingly, the impact of
treatment of various compensation forms does npaghour compensation decisions. Stock option @sg@és not recognized for tax purpo
except in the case of non-qualified stock optioRer nongualified stock options, the intrinsic value of thgtion is recognized when the opt
is exercised.

Our Policy Regarding Stock Ownership and Hedging

We do not have a policy regarding stock ownerslyipekecutive officers. We prohibit certain stoclrtsactions by employees
Directors, including:

1. Purchases and sales of stock witdix month period;
2. Short sales; and
3. Transactions in puts, calls, or otherivative securities.

Furthermore, employees and Directors are requagad-clear any hedging transactions.
Benchmarking of Our Compensation Program

In 2003, we hired Trinity Executive Recruiters,.Irto assist us in providing benchmarks for the rgaomponent of executi
compensation by similarly sized companies in simidustries for persons that hold positions whacé currently fulfilled by various memb
of our executive team. These benchmarks suppastirgx executive compensation.

The Role of Our Executives and Directors in Deterntiing Compensation

Management establishes the initial recommendatiegarding compensation for all employees, includhmgmselves. Such propc
is then submitted to the Compensation and Beng&titemittee for its approval.

Compensation Pursuant to Employment Agreement

We have an Employment Agreement with Mr. ThomaShhw which was modified effective January 1, 20®&\oid adverse ti
consequences to Mr. Shaw created by the passdge Afmerican Jobs Creation Act of 2004. No othecatives or Directors are compens:
pursuant to employment agreements.

Our Employment Agreement with Mr. Shaw (the “Empt@nt Agreement”provides for an initial period of three years whied:
December 31, 2010 that automatically and continlyorenews for consecutive twgear periods. The Employment Agreement is terme
either by us or Mr. Shaw upon 30 days’ written o@tbr upon Mr. Shaw’s death.

The Employment Agreement provides for an annuargalf at least $416,399.88 with an annual salacyeiase equal to no less t
the percentage increase in the CPI over the pmar.y The Employment Agreement requires that Mav®$ salary be reviewed by 1
Compensation and Benefits Committee annually, whitdill make such increases as it considers appteprMr. Shaw took a 10% salary
in August of 2009, along with all other executiviiaers and other employees earning over a cesalary. In 2010, the Compensation
Benefits Committee increased his salary by $11(®264.
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Under the Employment Agreement, we are obligategré@ide certain benefits, including, but not liedtto, participation in qualifie
pension plan and profit-sharing plans, participatio the Companyg Cafeteria Plan and other such insurance bengfit¢ided to othe
executives, paid vacation, and sick leave. Weadse obligated to furnish him with a cellular tdtepe and suitable office space as we
reimburse him for any reasonable and necessargfquicket travel and entertainment expenses indusgehim in carrying out his duties ¢
responsibilities, membership dues to professiorgdmizations, and any business-related seminarsarfdrences.

Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, we are dielibto indemnify Mr. Shaw for all legal expensesurt costs, and all liabiliti¢
incurred in connection with any proceeding invotytmim by reason of his being an officer, employ®eagent of the Company. We are fur
obligated to pay reasonable attorney fees and eggeand court and other costs associated withefésise in the event that, in Mr. Shawgole
judgment, he needs to retain counsel or otherwipered his personal funds for his defer

Upon his death, Mr. Shaw’estate shall be entitled to his salary throughdéite of death, applicable benefits, and reimiouese o
expenses.

We have the right to terminate the Employment Agreet if Mr. Shaw incurs a permanent disability dgrithe term of h
employment. A permanent disability means that 8fraw is unable to engage in any substantial gaadtiVity by reason of any medice
determinable physical or mental impairment which ba expected to result in death or can be expeotéabt for a continuous period of
less than 12 months or is, by reason of any mdgidaterminable physical or mental impairment whien be expected to result in deat
can be expected to last for a continuous periagobiess than 12 months, receiving income replace¢imenefits for a period of not less the
months under an accident and health plan coveringlayees of the Company. Mr. Shaw shall also bendsl to be disabled if he
determined to be totally disabled by the SocialuBigc Administration. In such event, Mr. Shaw istided to his salary through the date
termination, reimbursement of expenses, and s&dary period of 24 months as well as applicableefien

Mr. Shaw’s employment may be terminated for cause whictefgéd to be conviction of a felony which is maadlgi detrimental t
the Company, proof, as determined finally by a toficompetent jurisdiction of the gross negligencavillful misconduct which is material
detrimental to the company or proof, as determifiedlly by a court of competent jurisdiction, oftaeach of a fiduciary duty which
materially detrimental to the Company. In suchreyvle shall be entitled to his salary throughdhte of termination plus reimbursemen
expenses.

If Mr. Shaw is terminated without cause and nohiatimplicit request, Mr. Shaw shall be entitledhis salary through the date
termination, reimbursement of expenses, his sdtarg4 months, as well as applicable benefits.

If Mr. Shaw resigns (other than because of a changeontrol), he is entitled to his salary throutfe date of terminatio
reimbursement of expenses, salary for 90 daysapplicable benefits.

Mr. Shaw has the right under this agreement tagresi the event that there is a change in contPol:‘Change of Control”shall be
deemed to have occurred on either of the follovdates: (i) the date any one person (other tharSkiaw), or more than one person acting
group, acquires (or has acquired during thentti2th period ending on the date of the most reeequisition by such person or perse
ownership of stock of the Company possessing 30%ane of the total possible voting power of thecktof the Company (assuming
immediate conversion of all then outstanding cotiller preferred stock) or (ii) the date a majoritfymembers of the Board of Director:
replaced during any 1&wonth period by Directors whose appointment or tedacis not endorsed by a majority of the membefrghe
Companys Board of Directors before the date of the appoént or election. Mr. Shaw further has the rightdsign if there is a change
ownership. A change in ownership is defined toehagcurred on the date that any one person (dtler Mr. Shaw) or more than one pel
acting as a group acquires ownership of the Comgastpck that, together with the stock previouslidh® such person or group constitt
more than 50% of the total fair market value oaltatoting power (assuming the immediate conversibmll then outstanding convertil
preferred stock) of the Company. In such event Sfaw is entitled to salary through the date ofmteation, salary for 24 montt
reimbursement of expenses and applicable benefits.
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Mr. Shaws commitment to the Company may not be construegragenting him from participating in other busises or fror
investing his personal assets as may require antasdr incidental time in the management, congemaand protection of such investme
provided such investments or businesses cannairistroed as being competitive or in conflict witle tusiness of the Company.

Mr. Shaw has agreed to a one-year nompete, not to hire or attempt to hire employeesohe year, and to not make known
customers or accounts or to call on or solicit accounts or customers in the event of terminatiohi® employment for one year unless
termination is without cause or pursuant to a ckasfgcontrol or ownership.

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation and Benefits Committee has revdieavel discussed the COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANASIS
required by Item 402(b) with Management, and, basedhe review and discussions referred to in pagay (e)(5)(i)(A) of Item 407, h
recommended to the Board of Directors that the CEMBATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS be included in threport on Form 10-K.

CLARENCE ZIERHU1
MARCO LATERZA
AMY MACK
SUMMARY OF TOTAL COMPENSATION

The following Summary Compensation Table sets furehtotal compensation paid or accrued by us thesprior three years to or-
the account of the principal executive officer, gacipal financial officer, and the three highpaid additional executive officers:

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE FOR 2007-2009

Option All Other
Salary Awards M Compensation Total

Name and Principal Position Year $ $) $) $)
Thomas J. Sha' 2007 400,000 — 4,20(@ 404,20(
President and CE! 2008 416,548 — 4,60(@ 421,14¢
(principal executive officer 2009 399,887 1,762,50 4,80¢2 2,167,19!
Douglas W. Cowal 2007 290,109 77¢€ 4,20(@ 295,08°
Vice President, CF( 2008 290,000 6,46( 4,60(@ 301,06(
(principal financial officer' 2009 278,289 57,57¢ 3,346 339,21(
Steven R. Wisne 2007 290,000 75¢ 4,20(@ 294,95¢
Executive Vice Presider 2008 290,020 6,69 4,60(@ 301,31«
Engineering and Productic 2009 278,289 13,80¢ 3,122 295,21¢
Michele M. Larios 2007 350,000 797 4,20(@ 354,99
Vice President 2008 350,540 6,84: 4,60(@ 361,98:
General Counse¢ 2009 336,676 89,85¢ 4,047 430,58:
Russell B. Kuhlmal 2007 134,779 36¢ 2,69t 137,84
Vice President, Sale 2008 140,000 4,01¢ 2,80(@ 146,81¢
2009 133,769 14,68¢ 1,60¢@ 150,06:

(1) Except for the option granted to Mr. Shaw,agtions issued during or after 2008 were grantetkuthe 2008 Stock Option Plan, a cop
which is incorporated herein as
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Exhibit No. 10.9. Options issued prior to 2008 evessued under either the 1996 Incentive Stockadp®lan, the 1996 Stock Option Plan
Directors and Other Individuals, or under the 1$86ck Option Plan. The employees who had such mpticere permitted to exchange tt
for options granted under the 2008 Stock Optiom Blarsuant to an Exchange Offer in 2008.

The fair value of each option grant prior to 200&svestimated on the date of grant using the B&aheles option pricing model w
the following weighted average assumptions usedyfants in 2004: no dividend yield; expected vtitgtiof 37%; risk free interest rate
4.89%; and an expected life of 9.0 years. No otiwere issued in 2006 or 2000ptions granted before 2008 were issued under 39€
Stock Option Plan, a copy of which Plan and amemdmere filed as exhibits to our Form 10-SB filad dune 23, 2000 and our Form K&B
filed on March 31, 2003, respectively. Option asvarpense for grants issued before 2008 were &ntigrtized by the first quarter of 2007.

Option award expense for 2008 is that portion effdir value of the options issued under the Exghabffer in 2008. The exper
for the options issued under the Exchange Offerfudysamortized in 2009. The fair value of eadd08 option grant was estimated on the
of grant using the binomial option pricing modettwthe following weighted average assumptions deegjrants in 2008: no dividend yie
expected volatility of 67.53%; risk free intereate of 2.83%; and an expected life of 8.61 to 8:68rs. The options were issued unde
2008 Stock Option Plan, a copy of which Plan wkesifas Appendix B to our definitive Schedule 14l&dion August 19, 2008.

The fair value of each 2009 grant is estimated hen date of the grant using the Bla8kholes pricing model with the followi
weighted average assumptions used for grants i8:20(pected volatility of 67.53%, risk free intdreate of 3.35%, and an expected lif¢
8.61 to 8.69 years. Other than the options issoddirt Shaw, the options were issued under the Z168k Option Plan.

(2) This amount was compensation purst@atir matching contributions to the 401(k) plan.

GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS

The following Grants of PlaBased Awards for 2009 Table sets forth informatiegarding grants of awards made under any pl
each named executive officer in the last complésa@l year.

Grants of Plan-Based Awards for 2009

Estimated All Other
Future Option
Payouts Awards: Exercise
Under Equity Number of or base Grant date
Incentive Shares of price of fair value
Plan Awards Stocks or option of stock
Grant Target Units awards and option
Name Date # # $/share awards
Thomas J. Shar 7/15/0¢ — 3,000,00C $0.81 $1,762,50(
President and CE!
(principal executive officer
Douglas W. Cowal 7/15/0¢ 98,000 — $0.81 $57,57¢
Vice President, CF(
(principal financial officer
Steven R. Wisne 7/15/0¢ 23,500 — $0.81 $ 13,80¢€
Executive Vice Presider
Engineering and Productic
Michele M. Larios 7/15/0¢ 123,456 29,494 $0.81 $ 89,858

Vice President
General Counse
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Estimated All Other
Future Option
Payouts Awards: Exercise
Under Equity Number of or base Grant date
Incentive Shares of price of fair value
Plan Awards Stocks or option of stock
Grant Target Units awards and option
Name Date # # $/share awards
Russell B. Kuhimai 7/15/0¢ 25,000 — $0.81 $ 14,68¢

Vice President, Sale

Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Tabland Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table

Please se€Compensation Pursuant to Employment Agreementand POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION O
CHANGE IN CONTROL below for terms of our only emghoent agreement in effect.

The material terms of awards reported in the GraftBlanBased Awards Table include that such options vasfidy 15, 201
(assuming the recipient is still employed by ugj arpire on July 15, 2019. All options granted\tamed Executive Officers in 2009 have
exercise price per share equal to the close ofnbasistock price on July 15, 2009 ($0.81). The f@oreation and Benefits Commit
approved the grant of these stock options on Jo\2009. All options (except to Mr. Shaw) wererdeal under the 2008 Stock Option Pla
copy of which Plan was filed as Appendix B to oefiditive Schedule 14A filed on August 19, 2008.r.Ihaws stock option was grant
outside of any plan under similar terms and coodgias those set forth under the 2008 Stock Ojftian, with the exception that Mr. Shaw
option terminates after 10 years and not five yéans the date of grant. (See Exhibit No. 10.10). Blnaws stock option was approved
shareholders at the annual meeting in 2009.

The ratios of salary and bonus to total compensdtip2009, for each Named Executive Officer isad®ws:

Thomas J. Sha 18.5%
Steven R. Wisne 94.%%
Douglas W. Cowal 82.(%
Michele M. Larios 78.2%
Russell Kuhlmar 89.1%

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END

The following Outstanding Equity Awards at FiscadafEnd Table sets forth information regarding unexsadioptions held by t
principal executive officer, the principal finank@ficer, and the three highest paid additionad@xive officers as of December 31, 2009.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at 2009 Fiscal Year End
Option Awards
Equity Incentive

Plan Awards:
Number of Number of Number of
Securities Securities Securities
Underlying Underlying Underlying Option
Unexercised Unexercised Unexercised Exercise Option
Options Options Unearned Options Price Expiration

Name Exercisable Unexercisable®) (#) @ $) Date

Thomas J. Sha — 3,000,00! — 0.81 7-15-19
President, CE(

(principal executive officer

Douglas W. Cowal 102,00( — — 1.3C 11-18-18
Vice President, CF( — — 98,00( 0.81 7-15-19
(principal financial officer’

Steven R. Wisne 100,70( — — 1.3C 11-18-18
Executive Vice Presider — — 23,50( 0.81 7-15-19
Engineering and Productic

Michele M. Larios 97,05( — — 1.3C 11-18-18
Vice President — — 123,45¢ 0.81 7-15-19
General Counst — 29,49 — 0.81 7-15-19

Russell B. Kuhlmal 63,45( — — 1.3C 11-18-18
Vice President, Sale — — 25,00( 0.81 7-15-19

(1) These options will vest on July 15, 2010, assunttiegrecipient is still employed by us.
(2) These options will vest on July 15, 2010, assurtliegrecipient is still employed by us.

PENSION BENEFITS

We do not have a pension plan other than the 4Qil#k) which is available to all employees the fogthe month after 90 days
service.

401(k) Plan

We implemented an employee savings and retiremliamt @ghe “401(k) Plan”) in 2005 that is intendedlde a taxgualified plai
covering substantially all employees. Under thiengeof the 401(k) Plan, employees may elect tordmrte up to 88% of their compensation
the statutory prescribed limit, if less. We may, car discretion, match employee contributions. Wade matching contributions
approximately $76,643 and $122,000 in 2009 and 20spectively. $16,930 and $21,095 of these nragctontributions were to execut
officers in 2009 and 2008, respectively. We sudpdmmatching contributions beginning August 1, 2068l further notice.

POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN CRTROL
The following table identifies the types and amesuait payments that shall be made to Mr. Thomas ShawCEO, in the event o
termination of his employment or a change in cdrper his Employment Agreement. Such payments sleamade by us and shall be one-

time, lump sum payments except as indicated below.
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SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN C ONTROL
ASSUMING OCCURRENCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009Y

Salary Amounts
Through Owed Payment
Trigger Under Undiscounted Salary  Equal to
Event Benefit Reimbursement For a Period of 24 90 Days’ Value of
Payment Triggering Event Date Plans® of Expenses Months Salary  Payments®
Death X X X — — —
Disability X X X 750,270 — 750,270
Termination With Caus X — X — — —
Termination Without Caus X X X 750,270 — 750,270
Resignation (Other Than After
Change in Control X X X — 92,499 92,499
Resignation (After a Change
Control) X X X 750,270 — 750,270
@ The above payments would be paid under Mr. Shagreement at certain times. Any payments ariaig result of disability

resignation would be paid not sooner than six morghd one day from the termination date but nadrl#tan seven months from

termination date. Any payments arising as a resfulieath would be paid no later than the"@ay following the death. Payments arising
result of termination with cause or terminationheitit cause would be paid not later than thé& 3fay following the date of termination exc
that any amount due in excess of an amount equbktéesser of two times annual compensation ortimes the limit on compensation un
section 401(17) of the Internal Revenue Code o6188h amount in excess shall be paid no earlgr §ix months and one day after the
of termination but in no event later than seven therafter the date of termination. Under Mr. Sreagreement, Mr. Shaw has agreed
one-year norcompete, not to hire or attempt to hire employ@eohe year, and to not make known our customeecoounts or to call on
solicit our accounts or customers in the eveneahtnation of his employment for one year unlegstdrmination is without cause or purst
to a change of control. However, it is not cléwttthe above payments are conditioned on the qpeaface of these contractual obligations.

(2) Mr. Shaw participates in our benefit plans whichndt discriminate in scope, terms, or operatiofairor of executive officers. Su

plans are generally available to all salaried eyg#s. Accordingly, the value of such paymentsaoisincluded in the “Value of Payments”
column.

3) This value does not include payments under ourfiigaians for reasons set forth in footnote 2 abolreaddition, this value assun
that the triggering event occurred on Decembe809. Authorized payments under the Employmeneagrent are also capped to one d
less than the amount that would cause Mr. Shawve tid recipient of a parachute payment under Se280G(b) of the Internal Revenue Cc
COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

The following table identifies the types and amasuot compensation earned by our Directors (with ékeeption of those that ¢
named Executive Officers as described in footnaethe table) in the last Fiscal Year:
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TABLE FOR 2009

Fees Earnec

or Paid in All Other
Cash Option Awards Compensation Total
Name® $) $® $) $)
Marco Laterz: $ 3,00 $ 29,28( $ — 3 32,28(
Amy Mack $ 2500 $ 29,28( $ 9,94(® $ 41,72
Marwan Sake $ 3,00 $ 29,28( $ — 3 32,28(
Clarence Zierhu $ 3,00 $ 29,28( $ — 3 32,28(
(1) Messrs. Thomas J. Shaw, Douglas W. Cowan, and stlisner are Named Executive Officers who are &aectors. Thel

compensation is reflected in the Summary Compersatid other tables presented earlier.

2 Aggregate shares underlying options granted to Béaelttor are as follows:
Thomas J. Sha 3,000,001
Steven R. Wisne 124,20(
Douglas W. Cowa 200,00(
Marco Laterze 50,00(
Clarence Zierhu 62,50(
Marwan Sake 90,50(
Amy Mack 50,00(

The fair value of each 2009 grant is estimated hen date of the grant using the Black Scholes grieimodel with the followin
assumptions: expected volatility of 67.53%, ris&efrinterest rate of 3.35%, and an expected lif8.61 years. These options w
issued under the 2008 Stock Option Plan.

3) Ms. Mack’s company was paid these funds for pgodittng in clinical trials in 2009.

Narrative Explanation of Director Compensation Tablke for 2009

In 2009 we paid each namployee Director a fee of $500 per meeting anchivaised travel expenses. We have granted tc
Director stock options for Common Stock. We do pey any additional amounts for committee partitgraor special assignment.

Generally, employee Directors are compensated omtavill basis as discussed in the COMPENSATION DISCU3$ AND
ANALYSIS. However, one employee, Mr. Thomas J. 8haur President and CEO, is compensated pursoas mployment agreeme
Please se€ompensation Pursuant to Employment Agreementset forth above for an in depth summary of thegeof such agreement.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Eipgtion

The Compensation and Benefits Committee is cusrectimposed of Messrs. Clarence Zierhut and Marcerkza and Ms. Arr
Mack. Each of these members of this committea imdependent Board member and none have everdmepioyees.

There are no interlocking Directors or executivéicefs between us and any other company. Accolglimpne of our executi
officers or Directors served as a Director or exiweuofficer for another entity one of whose exéaes or Directors served on our Boart
Directors.

COMPENSATION POLICIES AND PRACTICES AS THEY RELATEO RISK MANAGEMENT

We do not believe that risiaking incentives are created by our compensatidicips. We do not have business units. We beltea
our compensation expense is a reasonable perceafagwenues overall. We have not set specifidoperance criteria for the award
bonuses. Salaries are awarded based on skillrierpe, and our overall revenues. Nmash awards to employees are made periodicallye
form of stock options, which we believe align thaptoyees’interests with those of stockholders. We review @ampensation policies a
practices as they relate to risk management obgsctf compensation amounts are materially amewndécdur risk
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profile changes. No changes to our compensatitici@®and practices have been implemented asuét ifhanges to our risk profile.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Mattest
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION
The following table sets forth information relatitggour equity compensation plans as of Decembge?®09:
Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities
remaining available

for
future issuance under
Number of securities to Weighted average equity compensation
be issued upon exercis exercise price of plans (excluding
of outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected
warrants and rights warrants and rights in column(a))
Plan category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved
security holder: 5,888,121 $ 1.0¢ 150,89:.
Equity compensation plans not approvec
security holders’ 225,000 $ 6.9C 0
Total 6,113,120 ¢ 1.2¢ 150,89:.
* We authorized the issuance of an individual opptan for the purchase of 200,000 shares of ComntookSo Jimmie Shiu, M.C

for his past services in introducing us to purche®é various series of Preferred Stock as wefoasntroducing us to Mr. Jack Jackson, \
controlled Katie Petroleum. The option is exerisat $6.90 per share and will terminate in 2012.

We authorized the issuance of an individual oppitan for the purchase of 25,000 shares of Commook3b Mr. Harry Watson fi
his past services in assisting us in protectingimtatlectual property. The option is exercisaité&6.90 per share and will terminate in 2012.

The Compensation and Benefits Committee author{zed the shareholders approved) a grant of an rogto the purchase
3,000,000 shares of Common Stock to our CEO, Tham8baw. The option is exercisable at a pricBOB1 per share, the market price or
date of grant. The option will terminate in 2019.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS

The following table sets forth certain informatigggarding the beneficial ownership of our capitatk as of March 1, 2010, for et
person known by us to own beneficially 5% or moir¢he voting capital stock. Except pursuant tolegple community property laws, et
shareholder identified in the table possessesvatieg and investment power with respect to hikershares, except as noted below.
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Amount and
Nature of
Name and Address o Beneficial Percent of

Title of Class Beneficial Owner Ownership Class®
Common Stocl

Thomas J. Sha® 14,580,00 54.2%

511 Lobo Lane

P.O.Box 9

Little Elm, TX 7506¢-0009

Suzanne M. Augu<® 2,800,001 11.8%

5793 Lois Lane

Plano, TX 7502«

Lillian E. Salerndg® 1,968,501 8.2%

432 Edwards

Lewisville, TX 75067

Lloyd I. Miller, 111 © 1,224,07! 5.1%

4550 Gordon Drive

Naples, FL 3410:
Class B Stocl

Thomas J. Sha 80,00( 3.5%

Lillian E. Salernc 12,50( <1%
(1) The Percent of Class is calculated for the ComntornkSclass by dividing each beneficial owrseRmount of Beneficial Ownersh

as shown in the table above, by the sum of thd tmitstanding Common Stock (23,825,149 shares) fias beneficial ownes' stocl
equivalents (options and/or preferred stock), if.aithe Percent of Class is calculated for the £Bstock by dividing each beneficial owrger’
Amount of Beneficial Ownership, as shown in thdegadbove, by the total outstanding Class B sh& 285,266 shares).

(2) 3,000,000 of the shares identified as Common Stéoekshares acquirable through the exercise ofck sfation beginning on July 1
2010. 80,000 of the shares identified as CommogkSare preferred shares which are eligible forveosion into Common Stock. 2,800,(
of the shares are owned by Ms. Suzanne Augusfdsteote 3) but are controlled by Mr. Shaw pursuara Voting Agreement. These shi
are permanently controlled by Mr. Shaw until suichetas they are sold by Ms. August. These shaee#aluded in calculating Mr. Shasv’
percentages in the above table.

3) Ms. Augusts 2,800,000 shares are controlled by Mr. Thom&haw pursuant to a Voting Agreement. Accordinghgy are als
included in the Common Stock equivalents and peacgss for Mr. Shaw in the above table.

4) 12,500 of the shares identified as Common Stockpaeéerred shares which are eligible for conversito Common Stock al

25,000 shares identified as Common Stock are shrieh are obtainable by the exercise of options.

(5) The number of shares held by this person was adtdiom a Schedule 13G/A filed on February 8, 20P0rsuant to the Sched
13G/A, Lloyd I. Miller has sole voting and dispagé power for 303,300 of the shares, and sharemhy@tnd dispositive power for 920,
shares.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND DIRECTORS

The following table sets forth certain informatigggarding the beneficial ownership of our capitatk as of March 1, 2010, for et
Named Executive Officer specified by Item 402 ofgRlation &K (i.e., our CEO, CFO, and three other highest pdiiters) and Director «
the Company. Except pursuant to applicable comipymmoperty laws or as otherwise discussed bel@aeheshareholder identified in the te
possesses sole voting and investment power witfect$o his or her shares.

Amount and
Nature of Percent
Name of Beneficial of
Title of Class Beneficial Owner Ownership Class®
Common Stocl
As a Groug Named Executive Officers and Directc 15,887,65 59.6%
As Individuals Thomas J. Sha®@ 14,580,00 54.2%
Marwan Sake® 445,50( 1.8%
Clarence Zierhu® 72,50( <1%
Douglas W. Cowal® 200,00( <1%
Steven R. Wisne® 129,20( <1%
Russell B. Kuhimai®” 89,45( <1%
Michele M. Larios® 261,00( 1.1%
Marco Laterz#® 60,00( <1%
Amy Mack 10 50,00( <1%
Class B Stocl
As a Grouf Named Executive Officers and Directt 435,00( 19.(%
As Individuals Thomas J. Sha 80,00( 3.5%
Marwan Sake 355,00( 15.5%
(1) The Percent of Class is calculated for the indiglduholding Common Stock by dividing each benefiganer's Amount o

Beneficial Ownership, as shown in the table abbwyethe sum of the total outstanding Common Sto&825,149 shares) plus that benef
owner’s stock equivalents (options and/or prefestatk), if any. The Percent of Class is calcddte the “As a Grouptows by totaling all ¢
the Percent of Class percentages appearing irhtre for individuals for each relevant class. Hercent of Class is calculated for the Cla
stock by dividing each beneficial owngrAmount of Beneficial Ownership, as shown in tige above, by the total outstanding Class B s
(2,285,266 shares).

(2) 3,000,000 of the shares identified as Common Saoekshares acquirable through the exercise ofck sfation beginning on July 1
2010. 80,000 of the shares identified as CommonokStece preferred shares which are eligible for epsion into Common Stock. 2,800,001
the shares are owned by Ms. Suzanne August butoateolled by Mr. Shaw pursuant to a Voting Agresitn These shares are permant
controlled by Mr. Shaw until such time as they so&l by Ms. August. These shares are includedlicutating Mr. Shaws percentages in t

above table.

3) 355,000 shares identified as Common Stock are peefeshares which are eligible for conversion i@mmmon Stock. The shares
held as follows: Saker Investments holds 15,500eshaf Series IV Class B Convertible Preferred Std 25,000 shares of Series V Cla
Convertible Preferred Stock, Sovana Cayman lIsldnds,holds 300,000 shares of Series IV Class Bv€dible Preferred Stock, and |
Investments Co. LLC holds 14,500 shares of Se¥eSlass B Convertible Preferred Stock. Mr. SakearigOfficer or Director and sharehol
for each of these companies. The remaining 90,5@@es identified as Common Stock are shares clyrebtainable through the exercise
options held by Mr. Saker.

4) 62,500 of these shares identified as Common Staekleares acquirable by the exercise of stock agtio
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(5) 102,000 of these shares identified as Common Stoelshares acquirable by the exercise of stoclmptind the remainder ves
July 2010.
(6) 100,700 of these shares identified as Common Stoekhares acquirable by the exercise of stockmgpand options for the purch

of 23,500 shares vest in July 2010.

@) 63,450 of these shares identified as Common Staektzares acquirable by the exercise of stock eptEmd options for the purch.
of 25,000 vest in July 2010.

(8) 97,050 of these shares identified as Common Staeklzares acquirable by the exercise of stock mp@md options for the purch
of 152,950 shares vest in July 2010.

(9) 50,000 of these shares identified as Common Stackleares acquirable by the exercise of stock gtio

(20) These shares identified as Common Stock are shagegrable by the exercise of stock options.

There are no arrangements, the operation of whalddwesult in a change in control of the Compantkier than:
1. Ms. August’s shares shall cease to be controjellr. Shaw under their Voting Agreement upontisaie to a third party; and
2. Mr. Shaw was granted an option for the purclds®000,000 shares of Common Stock. Mr. Shavbie d@o control 54.2% of tl
currently outstanding shares of the Common Stoak \would control 44.6% of the Common Stock assumntimg exercise of ¢
outstanding options and conversion of all outstaggireferred shares and convertible loans.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transaains, and Director Independence

Related Party Transactions

We believe that all of the transactions set fotloty were made on terms no less favorable to us ¢bald have been obtained fr
unaffiliated third parties. In accordance with @durdit Committee Charter, the Audit Committee hesiewed and approved all related p
transactions. In particular, the Audit Committee reviews all poged transactions where the amount involved meeatsceeds $120,000.

Thomas J. Shaw, our President and Chief Executiffedd beneficially owned 36.5% of the outstandi@@mmon Stock (ar
controlled another 11.8% pursuant to a Voting Agreet with Ms. Suzanne August) as of March 1, 2001995, Mr. Shaw was paic
licensing fee of $500,000 (amortized over 17 yedms)us for the exclusive worldwide licensing righits manufacture, market, sell, ¢
distribute retractable medical safety productsrogalty of 5% of gross sales of all licensed pradusold to customers over the life of
Technology Licensing Agreement is paid. Of thigalty, Ms. Suzanne August, the former spouse of Shaw, is entitled to $100,000
quarter. Mr. Shaw receives the remainder of thislty. A royalty of $1,183,883 and $1,766,585 wasd to Thomas J. Shaw in 2009
2008, respectively. Ms. August received $400,00@009 and 2008. Royalties of $843,327 were paitit. Shaw and Ms. August frc
January 1, 2010 through March 1, 2010. In the thudrter of 2009, the Company announced severatotting initiatives to conserve its ca
As part of those initiatives, Mr. Shaw waived $0@DO0 in royalty payments, most of which affectrcastlays in 2009.

Director Independence

The Board of Directors has the responsibility fetablishing corporate policies and for our ovepatformance, although it is r
involved in day-today operations. Currently, a majority (four of eey of the Directors serving on our Board of Dioestare independe
Directors as defined in Section 121(A) of the higtistandards of the NYSE Amex. Our current inddpeh Directors are Messrs. Clare
Zierhut, Marwan Saker, and Marco Laterza, and MayMack. Each of our committees is constituteelyaby independent Directors.

The Board of Directors, in reviewing the indeperngenf its members, further considered the fact Wapaid Ms. Maclks compan
$9,940 in 2009 and $20,875 in 2008 for conductitigical trials. The Board of Directors determinditht her independence was
compromised by such transactions.
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Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.
AUDIT FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co., L.L.P. foofpssional services rendered for the audit of aual financial statements
2009 and 2008 and the reviews of the financialestents included in our Forms T®-or services normally provided by the accounta
connection with statutory and regulatory filings foose fiscal years were $257,085 and $195,7@perively.
AUDIT RELATED FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co., L.L.P. foofpssional services rendered for the audit of 40 (k) plan for 2009 and 20
were $11,500 and $11,500, respectively.

TAX FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co., L.L.P. foegaration of federal and state income tax retamstax consulting costs relatet
notices from taxing authorities for 2009 and 20@8ev$64,929 and $91,520, respectively.

PRE-APPROVAL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
The engagement of CF & Co., L.L.P. was entered pucsuant to the approval policies and procedufethe Audit Committee
Before CF & Co., L.L.P. was engaged to render ses/the engagement was approved by the Audit CdeenifThe engagement is for a
and tax services which were detailed separatehe Audit Committee implemented its approval procedyi.e., they were not delegated to
other party. All of the services provided were-ppproved by the Audit Committee.
PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(@ (1) Allfinancial statements: See Retractable Techgiels Inc. Index to Financial Statements on Pe2.

(2) Those financial statement schedules required fddikeby Item 8 of this form, and by paragraph lgJow. Schedule -Schedule ¢
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ehddecember 31, 2009, 2008, and 2(

Balance at
beginning of Balance at
period Additions Deductions end of period

Provision for Inventorie

Fiscal year ended 20( $ 50,00 $ 155,60 $ — 3 205,60(

Fiscal year ended 20( $ 205,600 $ — $ — $ 205,60(

Fiscal year ended 20( $ 205,600 $ — $ — $ 205,60(
Provision for Accounts Receivabl

Fiscal year ended 20( $ 87,03( $ 166,97¢ $ — $ 254,00¢

Fiscal year ended 20( $ 254,00t $ 245,95¢ $ — 3 499,96t

Fiscal year ended 20( $ 499,96t $ 182,000 $ — 8 681,96t
Deferred Tax Valuatio

Fiscal year ended 20( $ 640,42. $ 3,026,500 $ — $ 3,666,93;

Fiscal year ended 20( $ 3,666,93 $ 2,366,45. $ — $ 6,033,38!
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Balance at
beginning of Balance at
period Additions Deductions end of period

Fiscal year ended 20( $ 6,033,38° $ 613,81f $ — 3 6,647,20.
Provision for Rebate (A) (B)

Fiscal year ended 20( $ 2,712,751 $ 15,329,84 $ 13,404,09 $ 4,638,49:

Fiscal year ended 20( $ 4,638,49. $ 13,625,25 $ 14,395,990 $ 3,867,841

Fiscal year ended 20( $ 3,867,841 $ 16,554,16 $ 14,365,03 $ 6,056,97.
(A) Represents estimated rebates deducted from gneessues
(B) Represents rebates credited to the distributor

A3) Exhibits:

The following exhibits are filed herewith or incamated herein by reference to exhibits previoudddfwith the SEC.

(b) Exhibits

Exhibit Description of Document

No.

3() Third Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporati RTI filed on November 1, 2004* as amendedhat Statement ¢

Change of Registered Office/Agent** and by thataier Articles of Amendment Pursuant to Article 4df4he Texas Business
Corporation Act filed on October 16, 200. See Exhibit no. ¢

3(ii) Third Amended and Restated Bylaws of RTI’
4 Third Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporatid RTI filed on November 1, 2004* as amendedhat Statement ¢

Change of Registered Office/Agent** and by thataier Articles of Amendment Pursuant to Article 4d@f4he Texas Business
Corporation Act filed on October 16, 200. See Exhibit no. 3(i

10.1 Sample United States Distribution Agreement*:

10.2 Sample Foreign Distribution Agreement**:

10.3 Employment Agreement between RTI and Thomas J. $lsa@d as of January 1, 2008 (This is a managecoempensatiol
contract.) ***

10.4 Technology License Agreement between Thomas J. @haviRTI dated the 29 day of June 1995***

10.5 First Amendment to Technology License Agreementvbeh Thomas J. Shaw and RTI dated the 3rd daylypf2008 t

10.6 Loan Agreement among RTI, Katie Petroleum and Thodn&haw as of the 30  day of September, 200Pedissory
Notett

10.7 RTI's 1999 Stock Option Plan***

10.8 First Amendment to 1999 Stock Option Plan’

10.9 Retractable Technologies, Inc. 2008 Stock OptianPt Tt
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Exhibit Description of Document

No.

10.10 Thomas J. Shaw Nonqualified Stock Option Agreentesued Outside of Any Pleoo
10.11 Voting Agreement Between Thomas J. Shaw and SuzaAngest dated November 8, 20000
14 Retractable Technologies, Inc. Code of BusinessiGorand Ethic.oooo

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing oo

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officioo

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officeoo

32 Section 1350 Certificatioroo

99.1 Retractable Technologies, Inc. Audit Committee @0

99.2 Retractable Technologies, Inc. Compensation anéfterCommittee Charteoo

99.3 Retractable Technologies, Inc. Nominating CommiG&arteroo

* Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1i-Q filed on November 14, 20(

*x Incorporated herein by reference to ’s Form 1+-K filed on March 31, 200

*kk Incorporated herein by reference to ’s Form 1-Q filed on November 14, 20(

Fhkk Incorporated herein by reference to 's Registration Statement on Forn-SB filed on June 23, 20(
1) Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1+K filed on March 31, 200

Tt Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form K filed on October 10, 200

Tt Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1-KSB filed on March 31, 200

Tt Incorporated herein by reference to 's definitive Schedule 14A filed on August 19, 2(
o Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1i-Q filed on November 16, 20(

00 Filed herewitt

000 Incorporated herein by reference to 's Schedule TO filed on October 17, 2(

0000 Incorporated herein by reference to ’s Form K filed on February 19, 201

(c) Excluded Financial Statement Schedules: N

50




Table of Contents
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this repol
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC
(Registrant

By: /sl Thomas J. Sha
THOMAS J. SHAW
CHAIRMAN, PRESIDENT, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF

Date: March 31, 201(

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélptihe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

/s/ Steven R. Wisne

Steven R. Wisne

Executive Vice President, Engineering
Production and Directc

March 31, 201(

/s/ Douglas W. Cowa
Douglas W. Cowal
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasu

and Directol
March 31, 201(

/sl Clarence Zierht
Clarence Zierhu
Director

March 31, 201(

/sl Amy Mack
Amy Mack
Director

March 31, 201(

/s/ Marco Laterzi
Marco Laterze
Director

March 31, 201(

/s/ Marwan Sake
Marwan Sake
Director

March 31, 201(
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Exhibit 10.1(

THOMAS J. SHAW
NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
ISSUED OUTSIDE OF ANY PLAN

This Retractable Technologies, Inc. NonQualifiedc&tOption Agreement (the “Agreements)made and entered into by and betv
RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (the “Company”) anthomas J. Shaw (the “OptioneeThe Company and the Optionee
sometimes hereinafter collectively referred tohes“Parties.”

(1) The option granted hereunder is granted outsid€tmpany’s 2008 Stock Option Plan or any otherkstgtion plan.

(2) OPTION . The Company hereby confirms the grant by the Garaation and Benefits Committee of the Board oé&ir:
as of July 15, 2009 (subject to approval by a wftthe Common Shareholders) to the Optionee ofigie and option to purchase three mill
(3,000,000) shares of the Common Stock of the Comma the terms set forth in this Agreement (thetiGn”). The Option granted
designated as a nonqualified stock option (“NQSQHe Option is not vested until July 15, 2010. AptiOn that is exercisable may
forfeited pursuant to Section (3) of this Agreememhe Option must be exercised within the peripdctfied in this Agreement. The Opt
may not be exercised for a fractional share of IS{defined to mean Common Stock of the Companyk Oiption, if exercised in part, st
remain exercisable as to the remaining part in @ewe with its terms. Nothing contained in thisrégment shall be deemed to give
Optionee the right to be retained in the servicthefCompany.

3) TERMINATION OF OPTION.

(A) MAXIMUM OPTION TERM . The unexercised portion of this Option which Hmsxome exercisable st
automatically and without notice terminate and beeaull and void after July 15, 2019.

(B) DEATH OF OPTIONEE

0] Notwithstanding Section 3(C) of this Agreement, mploe death of the Optionee, any Option exercisak
the date of death may be exercised by the Optisnestate or by a person who acquires the rightxéwcese such Option by beques
inheritance or otherwise by reason of the death@Optionee, provided that such exercise occutlsimboth the remaining term of the Opt
and within one (1) year after the Optionee’s deatty Option not then exercisable shall be forfeig@dhe death of Optionee.

(i) The provisions of this subsection (3)(B) shall gppbtwithstanding the fact that the Optioreeglationshi
with the Company may have terminated prior to deatld if the Option remains exercisable but onlyhi extent of any Option exercisable
the date of death.

©) DISABILITY . Subject to Section 3(B) of this Agreement, uplos termination of the Optioneetelationship wit
the Company by reason of permanent disability @erchined by the Board), the Optionee may, withie ¢1) year from the date of si
termination of relationship with the Company, exsgcany Option to the extent such Option was egehie at the date of such terminatio
relationship with the Company due to disability.nyAOption not then exercisable is forfeited upormieation of relationship with tt
Company due to disability.

(D) TERMINATION FOR OTHER REASONS Except as provided in Sections (3)(B) and (3)t@g Option she
automatically terminate upon the termination of Mptionee’s relationship with the Company for caus§xherwise, subject to Sections 3
(B) and 3(C) the vested portion of the Option stedpire upon the expiration of its term set fonthSection 3(A). Any Option not th
exercisable is forfeited upon termination of thiatienship with the Company, with or without cause.

(4) EXERCISE OF OPTION. This Option shall be exercised by the Optionee iy his representatives, as providel
Section (3) of this Agreement) as to all or parthef shares covered hereby, by the giving of writtetice of such exercise substantially in
form attached hereto as Exhibit A, to the Company




specifying the number of shares to be purchasedpedfying how the withholding tax obligation &hy) shall be satisfied. The giving of s
written notice to the Company shall constitute raeviocable election to purchase the number of stepecified in the notice and to exercise
right on the date specified in the notice (the “fEiee Date”).Upon payment of all amounts due from the Optiorieeluding any ta
withholding due upon exercise of this Option, thar@any shall cause Documents Indicating Ownerdefiried to include a stock certific.
or any and all documents provided by the Compamignagents evidencing ownership of an uncertéidsshare of stock) to be delivere:
the Optionee (or the person exercising the Optianeption) at the address set forth herein within(fi®) business days after the Exercise [

(5) OPTION PRICE The purchase price of the shares which may behpsed pursuant to this Option shall be eightg-cent
($0.81) per share (the “Option Pricelging 100% of the fair market value of a Commonr8lud the Company on July 15, 2009 as detern
by the Compensation and Benefits Committee of thar@ of Directors of the Company. The Option Pdoe any other amounts payable u
exercise shall be paid in full at the time the Omptis exercised. Otherwise, an exercise of theddhall be invalid and of no effect.

(6) TAX WITHHOLDING . Exercise of the Option in whole or in part herdeinis conditioned upon the Optionee remittin
the Company, in addition to the Option Price, theant of employment taxes, if any, required to lighkeld upon exercise of this Option. ~
Optionee may satisfy this obligation by a direcympant of a cashier’s check to the Company or, égpproved by the Company (in its <
discretion), increased withholding on his cash cengation payable on the Exercise Date.

(7 NO RIGHTS PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF DOCUMENTS INDICATINGWNERSHIP. Neither the Optionee nor |
representatives shall have any of the rights diaaeholder of the Company with respect to the shaubject to this Option until Docume
Indicating Ownership shall have been issued upenettercise of this Option. No adjustment will bededor dividends or other rights -
which the record date is prior to the date the Doents Indicating Ownership are issued.

(8) NONASSIGNABILITY . This Option shall not be assignable or transfleral the Optionee other than by will or by the ¢
of descent and distribution, and during the Opt@adfetime shall be exercisable only by him (@ kegal guardian or representative).

(9) ADJUSTMENT FOR CORPORATE EVENTS In the event of any Stock split, Stock dividemdglassification ¢
recapitalization which changes the character oruahof the Compang' outstanding Common Stock while any portion of tBiption i
outstanding but unexercised, or if the Companyigipgtes in any transaction resulting in a corpwnaterger, consolidation, acquisitior
property or stock, separation, reorganization (whtétre Company is the surviving entity) or liquidati the Company or any survivi
corporation shall take reasonable steps to prediriton of the Option.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein,tie event of 1) dissolution or liquidation of ti@mpany, 2) a merger
consolidation in which the Company is not the sking corporation (other than a merger or consalihatvith a whollyowned subsidiary,
reincorporation of the Company in a different jditdion, or other transaction in which there issubstantial change in the stockholders o
Company or their relative stock holdings and thei@pgranted hereunder is assumed, converted daaegh by the successor corporat
which assumption, conversion or replacement willbibeding on the Optionee), 3) a merger or constibdain which the Company is t
surviving corporation but after which the stockrerkl of the Company (other than any stockholder whierges [or which owns or contr
another corporation which merges] with the Compianguch merger) cease to own their shares or eiipaity interests in the Company, 4)
sale of substantially all of the assets of the Camyp or 5) the acquisition, sale or transfer of enthvan 50% of the outstanding share
Common Stock of the Company by tender offer or lsintransaction (otherwise than by will or by tleevk of descent and distribution),
Option shall terminate after a period of three rherftom the completion of such trigger event; pded, however, that the Optionee shall |
the right, immediately upon announcement of suabnevo exercise his Option in whole or in part, foperiod of three months from
completion of such trigger event, but only to tixéeat that such Option has not been previously iteatad.

(10) REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE OPTIONEE: LEGID . The Optionee, by his acceptance he
represents and warrants to the Company that hchpse of shares of Common Stock upon
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the exercise hereof shall be for investment andwitit a view to distribution or sale, provided thhis representation and warranty shal
inoperative if, in the opinion of counsel to thenQmany, a proposed sale or distribution of suchesh&@ pursuant to an applicable effec
registration statement under the Securities Act383, as amended (the “Act®r without such representation and warranty is etefnom
registration under the Act. The Optionee agreesttieobligation of the Company to issue sharesithe exercise of an Option shall alsc
subject, as conditions precedent, to complianck afiplicable provisions of the Act, the Securifiechange Act of 1934, state securities I
rules and regulations under any of the foregoirdyaplicable requirements of any securities exchagl/or securities market upon which
Companys securities shall be listed and/or quoted. The fizotm may endorse an appropriate legend referrigetdoregoing restriction up
the certificate or certificates representing angreh issued or transferred to the Optionee upoexéecise of this Option.

(12) NO OBLIGATION TO EXERCISE STOCK OPTION The granting of the Option under this Agreemdralisimpose n
obligation upon the Optionee to exercise that Qptio

(12) USE OF PROCEEDSProceeds from the sale of shares pursuant t@gtien granted under this Agreement shall cong
general funds of the Company.

(13) RESERVATION OF SHARES OF STOCKThe Company, during the term of this Agreemerilt, at all times reserve al
keep available the number of shares of Stock thedt be sufficient to satisfy the requirementsho$ tAgreement.

(14) LEGAL CONSTRUCTION. In the event that any one or more of the termayipions or agreements that are containe
this Agreement shall be held by a Court of compepersdiction to be invalid, illegal or unenfordda in any respect for any reason,
invalid, illegal or unenforceable term, provisionagreement shall not affect any other term, piowi®r agreement that is contained in
Agreement and this Agreement shall be construeallinespects as if the invalid, illegal or unenfesble term, provision or agreement
never been contained herein.

(15) COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS AS INDEPENDENT AGREEMENTSEach of the covenants and agreements t
set forth in this Agreement shall be construed esvenant and agreement independent of any otbersgrn of this Agreement. The existe
of any claim or cause of action of the Optioneeiragaghe Company, whether predicated on this Ageseror otherwise, shall not constitut
defense to the enforcement by the Company of thieramnts and agreements that are set forth in thiegfnent.

(16) ADMINISTRATION . This Agreement shall be administered by the Caragtion and Benefits Committee of the Boar
Directors of the Company (such body hereafter reteto as the “Administrator”the Administrator shall make determinations witbprect t
the terms, limitations, restrictions, conditionsdaextent of that participation. Any interpretatiand construction of any provision of t
Agreement by the Compensation and Benefits Comenitfethe Board of Directors shall be final. The Adistrator, including any of i
individual members, shall not be liable for anyi@ttor determination made by any of them in goadthfaelating to this Agreement. T
Optionee hereby agrees to accept as binding, csimeland final all decisions or interpretationgtef Administrator upon any questions ari
under this Agreement.

a7 ENTIRE AGREEMENT . This Agreement and the Exhibit A, which is at@dhhereto and incorporated herein fol
purposes, together supersede any and all otherpraerstandings and agreements, either oral writing, between the Parties with respec
the subject matter hereof and constitute the sotk anly agreement between the Parties with resjpethie said subject matter. All pr
negotiations and agreements between the Partibsrespect to the subject matter hereof are mengiedthis Agreement. Each Party to
Agreement acknowledges that no representationacerdents, promises or agreements, orally or otseriiave been made by any Party ¢
anyone acting on behalf of any Party, which are erabodied in this Agreement and that any agreensatement or promise that is
contained in this Agreement or the Exhibit A stmalt be valid or binding or of any force or effect.
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(18) PARTIES BOUND. The terms, provisions, representations, warrgntievenants and agreements that are containéis
Agreement shall apply to, bind upon and inure te trenefit of the Parties and their respective hedsecutors, administrators, le
representatives and permitted successors and assign

(29) TEXAS LAW TO APPLY . THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, CONSTRUED AN ENFORCED IM
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS (EX@DING ANY CONFLICTS-OFLAW RULE OR PRINCIPLE O
TEXAS LAW THAT MIGHT REFER THE GOVERNANCE, CONSTRUIGON OR INTERPRETATION OF THIS AGREEMENT TO Tk
LAWS OF ANOTHER STATE).

(20) MODIFICATION . No change or modification of this Agreement shallvalid or binding upon the Parties unless trengk
or modification is in writing and signed by the 8. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence Gbmpany may revoke this Option to
extent permitted in Section 21 of this Agreement.

(22) AMENDMENT . The Administrator may discontinue or amend thigréement from time to time, but no mate
amendment shall be made without the approval oEtimemon stockholders.

Except as provided in Section (9) of this Agreemeaeither shall any amendment impair the right©eptionee theretofore gran
without his consent; provided, however, that if théministrator, after consulting with Managementtbé Company, determines that
application of an accounting standard in complianik any statement issued by the Financial AcdognEtandards Board or any other er
that reviews accounting disclosures of (or set®@aating standards for) public companies concertirggtreatment of employee stock opti
would have a significant adverse effect on the Camyfs financial statements because of the fact that @ption was granted before
issuance of such statement and it is then outstigntlien the Administrator in its absolute disanetmay cancel and revoke the Option anc
Optionee shall have no further rights in respeerdbf. Such cancellation and revocation shall Hecéfe upon written notice by t
Administrator to the Optionee.

(22) TIME . Time is of the essence in the performance ofAgieement.

(23) HEADINGS . The headings that are used in this Agreementised for reference and convenience purposes odlylamo
constitute substantive matters to be consideredmstruing the terms and provisions of this Agreetne

(24) GENDER AND NUMBER. Words of any gender used in this Agreement dhelheld and construed to include any ¢
gender, and words in the singular number shalldbé to include the plural, and vice versa, unlégsdontext requires otherwise.

(25) NOTICE . Any notice required or permitted to be delivehesleunder shall be deemed to be delivered upoeatier of thi
expiration of three days after deposit in the Urail or actual receipt at the addresses set fatbwy or at such other addresses as they
theretofore specified by written notice deliveradciccordance herewith:

(A) Notice to the Company shall be addressed and detivas follows:

RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
P. 0. BOX9

511 LOBO LANE

LITTLE ELM, TEXAS 75068-0009
ATTENTION: MICHELE M. LARIOS
VICE PRESIDENT AND SECRETARY

(B) Notice to the Optionee shall be addressed andetelivas follows:

THOMAS J. SHAW
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company, RETRACTABLE TECHNOGIES, INC., has caused these presents to be dignehit
the 11th day of December, 2009 effective as of 16ly2009 by Steven R. Wisner, its duly authoriEe@cutive Vice President, Engineer

and Production.

ATTEST:
s/ Michele M. Larios
MICHELE M. LARIOS, SECRETARY
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC

BY: s/ Steven R. Wisne
STEVEN R. WISNEFR
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT
ENGINEERING AND PRODUCTION

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO

s/ Thomas J. Sha
THOMAS J. SHAW




EXHIBIT A
NOTICE OF EXERCISE
OF
NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTION

To: Retractable Technologies, Inc.

| hereby exercise (all/a portion of) my NonQualifi§tock Option granted by RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIHRC., in the
Thomas J. Shaw NonQualified Stock Option Agreenesited Outside of any Plan dated effective aslgf1&y 2009 (the “Agreement”) and
notify you of my desire to purchase shares of Common Stock of the Company which wefiered to me pursuant to said
Option.

The Option Price due for this purchase is $ in cash.

Please choose one:
I have no withholding obligation.
| am satisfying my withholding obligation by makiagdirect payment by cashier’s check to the Company

| am satisfying my withholding obligation by hereaythorizing increased withholding on my cash comspdon payable on the
Exercise Date.

EXERCISE DATE THOMAS J. SHAW

SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER
COMPANY AUTHORIZATION OF WITHHOLDING SELECTION

Retractable Technologies, Inc. hereby accepts attwbeazes the choice of satisfaction of the Optesavithholding obligation as
indicated above.

PRINT NAME:

TITLE:
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Exhibit 2

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRlegistration Statements on Form S-8 (No. 333-15587d 333-1300419f Retractabl
Technologies, Inc. of our report dated March 311 ®€elating to our audit of the financial statenseand financial statement schedule, w
appear in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Ratthle Technologies, Inc. for the year ended Decer®@bg2009.

/s/ CF & Co., L.L.P
CF & Co., L.L.P.

Dallas, Texas
March 31, 2010




Exhibit 31.:
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Thomas J. Shaw, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRetractable Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or amndtate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanceter which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations, aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, tegqas presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | are responsibide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstrand procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(nd internal control over financial reportireg @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesd or caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our supervi:
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidigris made known to us by others within tt
entities, particularly during the period in whidhg report is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financgdorting, or caused such internal control ovearficial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegattie reliability of financial reporting and thgreparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallymgiedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presaémtdds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thgisteant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm that has materially affected, or is reasopdikkely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comiwger financial reporting; and

5. The registran$ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internaltrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaodmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden:
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal contnér financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize, and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrarg’interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2010

/s/ Thomas J. Sha

THOMAS J. SHAW
PRESIDENT, CHAIRMAN, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Douglas W. Cowan, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRetractable Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or amndtate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanceter which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations, aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, tegqas presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | are responsibide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstrand procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(nd internal control over financial reportireg @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesd or caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our supervi:
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidigris made known to us by others within tt
entities, particularly during the period in whidhg report is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financgdorting, or caused such internal control ovearficial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegattie reliability of financial reporting and thgreparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallymgiedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presaémtdds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thgisteant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm that has materially affected, or is reasopdikkely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comiwger financial reporting; and

5. The registran$ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internaltrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaodmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden:
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal contnér financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize, and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrarg’interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2010

/s/ Douglas W. Cowa
DOUGLAS W. COWAN
VICE PRESIDENT AND
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Solely in connection with the filing of the Annuakport of Retractable Technologies, Inc. (the “Camyd) on Form 1K for the period ende
December 31, 2009, as filed with the United St&esurities and Exchange Commission on the dateohéie “Report”),the undersigne
Thomas J. Shaw, Chief Executive Officer, and Dosigll. Cowan, Chief Financial Officer, do hereby iégrtpursuant to 18 U.S.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9@G&darbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the financ@ldition and results of operations of
Company.

Date: March 31, 2010

/s/ Thomas J. Sha

THOMAS J. SHAW
PRESIDENT, CHAIRMAN, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF

/s/ Douglas W. Cowa
DOUGLAS W. COWAN
VICE PRESIDENT AND
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER




Exhibit 99.1
RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER
I STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

A. The Audit Committee shall represent and assistBbard of Directors in discharging its responsikabt relating to th
accounting, reporting, and financial practices &bl compliance of Retractable Technologies, (tite “Company”).The Audit Committe
has general responsibility for oversight of thecasting and financial reporting processes of thenfany, including oversight of: (1)
integrity of the Company’s financial statements @adinancial reporting and disclosure practiq@3,the Company compliance with legal a
regulatory requirements, and (3) the qualificatard independence of the Companguditors and the performance of the annual ard
interim reviews of the Comparg/financial statements by the independent audifdrs.Audit Committee should also provide an opeznae o
communication among the independent auditors, @ihand senior management, and the Board of [irsct

B. While the Audit Committee has the responsibilittesd powers set forth in this Charter, it is not thay of the Audi
Committee to plan or conduct audits or to deterntive¢ the Companyg’ financial statements are complete and accuratesnin accordan
with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAR This is the responsibility of management #mel Company’s independent auditors.

Il. AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS

A. The Audit Committee shall consist of at least thneembers appointed by the Board of Directors, one/tmom shall b
appointed as Chairperson. The Audit Committee statisist entirely of “independent” members of theaRl of Directors. “Independent”
means a director who: (i) satisfies all critelga ihdependence established by the Securities aodaige Commission (the “SEGK)ith regart
to members of an Audit Committee and (ii) meets NMSE Amex LLC (the “AMEX”) definition of “indepenent” (including all criteri
imposed with respect to service on an audit conam)ittif a member of the Audit Committee ceasestintlependent, that member shall nc
the Company immediately.

B. Each member of the Audit Committee shall be ableetwd and understand fundamental financial statesperciuding th
Company’s balance sheet, statement of operatidatnsent of changes in stockholdeesjuity, cash flow statement, and related not
financial statements as determined in the Boaldikctors’ judgment.

C. At least one member of the Audit Committee shallehpast employment experience in finance or acdogntequisit
professional certification in accounting, or anyhest comparable experience or background which tesul the individual financia
sophistication, including, but not limited to, bgior having been a chief executive officer, chiaificial officer, or other senior officer w
financial oversight responsibilities in compliang#éh criteria established by the AMEX and, in aduit shall have such accounting or reli
financial management expertise as required to bauadit committee financial expertih compliance with the criteria established by 8t&C
both as determined in the Board of Directors’ jueégin The identity of such financial expert and vileetsuch financial expert meets the SEC’
“independence” criteria shall be disclosed in tlenpany’s annual report as filed with the SEC arazhsather reports as the SEC may require.

D. The members of the Audit Committee shall be elebtethe Board of Directors and shall serve ungittsuccessors shall
duly elected and qualified. Unless a chair is elédty the full Board of Directors, the memberstaf Audit Committee may designate a ¢
by majority vote of the full Audit Committee.




M. POWERS, DUTIES, AND RESPONSIBILITIES
A. Oversight of Company Relationship with Its Indepenant Auditors

1. The Audit Committee of the Company shall have saithority and responsibility to appoint and engagrublic accountir
firm to serve as the Company’s independent audéadsto perform the Comparsyannual audit and related work. This authorityllshalude
the sole discretion to retain and discharge sudbpgendent auditors and to approve the terms arditzors of all audit engagements as we
all significant nonaudit engagements with such independent auditocduding a determination of the compensation topb&l to suc
independent auditors.

2. The Audit Committee shall oversee the work perfanby the Companyg independent auditors (including resolutiol
disagreements between management and the indepenatiors regarding financial reporting). Suchdpdndent auditors shall report dire
to the Audit Committee, although they shall remadgountable to the entire Board of Directors ad ageto the Audit Committee.

3. The Audit Committee shall review with the indepemidauditors the scope of the audit, pprove the audit services (wh
may entail providing comfort letters in connectiwith securities underwritings) to be performed bg independent auditors, review the re:
of the annual audit examination, review the interesults, and review any other reports of the iedeent auditors with respect to
Company'’s financial statements or policies.

4, The Audit Committee shall pre-approve all non-awsditvices provided to the Company by the independeditors. Pre-
approval shall be either: (i) specifically grantbd the Audit Committee or (ii) granted pursuantpiee-approval policies and procedu
established by the Audit Committee, provided thelifCommittee is informed of each nawdit service. In no event shall approval be gd
for any nonaudit service that the SEC, AMEX, or other applieategulatory authority determines is impermissidle may be required by t
SEC, the Audit Committee shall disclose the appro¥aon-audit services and/or any fapproval policies and procedures in periodic res
filed by the Company with the SEC.

5. The Audit Committee shall periodically assess thédependence of the Compasyauditors as defined by the ru
regulations, and standards of the SEC, the AMEX], ather applicable authorities. The Audit Commitgkll, at least annually, obtain i
review a formal written statement by the Comparipdependent auditors delineating all relationsthigtween the independent auditors an
Company as required by applicable requirementh@fublic Company Accounting Oversight Board. Femtiore, the Audit Committee st
actively engage in a dialogue with the indepenageuitors regarding any disclosed relationshipseovises that may impact the objectivity
independence of the independent auditors. ThetAGdinmittee is responsible for recommending that Board take appropriate actior
oversee the independence of the independent asiditor

B. Audit Practices and Financial Reporting Matters

1. The Audit Committee shall obtain and review allagp and other information that the independenitarsiare required t
law, rule, or regulation to submit to the Audit Cmittee, including periodic reports on: (1) alltmal accounting policies and practices tc
used by the Company, (2) all alternative treatmehtinancial information within GAAP in effect fro time to time that have been discus
with management, the ramification of the use ofhsatternative disclosures and treatment, and thatrtrent preferred by the indepen:
auditors, and (3) other material written communa between the independent auditors and manadeoighe Company, such as
management letter or schedule of unadjusted difta®s

2. The Audit Committee shall discuss with the indepartdauditors the matters required to be discusge&tatement c
Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended (AICPA Peifesl Standards, Vol. 1, AU section 380), as aslbpby the Public Compa
Accounting Oversight Board in Rule 3200T, relatinghe conduct of the audit and certain infornratielated to the auditorgidgments abo
the quality, not just the acceptability, of the Guany’s accounting principles.
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3. The Audit Committee shall review and discuss wittniaggement and the independent auditors the Corrgpanpual audite
financial statements and quarterly financial staets, including a discussion of the Company’s disates under “ManagemesatDiscussio
and Analysis of Financial Condition and ResultsQgferation”and a discussion with the independent auditorsheir fudgments as to t
quality of the Company’s accounting principles.

4. The Audit Committee shall review with managemend éime independent auditors the results of any fiagmt matter
identified as a result of the independent auditorgrim review procedures prior to the filing afa quarterly report.

5. The Audit Committee shall review changes in theoaoting policies of the Company and accounting famehcial reportin
proposals that may have a significant impact ondbmpany’s financial reports, and make reportshenforegoing to the Board of Directors.

6. The Audit Committee shall review as necessary amofapriate with the independent auditors any apditblems c
difficulties and management’s response, including restrictions on the scope of the independenit@nst activities or access to informati
and any significant disagreements with management.

C. Company Governance Policies and Compliance
1. The Audit Committee shall prepare the report tH&C Sules require to be included in the Compargrinual proxy stateme
2. The Audit Committee shall review and discuss witanagement financial risk exposures and measureagearent he

taken to monitor and control such exposures.

3. The Audit Committee shall annually review and asske adequacy of this Charter and make recommend&b the Boai
of Directors necessary to provide for the continaddquacy of the Charter to achieve its statedgsarp

4, The Audit Committee shall review with managemend #me independent auditors any correspondence reghlators c
governmental agencies and any employee complaingublished reports, which raise material issuegmnmding the Compang’ financia
statements or accounting policies.

5. Any complaints regarding accounting, internal aeting controls, or auditing matters shall be subaditorally or in writing
to the Company Audit Committee Financial Expert. The Compangoemages its employees to submit such concernsroplaints when ar
if they arise, and will accept anonymous submissiofhe source of any such concerns or complairah Be kept confidential, if requeste
All such complaints shall be retained by the Awiitmmittee for five years and shall be referred smagement or the Board of Directors a
discretion of the Audit Committee.

6. The Audit Committee shall review and, if appropeiaapprove any related party transactions.

7. The Audit Committee shall oversee managenseimternal control over financial reporting as paftits oversigt
responsibilities for the Compars/’financial reporting. The Audit Committee shabtain a report from management as to all mai
weaknesses and significant deficiencies in intecoaltrols based upon managemsrdvaluation. The Audit Committee shall be reabty
knowledgeable and informed about the evaluatioggs® and management’s assessment.

D. General Powers

1. The Audit Committee shall have the ability (but ribé obligation) to conduct or authorize, if it staers appropriat
investigations into any matters within the scopé&ofesponsibilities.

2. The Audit Committee shall have the authority (withceparate approval from the Board of Directoospitain advice
services, and assistance from independent colwarsgccounting or other advisors, as
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the Audit Committee deems necessary to assistciirying out its responsibilities, and to deterenihe compensation for any such advisors.

3. The Audit Committee shall perform such activitiemsistent with this Charter, the Companyrhird Amended and Resta
Bylaws, as they may be amended, and applicabl@atatiie Board of Directors or the Audit Committeerde necessary or appropriate.

4. The Audit Committee may otherwise make regular respand recommendations to the Board of Directatksimthe scope ¢
its functions.

5. The Company shall provide for appropriate fundiag,determined by the Audit Committee, in its cayaas a committe
for: 1) payment of compensation to the independentitors employed for the purpose of preparingssuing an audit report or review
attestation, 2) payment to any advisors employethbyAudit Committee and 3) payment of ordinary adstrative expenses that are neces
or appropriate in carrying out its duties.

V. AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

A. The Audit Committee shall meet as often as it deitees, but not less frequently than quarterly. Titeeetings may be eitr
in person or in any other manner permitted by lam at such times and places as the Board of Directothe Audit Committee determin
The Audit Committee may request any officer or emgpk of the Company or the Compagutside counsel or independent auditors to ¢
a meeting of the Audit Committee or to meet witly amembers of, or consultants to, the Audit Comraitte

B. The majority of the members of the Audit Commitskell constitute a quorum for Audit Committee megsi and, unle:
otherwise required by this Charter or the Compsrihird Amended and Restated Bylaws, as they magniended, action may be taker
majority vote of the members present at such mgetiMinutes shall be maintained of each meeting.

C. At the next meeting of the Board of Directors fellog any meeting of the Audit Committee, a repofttiee Audi
Committee findings and actions shall be renderethbyChairman of the Audit Committee.

The above constitutes the complete Audit Commi@tkarter of Retractable Technologies, Inc. effectisef December 20, 2009.
s/ Thomas J. Sha

THOMAS J. SHAW
Chairman of the Boar

ATTEST:

s/ Michele Larios
MICHELE LARIOS, Secretanr




Exhibit 99.2
RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS COMMITTEE CHARTER

A. PURPOSES OF THE COMMITTEE

The purposes of the Compensation and Benefits Cteeniof the Board of Directors (the “Committeetf Retractabl
Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) are to: (1)ctliarge the Board of Directors’ responsibilitiesatilg to the compensation of the Company’
executives and directors; (2) prepare, if necessaryannual report on compensation to be includettié Company annual meeting pro
statement and such other reports on compensat@annlay be required; and (3) administer the Compamduity and other incenti
compensation plans in effect on the date hereananded from time to time, and any additional platiopted by the Company.

B. COMPOSITION

1. The Committee shall be comprised of no fewer thaae members. Committee members shall be electeldebBoard an
may be replaced by the Board. Unless a chair idetdeby the full Board, the members of the Comnaitteay designate a chair by majority \
of the full Committee.

2. The Committee shall consist entirely of “indepertiemembers of the Board. “Independemnteans a director who meets
NYSE Amex LLC “AMEX”) definition of “independent”. If a member of the Committee ceases to be indepegntteat member shall not
the Company immediately.

C. POWERS, DUTIES, AND RESPONSIBILITIES
In fulfilling its duties and responsibilities undis Charter, the Committee shall, among othergsi

1. Review and approve corporate goals and objectigkded to executive officer compensation. Spedlficdhe Committe
shall approve corporate goals and objectives ratetathe Company’s Chief Executive Officer (“CEGpmpensation, and in light of st
goals and objectives, evaluate the performancehef GEO and shall set compensation for the CEO.cdnsidering the appropri
compensation of the CEO, the Committee shall cemsal material elements of his compensation asipd in Item 402(b) of Regulation S-
K.

2. Together with management review the performancexetutive officers other than the CEO and set tb@inpensation
accordance with established goals and objectivescohsidering the appropriate compensation of dkexwfficers, the Committee sh
consider all material elements of compensatiorpasiied in Item 402(b) of Regulation S-K.

3. Review and evaluate an appropriate compensatiggrgmofor members of the Board of Directors that failrly compensai
them for their service while seeking to align th&erests of Board members with the long term istsref the Company and its stockholc
The Committee, from time to time, shall recommelmel amount and form of directorsbmpensation. In performing its duties, the Comee
shall take into account the burdens on and obbgatiand commitments required of directors, the tamidil time commitments required
connection with service on and acting as Chairesfain committees, and the types and amounts opeasation paid to directors of ot
companies in the Company’s peer group.

4. In the absence of action by the Board, serve agihetor and administrator for the Compangquity and other incenti
compensation plans.

5. R etain and terminate any outside compensation ctamgwdnd other advisors deemed necessary by then@tea as well ¢
approve the fees charged by such consultants ansbasl and other retention terms.

6. P erform any other activities required by applicatd&v, rules or regulation, including the rules ok tBecurities ar
Exchange Commission and any stock exchange or mamnkehich the Company’s securities may
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be listed from time to time, and perform such othetivities that are consistent with this Chartet, forth in the Compang'Third Amende
and Restated Bylaws, as they may be amended from td time, and governing laws as the Committe¢herBoard of Directors dee|
necessary or appropriate.

7. R eport to the Board of Directors regarding its maggi The Committee shall also, if necessary, peepeCompensatu
Committee Report (as defined by Item 407(e)(5) efiRation S-K) to be included in the Companghnual report after a review and discus
of the Company’s Compensation Discussion and Aiglygh management and shall prepare such othertseps may be required.

8. Review and reassess the adequacy of this Chareaty and recommend any proposed changes to taedBo
D. MEETINGS

The Committee shall meet periodically at the retjeéswo-thirds of the members of the Board of Directorsabthe request ¢
management, and as often as it deems necessappr@paate, in its judgment, either in person oaity other manner permitted by law an

such times and places as the Committee determihesmajority of the members of the Committee sbaiistitute a quorum.

The above constitutes the complete CompensationBanefits Committee Charter of Retractable Techgieln Inc. effective as
December 20, 20089.

s/ Thomas J. Sha
THOMAS J. SHAW
Chairman of the Boar

ATTEST:

s/ Michele M. Larios
MICHELE M. LARIOS, Secretar




Exhibit 99.¢
RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOMINATING COMMITTEE CHARTER
A. PURPOSE

The Nominating Committee (the “Committee”) is apget by the Board of Directors (the “Board”}t){o assist the Board
identifying qualified candidates for director ardrecommend to the Board the director nomineeshimext annual meeting of shareholc
(2) to recommend to the Board candidates for eladtly the Board to fill vacancies occurring on Bward; and (3) to recommend to the Bc
director nominees for each Board Committee, upquest of the Board.

B. COMPOSITION

1. The Committee shall be comprised of no fewer thaae members. Committee members shall be electédebBoard an
may be replaced by the Board. Unless a chair idetdeby the full Board, the members of the Commaitteay designate a chair by majority \
of the full Committee.

2. The Committee shall consist entirely of “indeperttiemembers of the Board. “Independemtieans a director who satist
all criteria for independence established by theSEYAmex LLC (“AMEX”) definition of “independent.’f a member of the Committee cee
to be independent, that member shall notify the Gamy immediately.

C. POWERS, DUTIES, AND RESPONSIBILITIES

In fulfilling its duties and responsibilities undiis Charter, the Committee shall, among othergsi

1. Evaluate and propose nominees for election areleetion to the Board of Directors at each annuadting of stockholde
of the Company.

2. Evaluate and recommend to the Board candidatesidation by the Board to fill vacancies occurringtbe Board.
3. Assist in attracting and recruiting qualified catates to serve on the Board.
4. Determine desired Board member skills and attrbwted conduct searches for prospective directorssavtskills an

attributes reflect those desired. At a minimum, im@as for service on the Board must be well reghiat®l experienced participants in t
field(s) of specialty, familiar at the time of theippointment with the Comparsybusiness, willing to devote the time and attentiecessary
deepen and refine their understanding of the Compard the issues facing it, and must have an utadeting of the demands &
responsibilities of service on a public companyrdoaf directors. The Committee will also considacls qualities as independence from
Company, as the definition of “independencedy be revised from time to time. Each nominee beéliconsidered both on his or her indivic
merits and in relation to existing or other potahthembers of the Board, with a view to establigrenwellrounded, diverse, knowledgeal
and experienced Board.

5. Consider all bona fide candidates recommended &selblders for nomination for election to the Bodrde Committee wi
consider such candidates using the same screenitegiec as are applied to all other potential noeeim for election, provided that
shareholder nominations are submitted in a timely @omplete manner, under the requirements of goeir8ies and Exchange Commiss
(the “SEC”) and the Company’s Third Amended andt&esd Bylaws, as they may be amended from timarte &s follows:

The shareholder must deliver written notice of sslsareholdes nomination, either by personal delivery or byistayed or certifie
United States mail, postage prepaid, to the Sagrefahe Company, within the time period for Netiof Shareholder Business as
forth in the Third Amended and Restated Bylawghay may be amended. Such notice shall set forth:
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A. The name and address of the shareholder makingpthéenation and of the person to be nominated;

B. A representation that the shareholder is a holflezanrd of Common Stock of the Company entitleddte at such
meeting (specifying the number of shares beneljciald) and intends to appear in person or by prEtthe meeting;

C. A description of all arrangements or understandingfsveen the shareholder and the nominee and aey person
or persons (naming such person or persons) pursaamhich the nomination is being made by the dhalder and any
material interest of the shareholder in makingrtbmination;

D. Such other information regarding the nominee preddsy such shareholder as would be required tadleded in a
proxy statement filed pursuant to the then curpeoxy rules of the SEC; and

E. The consent of the nominee to serve as a Diretww recommended by the Board and duly electetieabnual
meeting by the shareholders.

6. Evaluate and make recommendations to the Boardecoimg the appointment of directors to Board corteei and tr
selection of Board committee chairs, upon requesteoBoard.

7. As necessary in the Committsgudgment from time to time, retain and compengslaitel party search firms to assis!
identifying or evaluating potential nominees to Beard.

8. Evaluate and consider matters relating to the fications of directors.

9. Review and maintain oversight of matters relatmghe independence of Board and committee membeeping in mind th

independence standards of the Sarb&wdsy Act of 2002, the rules of the AMEX and anyet applicable rules and regulations promulg
by the SEC.

10. Make regular reports to the Board concerning itvgies.

11. Annually review and reassess the adequacy of theat€r and recommend any proposed changes to thel Bb Director
for approval.

12. Annually prepare a report detailing disclosure éssuelating to the nomination process required goirtcluded in th
Company’s Proxy Statement, if any.

D. LIMITATION ON POWERS, DUTIES, AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary hereindemcircumstances where the Company is legallyireduy contract or otherwi
to provide third parties with the ability to nomiaaand/or appoint directors (e.qg., preferred staghts to elect directors upon dividend defa
the selection and nomination of such directorsissubject to approval by the Nominating Committee.

E. MEETINGS
The Nominating Committee shall meet at least orezeypar and as often as it deems necessary or@gig in its judgment, either

person or in any other manner permitted by law, @&rglich times and places as the Committee detesmithe majority of the members of
Nominating Committee shall constitute a quori




The above constitutes the complete Nominating CdtemiCharter of Retractable Technologies, Inc.ctiffe as of December 2
20009.

s/ Thomas J. Sha
THOMAS J. SHAW

ATTEST:

s/ Michele Larios
MICHELE LARIOS, Secretanr




